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Dear Titan Stockholder:

Enclosed for your review is a copy of our 2003 Annual Report. THE ENCLOSED REPORT IS A
COMPOSITE OF OUR ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K FOR 2003, AS ORIGINALLY FILED IN
MARCH, AND THE AMENDMENT TO THE 10-K THAT WE FILED IN APRIL TO PROVIDE
INFORMATION UNDER PART III AND ITEM 15(C) OF THAT FORM.

AS YOU READ THE ENCLOSED REPORT, PLEASE NOTE THAT WE HAVE NOT UPDATED
THE INFORMATION INCLUDED UNDER PART I OR II TO GIVE EFFECT TO THE
AMENDMENT TO OUR MERGER AGREEMENT WITH LOCKHEED MARTIN CORPORATION
THAT WE ANNOUNCED ON APRIL 7, 2004. A COPY OF THAT ANNOUNCEMENT IS
INCLUDED WITH THIS REPORT. ACCORDINGLY, YOU SHOULD REFER TO OUR SEC
FILINGS MADE ON OR AFTER APRIL 7, 2004 FOR THE MOST CURRENT INFORMATION
ABOUT OUR PROPOSED MERGER.

As always, on behalf of Titan’s board of directors, I thank you for your continued support.

Sincerely,

2k,

Gene W. Ray
Chairman, President
and Chief Executive Officer



Press Release

LOCKHEED MARTIN AND TITAN ANNOUNCE

AMENDED MERGER AGREEMENT
Titan Anticipates June 7, 2004 Stockholder Meeting

BETHESDA, MD AND SAN DIEGO, CA—April 7, 2004—Lockheed Martin Corporation (NYSE: LMT)
and The Titan Corporation (NYSE: TTN) announced today that they have amended their merger
agreement. Under the terms of the amended agreement, Titan stockholders will receive $20 in cash in
exchange for each Titan share owned. ‘

As previously announced, Lockheed Martin and Titan have been conducting reviews of whether
payments were made, or items of value were provided, by consultants for Titan or its subsidiaries to foreign
officials. These internal reviews are substantially complete. The Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) also commenced an investigation into whether payments involving Titan’s international consultants
were made in violation of applicable law. In addition, the Department of Justice initiated a criminal inquiry
into this matter. As part of their reviews, Lockheed Martin, Titan, the SEC and the Department of Justice
have been evaluating Titan’s internal controls relating to these matters.

The merger agreement also has been amended to provide that, as a condition to the closing of the
transaction, Titan must obtain either written consent or confirmation that the Department of Justice
considers its investigation of these allegations resolved and does not intend to pursue any claims against
Titan, or Titan must have entered into a plea agreement with the Department of Justice and completed the
sentencing process. Upon satisfaction of this condition, Lockheed Martin. has agreed that the facts
surrounding these allegations and the related proceedings, costs and expenses will not constitute a material
adverse effect on Titan.

In light of the amendments to the merger agreement, Titan will not consider the merger at the special
meeting of its stockholders scheduled to be reconvened on April 12, 2004. Titan intends to establish a new
record date for the determination of the Titan stockholders who are entitled to vote on the amended
merger agreement and plans to prepare and distribute new proxy materials to these record holders as soon
as they are available, in anticipation of a new special meeting to be held on or after June 7, 2004. The
revised merger agreement provides that if the merger is not completed on or before June 25, 2004, either
Lockheed Martin or Titan may terminate the merger agreement, provided that the party seeking to
terminate the agreement is not then in material breach of its obligations under the merger agreement in a
manner that has contributed to the failure to complete the merger by such date. Under certain
circumstances, the date may be extended to a date as late as September 24, 2004.

Headquartered in Bethesda, Md., Lockheed Martin employs about 130,000 people worldwide and is
principally engaged in the research, design, development, manufacture and integration of advanced
technology systems, products and services. The corporation reported 2003 sales of $31.8 billion.

Headquartered in San Diego, The Titan Corporation is a leading provider of comprehensive
information and communications systems solutions and services to the Department of Defense,
intelligence agencies, and other federal government customers. As a provider of national security
solutions, the company has approximately 12,000 employees and annualized sales of approximately
$2.0 billion.



Additional Information About the Merger and Where to Find It

Lockheed Martin and Titan intend to withdraw the registration statement and proxy statement/
prospectus relating to the original merger agreement. Titan will file a new set of proxy materials with the
SEC. Stockholders of Titan are urged to read the materials Titan files with the SEC and other relevant
materials before making any voting decision with respect to the proposed merger because these materials
contain important information about Lockheed Martin, Titan and the proposed merger. Documents filed
by Lockheed Martin or Titan with the SEC, may be obtained free of charge at the SEC’s web site at
www.sec.gov. In addition, stockholders and investors may obtain free copies of the documents filed with
the SEC by Lockheed Martin by contacting Lockheed Martin Investor Relations, 6801 Rockledge Drive,
Bethesda, MD 20817, (301) 897-6598. Stockholders and investors may obtain free copies of the documents
filed with the SEC by Titan by contacting Titan Investor Relations, 3033 Science Park Rd., San Diego, CA
92121, (858) 552-9848. '

Lockheed Martin and Titan, and their respective directors and executive officers, may be deemed to
be participants in the solicitation of proxies of Titan stockholders in connection with the proposed merger.
Stockholders and investors may obtain more detailed information regarding the names, affiliations and
interests of those persons in the. solicitation by reading the proxy statement when it becomes available.

Forward-Looking Statements:

The statements contained in this release, which are not historical facts, are forward-looking statements
within the meaning of the federal securities laws. These statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materially from those set forth in or implied by forward-looking statements.
Closing of the Titan transaction is subject to approval of Titan’s stockholders, the absence of any material
adverse change in Titan and other closing conditions set forth in the amended merger agreement. Risks and
uncertainties include risks associated with the proposed merger between Lockheed Martin and Titan and other
risks described in the companies’ SEC filings.

Contact:

Lockheed Martin
Media Contact: Tom Jurkowsky, (301) 897-6352; e-mail, thomas.jurkowsky@Imco.com
Investor Relations Contact: Jim Ryan, (301) 897-6584; e-mail, james.r.ryan@lmco.com

Titan
Media Contact: Wil Williams, (858) 552-9724; email, wwilliams@titan.com
Investor Relations Contact: Laura Catalino, (858) 552-9848; email invest@titan.com

#HA

For additional information, visit our website:
www.lockheedmartin.com
www.titan.com
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PART I
Item 1. Business
Corporate Overview

The Titan Corporation is a leading technology developer and systems integrator for the Department
of Defense, the Department of Homeland Security, and intelligence and other key government agencies.
We provide a range of services and systems solutions. These solutions and services include research and
development, design, installation, integration, test, logistics support, maintenance and training. We also
provide services and solutions to government agencies with sophisticated information systems. These
include information processing, information fusion, data management, and communication systems. In
addition, we develop and produce digital imaging products, sensors, lasers, electro-optical systems, threat
simulation/training systems, intelligence electronic hardware, signal intercept systems, and complex
military specific systems.

Our consolidated revenues were approximately $1.8 billion for the year ended Decefnber 31, 2003.

Lockheed Martin Corporation (Lockheed Martin) and Titan have entered into a definitive agreement
for Lockheed Martin to acquire Titan. See “Recent Developments” and “Item 3—Legal Proceedings” for
additional information on the proposed transaction.

Our Core Markets. We apply our core capabilities to provide technology, products, and services with

a focus in four often overlapping and synergetic market areas: C4ISR (Command, Control,

Communications, Computers, Intelligence, Surveillance and Reconnaissance), Transformational Programs,

- Enterprise Information Technology, and the War on Terrorism/Homeland Security. Each of these markets

is described in greater detail in the following sections, including specific examples of the work we are doing
in these areas.

Command, Control, Communications, Computers, Intelligence, Surveillance, and Reconnaissance
(C4ISR) ‘

C4ISR has been the cornerstone of our expertise since we were founded in 1981, and it is the principal
business foundation on which we have grown over the years. C4ISR can be described as the process of
gathering military information through intelligence, surveillance, and reconnaissance measures, and
transmitting this information digitally through high-technology communications systems, processing the
digitized information to facilitate command and control decision making, and disseminating such
commands electronically back to military and intelligence platforms for execution. Computers and
communications systems are the common vehicle for this information gathering, processing and
deployment process. We are a key contributor to the significant C4ISR systems that support the
Department of Defense, the Department of Homeland Security, and intelligence and other key
government agencies. Through systems engineering, technical assistance; program management, products,
and systems integration, we have been in the forefront of assisting our customers in reaching their C4ISR
mission goals. The following are examples of our efforts in C4ISR:

* The Joint Range Extension. We have developed an information solution that allows real-time
tactical data link information-gleaned from a variety of sensors-to be transmitted over any
communications medium. This innovative capability allows commanders to “see” and share the
actual tactical events of a campaign at different locations simultaneously. This capability was
recently used in the Iraq war and Afghanistan to provide commanders with a view of the battle
space at extended ranges, thus allowing forces to be coordinated, sequenced, and deployed rapidly
to meet the needs of the operational commander.

* Advanced Digital Waveform for the U.S. Navy. Our Advanced Digital Waveform, or ADW, increases
data throughput rates on dedicated ultra-high frequency satellite communication channels by up to




four times current rates. Increased data transport is critical to support new platforms such as
Unmanned Air Vehicles (UAV), and to enhance weapons coordination and the command and
control of naval forces.

Our Miniaturized Demand Assigned Multiple Access, or Mini-DAMA, terminals are the first U.S.
Navy systems to receive ADW capability. When installed, the terminals are capable of passing
information at three to four times the previous rate. The current project contemplates that the
majority of the U.S. Navy’s Mini-DAMA terminals will be outfitted with this improved
communications feature within the next year.

o System-Level Solutions. We develop, deliver and support system-level solutions for a wide range of
weapon, sensor, surveillance, and reconnaissance systems. Additionally, we are conducting analysis
of aircraft and ship structures, applying advanced corrosion control methodologies, and supporting
the development of advanced materials. In support of information operations, we provide highly
specialized information security and signal intelligence systems and services to the intelligence
community. In the key national imperative areas of missile defense and combating terrorism, we
conduct weapons effects analysis services and develop computer models for effects prediction.

» Communications Products. We have provided the Department of Defense and intelligence
community with state-of-the-art products-from our earliest days as a company. Our communications
product specialization is in the development, manufacture and support of satellite communications
(UHE SHF, EHF) radios, modems, baseband systems, power amplifiers and complete terminals.
We design and produce the AN/USC-42 DAMA' terminal, which provides bandwidth efficient
mobile satellite services at UHF for military users. We are an industry leader in small, lightweight, -
low-power signal intercept, direction finding and signal processing systems for Signal Intelligence
(SIGINT) applications. These high-value SIGINT products include 2MHz to 2GHz manportable,
ground vehicle, maritime patrol craft and fixed-site applications.

* The Naval Air Systems Command/Naval Air Warfare Center.  'We are helping with the systems
engineering and integration of Naval Aviation Reconnaissance and Surveillance systems under a
multi-year contract. Under current tasking, our engineers provide design and analysis support for
the installation and integration of state-of-the-art sensor systems in both manned and unmanned
reconnaissance platforms. Systems level support typically includes concept exploration, specification
preparation, interface design, laboratory integration, and test and evaluation. We also support
tactical manned and unmanned platforms and avionics equipment. Our engineers provide design
and analysis support for the integration of sophisticated subsystems into the avionics and weapons
systems of many types of military aircraft. These subsystems include electro-optic/infrared devices,
radar, electronic warfare systems, mission planning modules, and tactical data links.

* Military Satellite Communications. Our engineers and technicians provide engineering, program
and operational support to the Space and Naval Warfare Systems Command and the Space Warfare
Systems Centers in San Diego, California, and Charleston, South Carolina. Our satellite
communications experts are involved in all aspects of U.S. Navy and other military satellite
programs including: the determination of requirements, laboratory and in-field operational testing,
on-the-job and formal training, maintenance, operation, technical assistance, integration, and
installation. Our members of the Fleet System Engineering Team provide on-site support at U.S.
Navy satellite communications sites in Virginia, Hawaii, Italy and Bahrain.

Transformational Programs

We are developing new transformational systems for the Department of Defense that focus on specific
national security challenges faced by the United States and its allies. One aspect of the transformation is
the development of new weapon systems and weapon delivery. We are seeking to win engineering
development contracts and ultimately full-scale production contracts to provide low-cost, mission critical



new weapon systems. The following are several key initiatives in our portfolio of active transformational
efforts:

* X-Craft. 'We have a contract to design, build and integrate a vessel for the United States Navy that
is unlike any other currently in the fleet today. The X-Craft will be a high-speed, 262-foot aluminum
catamaran with a combined gas turbine and diesel propulsion plant, capable of speeds greater than
50 knots. The X-Craft’s deck will have two helicopter landing spots capable of handling a variety of
aircraft up to the size of the H-60-series helicopter. With a design displacement of approximately
1,100 long tons, the X-Craft will be self-deployable over trans-Atlantic ranges. The unique X-Craft’s
mission module bay will be capable of simultaneously supporting the development of multiple
mission packages that will be key to the follow-on new ship class, the Littoral Combat Ship (LCS).
The X-Craft program incorporates not only innovative design, development and management
methods, but also is using revolutionary acquisition processes intended to get this craft and the
information derived from its use into the hands of naval forces as rapidly as possible. The X-Craft is
expected to be in the water in the summer of 2004. Extensive testing will follow to demonstrate
tactics, techniques, procedures, and technology for the LCS, the Navy’s planned next generation of
warship.

¢ Affordable Weapon. We are developing and testing a loitering Unmanned Aerial Vehicle (UAV)
that is designed to carry a 200-pound warhead at extended ranges and remain airborne and ready
for rapid deployment for up to 24 hours. The UAV will be built using commercially-available,
off-the-shelf components at a cost expected to be approximately one-tenth of the cost of
comparable missiles currently used by the military. To date, we have built and tested 18 of these
UAV’s, which can be launched from land, ship or aircraft.

* KaBand Satellite Terminal. In 2002, we received a contract from the U.S. Army to develop a new
terminal for the KaSAT, the military’s new wideband gapfiller satellite communications system,
scheduled for deployment in 2005. The terminal will provide KaSAT connectivity to ground forces
as an adjunct to existing satellite communications and is expected to become an integral part of the
Army’s Warfighter Information Network—Tactical, WIN-T, program. This program is an important
part of the Army’s transformational concept of “SATCOM on the Move” allowing maneuvering
forces to receive and transmit critical voice and data at high bandwidth without having to stop and
erect satellite equipment.

Enterprise Information Technology

We provide complete enterprise information technology solutions that enable seamless connectivity
from the strategic to the tactical level of a customer’s critical enterprise. By necessity, the defense and
intelligence organizations require technology that enables information to flow into multi-disciplined, cross-
organizational teams of commanders and technicians that respond quickly and effectively to continuing
threats and immediate crises. Information is gathered through all source collection methods and is
assessed, and in many cases, enriched to assure its relevance and use. We support many enterprise
information technology and modernization efforts within our nation’s defense and intelligence
communities, as well as mission critical networks for civilian agencies. The following are several examples
of Enterprise Information Technology contracts:

« USSOCOM. Under the Enterprise Information Technology Contract (EITC), we are providing
enterprise network management and engineering services across all of the U.S. Special Operations
Command’s (USSOCOM) communication and network infrastructures for data, voice, and video.
EITC is an innovative solution to meet USSOCOM’s worldwide enterprise needs. We are delivering
strategic improvements, increased interoperability, and efficient support at all USSOCOM sites and
locations, including planning, management, operations and maintenance, and training for all
garrison and deployed Wide Area, Metropolitan Area, and Local Area Networks. We also provide.




development, integration, testing, training, and customer support for all desktops, portable
computing devices, applications, messaging systems, databases, and web services used by Special
Operations Forces. The program also includes information assurance, transmission, and
communication security requirements, requirements management, configuration management,

“hardware maintenance, and disaster recovery.

Navy Cash. We are assisting the U.S. Treasury, Naval Supply Systems Command, JP Morgan
Chase and others in providing a cashless environment on naval craft for sailors and marines
deployed throughout the world. The system covers point of sales, ATMs, and other automated
financial services provided to service members.

Information Assurance and e-Government Services. We provide systems and solutions related to
information assurance, security consulting and e-government applications. We also focus on the
design, installation and maintenance of local and wide area networks used to operate the various
U.S government’s Internet-based initiatives. We design electronic filing, procurement and payment
systems for the government agencies involved in those initiatives, along with Internet portals used to
electronically distribute confidential and non-confidential information to other government entities
and the public at large. Several government agencies have e-government applications designed by
Titan, including the Federal Communications Commission, the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, and the Department of Housing and Urban Development.

The War on Terrorism/Homeland Security

- We have been providing homeland security solutions to various government agencies for over
15 years. As with our efforts in our traditional defense business, Titan brings innovation, integration,
deployment, and life cycle service to the national imperative of homeland security and counter terrorism
measures. We provide products and services in the following key homeland security areas:

Support of First Responders. We support first responders through our communications systems
such as APCO 25 compliant radio systems that greatly facilitate interoperability and crisis response.
In addition, we develop, integrate and build emergency mobile command vehicles and systems to
provide backup communications capability to governmental agencies and first responders. We also
provide very realistic training facilities through our. contract to run the Center for National
Response and exercises to prepare first responders for a variety of potential terrorist threats.

* Defending Against Bio-terrorism.  We provide engineering, analytical support, systems development,

and integration of key systems to agencies protecting our country against the threat of chemical and
bio-terrorism. Some examples of our efforts in this area include supporting over 200 cities through
the HHS Metropolitan Medical Response System, and supporting the U.S. Army Soldier and
Biological Chemical Command, which would be the center of any federal government effort to fight
a bio-terrorism attack.

Securing America’s Borders. Protecting America’s cyber borders is a major Titan endeavor, as
network and information technology security and protecting critical infrastructure have become
increasingly important initiatives in national security. We are also working in the areas of
intelligence information distribution, which integrates and fuses near real-time correlated
intelligence data via satellite to intelligence agencies and combatant commanders worldwide.
Additionally, Titan provides the information technology support for the U.S. Customs Service’s
Air & Marine Interdiction Coordination Center, our nation’s focal point for protecting the security
of the United States’ borders from smugglers and terrorists.

21* Century Technology to Secure the Homeland. - We are in various stages of developing several new
technologies to support homeland security, including a new digital data link between aircraft and




the ground, concealed weapons detectors, through-the-wall surveillance capabilities, buried mine
detection devices, fissile material detectors and RF (radio frequency) attack warning chips.

Competition. We are one of many companies involved in providing information systems solutions,
support services and communications products for a variety of programs for agencies of the U.S.
government and civil governments. Most activities in which we engage are very competitive and require
‘that we have highly skilled and experienced technical personnel to compete. Many of our competitors have
significantly greater financial, personnel and other resources than we have. These competitors include
Computer Sciences Corporation, General Dynamics Corporation, Lockheed Martin Corporation (with
whom we have entered into a definitive merger agreement), Northrop Grumman Corporation, Raytheon
Company, and Science Applications International Corporation. In addition, we compete with smaller and
medium sized companies such as: Anteon Corporation, CACI International Inc., Dynamics Research
Corporation, and ViaSat, Inc. We believe that the primary competitive factors for our information systems
solutions, support services and communications products include reputation, technical skills, past contract
performance, experience in the industry, cost competitiveness, and customer relationships.

We view our competitive strengths as follows:

Long Standing Customer Relationships and Experienced Management. We have an extensive
history of providing comprehensive information and communications products, solutions and services
to U.S. defense, intelligence, and civil government agencies. Collectively, Titan’s executives and
general managers have on average approximately 29 years of industry experience and have developed
long-standing, key customer relationships across all of the U.S. military services and several allied
countries. The industry experience of Titan’s executives and general managers has also helped to
develop a significant presence with many civilian government agencies, which has contributed to
Titan’s success in securing new contracts. :

Broad Solution Capabilities. 'We have extensive industry expertise in the development of
comprehensive information and communications products, solutions and services for government
‘customers. We provide products and solutions in areas such as signal processing, antenna design,
low-detection waveforms, computer-aided target and image recognition, satellite communications
hardware and software, and real-time object tracking and targeting. In addition, we have significant
knowledge of legacy information technology and C4ISR systems currently in operation and the ability
to integrate new solutions into existing systems. This ability to provide full-service products, solutions
and services, coupled with our employee base of over 8,700 “Secret” and above-cleared personnel, has
enabled us to bid on larger, more comprehensive government contracts than at any time in our
history. During 2003, we won eight of twelve competitive procurements that we bid with potential
values each exceeding $100 million.

Commercial Businesses

We have restructured our organization to focus our primary efforts on our core national security
business. However, we continue to own all or minority portions of commercial businesses that were built
on technology we developed under government contracts, or acquired through our acquisition of other
defense companies.

" For example, Titan Scan Technologies sells medical equipment sterilization systems and provides
medical equipment sterilization services, utilizing electron beam irradiation technology. Titan Scan
Technologies’ medical equipment sterilization systems are currently used in the medical device production
lines of Guidant Corporation in San Diego, California, Baxter Corporation in the Dominican Republic and
in France, Mediscan in Austria, Rochialle Corporation in Wales, and Isotron in the United Kingdom. Titan
Scan Technologies also offers contract sterilization services for medical product manufacturers at facilities
that it owns in San Diego, California; Denver, Colorado; and Lima, Ohio. Titan Scan has also begun to




market the use of electron beam technology outside of its traditional medical device customer base,
including .the use of electron beam technology to improve material performance in semiconductors,
aerospace composites, wire and cable, plastics and packaging films.

Discontinued Operations

During 2002, our board of directors made the decision to exit a substantial portion of our commercial
businesses, consisting of Titan Wireless, Cayenta, and AverCom and LinCom Wireless, both formerly parts
of our Titan Technologies segment. Prior to these decisions to exit these businesses, we grouped our
business into five segments—Titan Systems, Titan Wireless, Software Systems (including Cayenta), Titan
Technologies and the SureBeam business. We are no longer reporting the results of operations by these
segments, however, reference may be made to these segments in discussions of other historical
information.

Titan Wireless (Discontinued July 11, 2002)

Titan Wireless provided telecommunications services and systems to developing countries primarily in
Africa, Central Asia, the Middle East and Latin America. Despite our low cost technology and efficiency
advantages, competition in the international telecommunications sector drove market rates to levels that
made operations of our telecommunications systems at our size uneconomical. Notably, the bankruptcies
of Global Crossing Ltd., WorldCom, Inc. and PhonelGlobalwide Corporation (formerly Globaltron
Corporation), and the dire financial condition of other providers such as ibasis, imposed a rapid and
sudden deterioration in wholesale prices in 2002. In July 2002, we decided to exit our international
telecommunications businesses through a combination of selling assets or businesses and shutting down
operations. These actions were substantially completed in 2003. Refer to Note 8 to our consolidated
financial statements for further discussion.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, Titan Wireless had revenues of approximately $71.5 million,
which primarily reflected the revenues of our GlobalNet busmess until we sold the business in the third
quarter of 2003

Cayenta (Discontinued March 1, 2002)

Cayenta provided software applications and implementation and integration services to customers to
solve specific business and operating problems. These software applications were tailored for the
customers’ business and operating requirements and made accessible via the Internet. These businesses
were sold in July 2002. Refer to Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

Titan Technologies (Substantially Discontinued August 2002)

In 2002, Titan discontinued its AverCom business which was sold in 2002, its LinCom Wireless
business which was shut down in 2002, and its commermal information technology business which is
currently held for sale

For the year ended December 31, 2003, the dlscontmued operations of Titan Technologies, comprised
of the remaining commercial information technology business, had revenues of approximately
$13.8 million.

Recent Developments

Proposed Merger with Lockheed Martin Corporatzon Lockheed Martin Corporation (Lockheed
Martin) and Titan have entered into a definitive agreement for Lockheed Martin to acquire Titan. Under
the merger agreement, stockholders of Titan may elect to receive $22 per share in cash, an equivalent
amount of Lockheed Martin common stock, or a 50/50 combination of cash and Lockheed Martin




common stock. Stockholders who elect to receive all cash or stock will be subject to pro-ration, so that the
aggregate number of shares of Titan’s common stock to be exchanged for cash and the aggregate number
to be exchanged for Lockheed Martin common stock will each equal 50 percent of the total number of
shares of Titan common stock outstanding on the closing date, other than shares held by Titan and
Lockheed Martin and shares for which dissenter’s rights have been exercised. The total value of this
transaction, including the assumption of about $550 million of Titan debt, is approximately $2.4 billion
before accumulated tax benefits. The transaction has been approved by the boards of directors of each
company and is subject to approval by Titan stockholders and satisfaction or waiver of the other closing
conditions described in the merger agreement, including that there has not been a material adverse change
in Titan. Among other terms, the merger agreement provides that the exchange rate for stockholders who
receive Lockheed Martin common stock will be determined by dividing $22 per share by the average of the
daily high and low sales prices per share of Lockheed Martin common stock on the New York Stock
Exchange (NYSE) composite transaction tape for the 10 trading days preceding the third trading day prior
to the effective date of the merger, subject to specified collars. If the average price exceeds $58 per share
(the Upper Collar), then the exchange rate will be calculated using the Upper Collar instead of the average
price. If the average price is less than $46 per share (the Lower Collar), then the exchange rate will be
calculated using the Lower Collar instead of the average price.

On February 9, 2004, Titan announced that all outstanding shares of its cumulative convertible
preferred stock will be redeemed at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on March 15, 2004. The redemption is
being undertaken in anticipation of and as a condition to the close of the proposed merger with Lockheed
Martin but is not contingent on the merger closing. The convertible preferred shares are redeemable at
Titan’s option at a redemption price of $20 per share, plus cumulative dividends in arrears, for an
aggregate redemption price of $20.03 per share. Titan will redeem the shares using available cash balances.
The preferred stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “TTN_Pr” and closed at
$19.85 per share on March 8, 2004. Holders of Titan’s convertible preferred stock also have an existing
right to convert each of their shares into 0.781 shares of Titan’s common stock. The right to convert the
convertible preferred stock will terminate at 5:00 p.m., New York City Time, on March 15, 2004, the date
of redemption. As of February 9, 2004, there were 686,724 shares of convertible preferred stock
outstanding. To the extent that all of these shares are converted, then approximately 536,331 shares of
Titan common stock would be issued. Any shares of convertible preferred stock that are not converted will
be redeemed

In response to concerns ralsed by the U S. government concerning organizational conflicts of interest
certain of our contracts might create with Lockheed Martin’s existing businesses, in the first quarter of
2004, we have divested certain contracts with organizational conflict of interest provisions and the related
business unit where these conflicts could not be mitigated to the satisfaction of the customer. Neither the

‘revenues associated with the divested contracts, nor the divestiture transaction itself, were material to us.

Refer to Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements for a discussion of the impact of the
proposed merger on Titan’s outstanding debt.

Refer to “Item 3—Legal Proceedings” and “Item 7-—Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Results of Operations and Financial Condition—Risk Factors—Risks Related to our Business” for
discussion of legal and other matters relating to the recently announced internal and governmental
investigations into whether payments involving our foreign consultants were made in violation of
applicable law and related issues. In relation to the investigations, after consideration of publicly available
information of recent resolutions of other Foreign Corrupt Practices Act issues, and following discussions
with legal counsel, we have recorded a $3.0 million provision as of and for the year ended December 31,
2003, representing our estimate of poteﬁtial liabilities related to this matter. This provision was not
included in the consolidated statements of operations that we previously issued in connection with our
announcement of fourth quarter and full year results and filed with the SEC on Form 8-K dated
February 23, 2004. ‘




In the year ended December 31, 2003, Titan incurred $2.2 million in transaction costs related to the
proposed merger, which are reflected as merger related costs in the accompanying consolidated statements
of operations.

Government Contracts

A substantial portion of our revenues are dependent upon continued funding of United States and
allied government agencies, as well as continued funding of the programs targeted by our businesses. Our
revenues from U.S. government business represented approximately 96% of our total revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2003. Any significant reductions in the funding of United States government agencies
or in the funding of programs targeted by our busmesses could materially and adversely affect our
operating results:

" US. government contracts are subject to termination for convenience by the government, as well as
termination, reduction or modification in the event of budgetary constraints or any change in the
government’s requirements. When we subcontract with prime contractors, such subcontracts are also
subject to the ability of the prime contractor to perform its obligations under its prime contract. We often
have little or no control over the resources allocated by the prime contractor to the prime contract, and any
failure by the prime contractor to perform its obligations under the prime contract could result in our loss
of our subcontract. In 2003, approximately 20% of our revenue was derived under subcontracts with prime
contractors. In addition, our con_tract-re’lated costs and fees, including allocated indirect costs, are subject
to audits and adjustments by negotiation between us and the U.S. government. As part of the audit
process, the government audit agency verifies that all charges made by a contractor against a contract are
legitimate and appropriate. Audits may result in recalculation of contract revenues and
non-reimbursement of some contract costs and fees. Any audits of our cortract-related costs and fees
could result in material adjustments to our revenues. In addition, U.S. government -contracts are
conditioned upon the continuing availability of congressional appropriations. Congress usually
appropriates funds on a fiscal year. basis even though contract performance may take several years.
Consequently, at the outset of a major program, the contract is usually incrementally funded and
additional funds are normally committed to the contract by the procuring agency as Congress makes
appropriations for future fiscal years. Any failure of such agencies to continue to fund such contracts could
have a material adverse effect on our operating results.

‘ Our business with the:U.S. government' and prime contractors is generally performed under .cost

reimbursable, fixed-price or time and materials contracts. Cost reimbursable contracts for the government
provide for reimbursement of costs plus the payment of a fee. Some cost-reimbursable contracts include
incentive fees that are awarded based on performance on the contract. Under fixed-price contracts, we
agree to perform certain work for a fixed price. Under time and materials contracts, we are reimbursed for
labor hours at negotiated hourly billing rates and are reimbursed for travel and other direct expenses at
actual costs plus applied general and administrative expense. The following table gives the percentage of
revenues realized by us from the three primary types of government contracts during the periods indicated.

i . Year Ended December 31,
Contract Type 2003 2002 2001

Time and Materials . ............ A 38.9% 42.6% 41.5%
Cost Reimbursable ............................ ... 438 363 393
Fixed-Price ........... e Cee e ... 1730 2110 192

100.0% 100.0% 100.0%




Backlog

Many of our contracts with the U.S. government are funded by the procuring agency from year to
year, primarily based on its fiscal requirements. This results in two different categories of U.S. government
backlog: funded and unfunded backiog. “Funded backlog” consists of the aggregate contract revenues
remaining to be earned by us at a given time, but only to the extent such amounts have been appropriated
by Congress and allocated to the contract by the procuring government agency. Although funded backlog
is appropriated by Congress, we cannot guarantee that cancellations or scope adjustments will not occur.
The majority of funded backlog represents contracts under the terms of which cancellation by the customer
would entitle us to all or a portion of our costs incurred and potential cancellation fees. “Unfunded
backlog” consists of the aggregate contract revenues expected to be earned as our customers incrementally
allot funding to existing contracts, whether we are acting as a prime contractor or subcontractor, and the
aggregate contract revenues expected to be earned on funding of new contracts awarded to us. Unfunded
backlog includes priced optlons which consist of the aggregate contract revenues expected to be earned as
a result of a customer exercising an option period that has been specifically defined in the original contract
award. “Backlog” is the total of the government and commercial funded and unfunded backlog.

Our backlog consisted of the following approximate amounts as of the following dates:

As of December 31,

Backlog : 2003 2002 2001
- V - (in thousands)

U.S. Government funded backlog. ......... $ 913582 § 695598 $ 545569
U.S. Government unfunded backlog ........ 4,263,641 3,306,244 2,231,052
Commercial backlog .. ................. 29,529 39,568 26,788
Total backlog ................ .. ...... $5,206, 752 $4,041,410 $2,803,409

We expect to realize approx1mately 34.2% of our December 31, 2003 total backlog by December 31,
2004.

Management believes that year-to-year comparisons of backlog are not necessarily indicative of future
revenues. The actual timing of receipt of revenues, if any, on projects included in backlog could change
because many factors affect the scheduling of projects and the amount of funding of projects. In addition,
cancellations or adjustments to contracts may occur. Backlog is subject to large variations from quarter to
quarter as existing contracts are renewed or new contracts are awarded. Additionally, all United States
government contracts included in backlog, whether or not funded, may be terminated at the convenience
of the United States government. No assurance can be given as to when and if revenue will be realized on
projects included within our backlog.

Manufacturing

We operate both fabrication and assembly facilities and also purchase certain components and
assemblies from other suppliers. We also use contract manufacturers for some of our products. No one
contract manufacturer or supplier accounts for a significant portion of total purchases or revenues. With
the exception of the contract manufacturer we are utilizing to manufacture and construct our X-Craft
vessel, we do not rely on any one supplier as a single source for a material project. While we use care in
selecting our manufacturers, our use of contract manufacturers gives us less control over the reliability of
supply, quality and price of products or components than if we manufactured our products ourselves. We
risk disruptions in our supply of products and components if these suppliers fail or are unable to perform
because of strikes, natural disasters, financial condition or other factors.




Patents, Trademarks and Trade Secrets

Our policy is to apply for patents and other appropriate statutory protection when we develop new or
improved technology, although we do not rely on patent protection in the normal course of our
government contract operations. We presently hold over 100 U.S. and foreign issued patents, as well as a
number of trademarks and copyrights. We do not rely, however, solely on these statutory protections to
protect our technology and intellectual property. In addition to seeking patent protection for our
inventions, we rely on the laws of unfair competition and trade secrets to protect our unpatented
‘proprietary rights. We attempt to protect our trade secrets and other unpatented proprietary information
through agreements with customers, vendors, employees and consultants. In addition, various names used
by us for our products and services have been registered with the United States Patent and Trademark
Office.

Third parties could independently develop competing technology or design around our technology. If
we are unable to successfully detect infringement and enforce our rights in our technology, we may lose
competitive position in the applicable market. We cannot be certain that our means of protecting our
proprietary rights in the U.S. or abroad will be adequate or that competlng companies will not
independently develop similar technology. '

To date we have not been notified that our technologies infringe the proprietary rights of any third
parties, but third parties may, in the future, claim that our current or future technologies infringe upon
their proprietary rights. In addition, third parties have and may continue to challenge the validity or
enforceability of our proprietary rights. Any such claim, whether meritorious or not, could be time
consuming, result in costly litigation, cause delays in our development of technologies and products, or
require us to enter into royalty or licensing agreements. Such royalty or licensing agreements may not be
available on terms acceptable to us, or at all. As a result, any such claim could harm our business and
prospects.

Research and Development

We maintain a staff of engineers, other scientific professionals and support personnel engaged in
development of new applications of technology and improvement of existing products. These programs’
costs are expensed as incurred. Titan-funded research and development expenditures were $11.3 million in
the year ended December 31, 2003. A portion of our research and development activities during 2003 was
customer-funded and as such was paid for through contract revenues with an associated expense in
operating expenses. All of our customer-funded research and development activity is funded under
contracts with the U.S. government and is not included in research and development expense.

Government and Environmental Regulatidns

We must comply with and are affected by various government regulations. These regulations affect
how we and our customers can do business and, in some instances, impose added costs to our businesses.
Any changes in applicable laws could adversely affect the financial performance of the business affected by
the changed regulations. Any failure to comply with applicable laws could result in material fines and
penalties or affect how we conduct our business in the future.

We are subject to environmental and safety laws and regulations governing the use, storage and
disposal of hazardous substances or wastes and imposing liability for the cleanup of contamination from
these substances. Although our business is not generally involved in the handling of hazardous materials,
we cannot completely eliminate the risk of contamination or injury from these substances or wastes, and in
the event of such an incident, we could be held liable for any damages that result. From time to time, we
have been notified of violations of government and environmental regulations. We attempt to correct these
violations promptly without any material impact on our operations. In addition, we may be required to
incur significant additional costs to comply with environmental laws and regulations in the future. These
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costs, and any future violations or liability under environmental laws or regulations, could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Employees

As of December 31, 2003, we employed approximately 11,500 employees, most of whom were located
in the United States. As of December 31, 2003, we were subject to collective bargaining agreements with
respect to 34 employees. We believe that our relationships with our employees are satisfactory.

General Information

We were incorporated in Delaware in 1969. Our executive offices are at 3033 Science Park Road, San
Diego, CA 92121, and our telephone number is (858) 552-9500. Our website address is www.titan.com. We
make available free of charge through our website our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports
on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and all amendments for those reports as soon as reasonably
practicable after such material is electronically furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission.

We also provide access on our website to our Corporate Governance Principles: our Code of Ethics,
the charters of our Audit, Nominating and Corporate Governance, and Compensation Committees.
Copies of these documents are available without charge to any stockholder upon written request to our
corporate secretary at our headquarters address. In addition, we will disclose on our website any changes

" to, or waivers from, our Code of Ethics.

Item 2. Properties

Our operations’ facilities occupy approximately 3,011,300 square feet of space located primarily
throughout the United States. The large majority of the space is office space. Substantially all of our
facilities are leased. We describe our lease commitments in Note 12 to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

As a result of the merger of Titan Systems Corporation into The Titan Corporation in
September 2002, a charge of approximately $32.2 million was taken in 2002 for the consolidation of various
Titan Systems facilities into centralized locations in Virginia and California. This charge reflects the
estimated losses, net of estimated sublease income, on future lease commitments of facilities with terms
extending through year 2009 and representing approximately 395,000 square feet of excess space. We have
subleased certain of these facilities and continue to actively pursue additional sublease opportunities for
the remaining facilities. However, the remaining available space is in markets adversely affected by the
economy and may not be subleased at attractive rates or at all. The actual amount of estimated losses on
these lease commitments could change based upon Titan’s ability to obtain sublease arrangements for
these facilities.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Recently Announced Governmental Investigations

On February 13, 2004, we announced that representatives of Lockheed Martin and Titan recently
initiated meetings with the Department of Justice and the Securities and Exchange Commission to advise
of an internal review relating to certain agreements between Titan and international consultants or
representatives and related payments in foreign countries. We have been sharing the results of the internal
review with the Department of Justice and the SEC. We also announced we had learned that the SEC had
commenced an investigation into whether payments involving foreign consultants were made in violation
of applicable law. On March 5, 2004, we learned that the Department of Justice had opened a criminal
inquiry into this matter. We have continued our internal review relating to these issues, in cooperation with
Lockheed Martin Corporation, which is conducting a parallel review in connection with its proposed




acquisition of Titan. The SEC has issued a subpoena for production of documents, but has suspended
actual production of documents at this time. We intend to continue to cooperate fully with the Department
of Justice and the SEC in connection with their investigation of the matters under review.

As part of our ongoing review, we and Lockheed Martin learned of allegations that improper
payments were made, or items of value were provided, by our consultants to foreign officials. The alleged
payments or provision of items of value, if true, raise questions concerning whether there has been a
violation of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act or other applicable law. In the course of our investigation,
information has been identified that may indicate that there have been violations of U.S. or foreign law
arising out of payments involving our foreign representatives. These matters are subject to ongoing
Department of Justice and SEC review. See “Item 7—Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations—Risk Factors.” If the government determines that unlawful
payments were made, the government could take action against us and/or some of our employees. These
actions could include criminal and civil fines, penalties, criminal sanctions and limitations on our or our
affected businesses’ ability to export.products or enter into future U.S. government contracts.

Information gathered as part of the internal review raises questions as to whether applicable law has
been violated. In relation to the government investigations, after consideration of factors including publicly
available information of recent resolutions of other FCPA issues, and following discussions with legal
counsel, we have recorded a $3.0 million provision as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003,
representing our estimate of potential liabilities related to this matter. The ultimate resolution of this
matter is dependent upon the final results of such inquiries and investigations and associated liabilities, if
any, could be different from the amount currently estimated.

Other Proceedings

On January 23, 2004, Titan, together with its wholly owned subsidiaries, Titan Wireless, Inc. and Titan
Africa, Inc., were named as defendants in Gonzales Communications, Inc. v. Titan Wireless, Inc., Titan
Africa, Inc., The Titan Corporation, Geolution International Inc., Mundi Development, Inc., a lawsuit filed in
the U.S. District Court. for the Southern District of California. The complaint relates to the purchase by
Gonzales Communications of equipment and related services under an equipment purchase agreement
entered into with Titan Wireless in June 2001. Gonzales Communications contends that the equipment
delivered was unsatisfactory. In the complaint, Gonzales Communications seeks direct damages in the
amount of $0.9 million plus interest, represénting the amount Gonzales Communications alleges to have
previously paid under the agreement, and consequential damages of approximately $16.3 million. To date,
Titan and its subsidiaries have not received payment in full under the agreement for the equipment that
was delivered to Gonzales Communications. We believe that the claims of Gonzales Communications are
without merit, and we intend to defend our position vigorously.

Since September 2003, Titan has been named as a defendant in the following purported class action
lawsuits each filed on behalf of holders of common stock of SureBeam Corporation, a former subsidiary of
Titan: (1) Bernd Bilstein, IRA v. SureBeam Corporation, et. al., filed in the U.S. District Court for the
Southern District of New York on September 10, 2003; (2) Steven Morrow v. SureBeam Corporation, et. al.,
filed in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of California on October 23, 2003; and (3) Gordon
Reed v. Oberkfell, et. al, filed in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of California on
December 24, 2003. Both the Bilstein and Morrow complaints allege that Titan, as a “control person” of
SureBeam within the meaning of the Securities Act, should be held liable for allegedly false and misleading
statements contained in the prospectus issued in connection with SureBeam’s initial public offering in
March 2001. SureBeam and certain investment banks serving as lead underwriters in SureBeam’s offering
also were named as defendants in both the Bilstein and Morrow complaints. The Reed complaint alleges
that Titan, as the then majority stockholder of SureBeam, breached fiduciary duties owed to the minority
stockholders by, among other things, causing SureBeam to go public with false and misleading statements
contained in the prospectus for SureBeam’s initial public offering, grossly mismanaging SureBeam to

13



Titan’s benefit and by being unjustly enriched at the expense and detriment of SureBeam. SureBeam and
certain officers and directors of SureBeam also were named as defendants in the Reed complaint. Dr. Ray
and Susan Golding, two of Titan’s current directors, were named as defendants in the Bilstein and Reed
complaints in their capacity as directors of SureBeam. The plaintiffs in the Bilstein, Morrow and Reed
complaints seek unspecified statutory damages from Titan. We believe that the allegations contained in
these complaints are without merit, and we intend to defend the claims vigorously.

On August 16, 2002, Perimex International Corporation (Perimex) filed a complaint against Titan,
Titan Wireless and a former Titan Wireless employee in San Diego Superior Court in San Diego,
California. The complaint alleged breach of contract, breach of the covenant of good faith and fair dealing,
intentional interference with existing contractual relationships and prospective business advantage and
violation of the California unfair competition law arising from an alleged failure of Titan Wireless to enter
a joint venture with Perimex to provide wireless telecommunication services in Argentina and other related
alleged misconduct. The complaint sought damages of $52.65 million' and sought injunctive relief
prohibiting Titan and Titan Wireless from transferring any of Titan Wireless’ assets. The court denied
Perimex’s request for a preliminary injunction, sustained Titan’s and Titan Wireless’ demurrer as to all
causes of dction in the complaint and granted Perimex leave to amend the complaint. Perimex dismissed its
complaint voluntarily without prejudice. On May 22, 2003, however, Perimex filed a new complaint in the
United States district court for the Southern District of California alleging substantially similar causes of
action and claiming a similar amount of damages. We believe that Perimex’s claims are without merit, and
we intend to defend our position vigorously.

In October 2002, we received a grand jury subpoena from the Antitrust Division of the Department of
Justice requesting the production of documents relating to information technology services performed for
the Air Force at Hanscom Air Force Base in Massachusetts. We have been informed that other companies
who have performed such services have received subpoenas as well. We are not aware of any illegal or
inappropriate conduct, and we have been and will continue to cooperate fully with the investigation.

In March 2003, we received a subpoena from the Office of Inspector General for the National
Aeronautics and Space Administration, or NASA, seeking certain records relating to billing for labor
services in connection with our contracts with NASA., We' also received a subpoena from the Office of
Inspector General for the General Services Administration, or GSA, seeking similar records relating to
billing for labor categories in connection with contracts with GSA. We are not aware of any illegal or
inappropriate conduct, and we are fully cooperating with the government’s inquiries in these areas.

We are involved in legal actions in the normal course of our business, including audits and
investigations by various governmental agencies that result from our work as a defense contractor. Titan
and its subsidiaries are named as defendants in legal proceedings from time to time and third parties,
including the government, may assert claims against Titan from time to time. In addition, Titan has
acquired companies from time to time that have legal actions pending against them at the time of
acquisition. :

Based upon current information available to us, in the opinion of management, the amount of
ultimate liability or recovery with respect to these other actions and proceedings is not expected to
materially affect our consclidated financial position or results of operations taken as a whole. However,
our evaluation of the likely impact of these other actions and proceedings could change in the future, and
an unfavorable outcome, depending upon the amount and timing, could have a materlal adverse effect on
our results of operations or cash flows in a future period.

Item 4. Submission of Matters To a Vote of Security Holders

No information is required by Item 4.
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PART II
Item 5. Market for the Company’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Titan’s common stock and cumulative convertible preferred stock are traded on the New York Stock
Exchange (NYSE). As of February 9, 2004, there were approximately 3,590 holders of record of our
common stock and 430 holders of record of our preferred stock, excluding beneficial owners of shares held
in the names of brokers or other nominees. The closing prices for the common and preferred stock on the
NYSE as of February 23, 2004, were $20.90 and $19.95, respectively. The quarterly market price ranges
based on the high and low sales prices for our common and preferred stock on the NYSE in 2003 and 2002
were as follows: :

Common Stock

: 2003 2002
Fiscal Quarter High Low High Low
First . ..o e $12.35 §$ 6.82 §$18.66 $12.64
Second .. ... . ... e 10.88 6.80 17.43 12',72
Third ....... [ 21.60 10.01 13.64 6.62
Fourth ....... ... . ... i 21.89 20.80 13.94 8.86
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock
’ 2003 2002
Fiscal Quarter . ' High Low High - Low
First . ... e e e .. $17.50 $15.15 $2040 $18.20
8econd L. . 1740 1550 19.80 17.15
Third ... .o e 20.35 16.85 17.10 13.30
Fourth ......... e e e 20.25 19.84 17.35 15.30

No cash dividends were paid on Titan’s common stock in 2003 or 2002. Regular quarterly dividends of
$.25 per share were paid on the cumulative convertible preferred stock in both years.

On August 5, 2002, we distributed to our stockholders in the form of a dividend 0.6986 shares of
SureBeam Corporation for each outstanding share of Titan common stock, The common stock prices
presented above for periods before August 5, 2002 are restated stock prices and reflect the distribution of
our ownership in SureBeam to our stockholders. The market prices were restated by dividing by 1.345, the
same adjustment made by Titan to outstanding Titan stock options to maintain the same aggregate
intrinsic value of the stock options as before the spin-off. See Note 14 to our consolidated financial
statements.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2003:

Number of
securities remaining
available for future

Number of ‘ issuance under equity
securities to be Weighted average compensation plans
issued upon exercise price of (excluding securities
exercise of options  outstanding options  reflected in column (a))
(Shares in thousands) (a) (b) ()
Equity compensation plans approved by
stockholders . .. .................... 9,648 $9.04 4,091
Equity compensation plans not approved by
stockholders . . . .................... — — —_
Total . ... 9,648 $9.04 4,091

|
|
|

Item 6. Selected Financial Data (in thousands of dollars, except per share data)

The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and the related notes and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” The selected consolidated statement of operations data
presented below for each of the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, and the balance sheet
data at December 31, 2003 and 2002 are derived from our consolidated financial statements included in
this filing. The consolidated statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 2000
and the balance sheet data at December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999 are derived from audited consolidated
financial statements not included in this document.

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Operating Results: '
Revenues ................... e $1,775,007 $1,392,160 § 974,497 $846,208 $741,225
Income (loss) from continuing operations

before cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle ... ......... P 29,951 (13,244) (3,457) (15,334) 37,660
Income (loss) from continuing operations

before cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle per common share: ‘ )
Basic . ... $ 037 § (18) $ (13) $ (034) § .78

Diluted ............... ... ........ 0.35 (.18) (:13) (0.34) .70
Financial Position:
Cash, cash equivalents and investments . . . . . $ 26974 § 34,123 $§ 18,621 $ 6,447 $'12,970
Total @sSets .. ... oo i it i 1,290,635 1,297,442 1,451,919 951,209 627,550
Amounts outstanding under lines of credit, . :

longterm......................... 341,250 344,750 317,187 260,625 215,014
Other long-termdebt. . .............. .. 200,988 2,045 5,612 1,250 5,749

. Company obligated mandatory redeemable

convertible preferred securities . ........ — 250,000 250,000 250,000 —
Stockholders’ equity . . ........... e " 371,409 312,313 496,958 167,416 166,348
Preferred dividends .. ................. 688 689 690 692 695
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion And Analysis Of Financial Condition And Resuits Of Operations
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share data, or as otherwise noted.)

The following discussion is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed information and consolidated
financial statements, including the notes thereto, included in this document. The following discussion of
our financial condition and results of operations contains forward looking statements that involve risks and
uncertainties. Our actual results may differ materially from what is discussed in the forward-looking
statements. Factors that might cause such differences include those discussed below under the heading
“Risk Factors.”

Overview and Outlook

The Titan Corporation is a leading technology developer and systems integrator for the Department
of Defense, the Department of Homeland Security, and intelligence and other key government agencies.
We provide a range of services and systems solutions. These solutions and services include research and
development, design, installation, integration, test, logistics support, maintenance and training. We also
provide services and solutions to government agencies with sophisticated information systems. These
include information processing, information fusion, data management, and communication systems. In
addition, we develop and produce digital imaging products, sensors, lasers, electro-optical systems, threat
simulation/training systems, intelligence electronic hardware, signal intercept systems, and complex
military specific systems. ‘ '

We focus on the following four markets: C4ISR (Command, Control, Communications, Computers,
Intelligence, Surveillance and Reconnaissance), Transformational Programs, Enterprise Information
Technology, and the War on Terrorism/Homeland Security.

During the past three years, our revenues have grown organically by using our broader capabilities to
win larger, more complex and long-term government contracts, and through acquisitions of other
government information technology companies.

Our operating margins are affected by the mix of contract types (cost reimbursable, fixed-price or time
and materials) as well as by the mix of prime contracts versus subcontracts. Significant portions of our
contracts are time and materials and cost reimbursable contracts. We are reimbursed for labor hours at
negotiated hourly billing rates and other direct expenses under time and materials contracts and
reimbursed for all actual costs, plus a fixed or incentive-based fee, or profit, under cost reimbursable
contracts. The financial risks under time and material and cost reimbursable contracts generally are lower
than those associated with other types of contracts, and margins are also typically lower than those on
fixed-price contracts. The U.S. government also has awarded us fixed-price contracts. Such contracts carry
higher financial risks because we must deliver the products, systems or contracted services at a cost below
the fixed price in order-to earn a profit. Of our total revenues from our government business in 2003,
approximately 39% were generated by time and materials contracts, approximately 44% were generated by
cost reimbursable contracts, and approximately 17% were generated by fixed-price contracts.

As a result of our decision in the third quarter of 2002 to exit substantially all of our remaining
commercial businesses, as discussed in “Discontinued Operations” below, and because most of our
remaining operations are our government businesses, we merged our Titan Systems Corporation
subsidiary, which encompassed our primary government businesses, into The Titan Corporation on
September 25, 2002 (see Note 14 to our consolidated financial statements). In accordance with SEAS
No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”, substantially all of our
operations are aggregated into one reportable segment given the similarities of economic characteristics
between the operations and the common nature of the products, services, and customers. Prior to these
developments, we grouped our businesses into five business segments—Titan Systems, Titan Wireless,
Software Systems (including Cayenta), Titan Technologies and the SureBeam business. As discussed below,
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we are no longer reporting the results of operations by these segments, however, reference may be made to
these segments in discussions of other historical information.

The following tables set forth the results of operations expressed in dollars (in thousands) and as a
percentage of revenues for the years below:

" Consolidated Financial Data

Year Ended December 31,

2003 C 2002 2001
REVENMUES . . . v i ettt e e $1,775,007 $1,392,160 $974,497
Cost Of TEVEINUES . . . v ittt e et e e e e 1,478,631 1,129,061 755,115
Selling, general and administrative ....................... 163,919 179,559 154,514
Research and development . ... ......... ... ... ... ... .. 11,324 9,555 9,310
Impairment charge related to SureBeam . .. ... e 15,757 — —
Exit and restructuring charges and other .. . ................ —_ 53,317 -
Acquisition and integration related charges and other.......... — — 27,847
Mergerrelated COStS. . .. ... oo o 2,247 — —
Operating profit............ PP e .. 103,129 20,668 27,711
Interest expense, Net . ........ ... ot (32,248) (30,956)  (34,890)
Debt extinguishment costs . .............. ... ... . .... (12,423) (9,435) —
Lossoninvestments .. ................o.vou..s PN (6,154) — —
Income tax provision (benefit) .............. ... .. ... ... 22,353 (6,479) 1,007
Minority interests . . .. ... ... . e . — . — 4,729
Loss from discontinued operations, net . . .. ... e (854) (218,106)  (95,157)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net........ — (40,111) —
Net income (I0SS) . . . v vt v ot e vt et e e $ 29,097 $ (271,461) $(98,614)

As a Percentage of Revenues

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
REVENUES . . v oee e eeeeenns P . 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
- CoSt Of TEVENUES . .. .ottt e 833. 811 77.4
Selling, general and administrative .............. .. ... ... i 9.2 129 15.9
Research and development .. ............ ... ... . ... e 0.7 0.7 1.0
Impairment charge related to SureBeam ...................... PR 0.9 — —
Exit and restructuring chargesandother .. .......... ... ... ..o oL — 38 —
Acquisition and integration related charges and other......... e — — 2.9
Merger related COSES . . . . . ..o o ittt i e 01 — —
Operating profit. . . ........... .. ... . i e 5.8 1.5 2.8
Interest €Xpense, MEt . . .. .ottt i (1.8) (2.2) (3.6)
Debt extinguishment COSES . ... ..o vuieer et ... (07 (07 —
Loss oninvestments . .. ........ ...ttt 03 = — —
Income tax provision (benefit) .............. F 13 (0.5) 0.1
Minority interests . . .. ............ et e — — 0.5
Loss from discontinued operations, net .. ................. ... . ..., 0.1y (157 9.7
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net. .. ............. — (2.9) —
Net income .(loss). . .......... T - 16% (19.5)% (10.1)%

18




Results of Operations

Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2002, and 2003

Revenues

Our consolidated revenues increased from $974.5 million in 2001 to $1.4 billion in 2002 and from
$1.4 billion in 2002 to $1.8 billion in 2003. Revenues in 2003 increased in part due to the increased work on
the linguists contract with the U.S. Army’s Intelligence and Security Command, which contributed
increased revenues of approximately $112.1 million, and increased work on the contract to provide
enterprise information technology support for the U.S. Special Operatlons Command which contributed
increased revenues of approximately $37.5 million. Revenues from the U.S. Navy also grew $42.2 million
over 2002 due to increased work on development contracts for the X-Craft and affordable weapons for the
Office of Naval Research. Revenues from enterprise information technology work for the Navy on a
worldwide intelligence network contributed increased revenues of approximately $31.7 million, and
enterprise architecture and decision support for the National Security Agency contributed revenues of
approximately $20.5 million to the increase. Aside from the linguist and enterprise information technology
contracts mentioned above, which represent 7.0% and 3.5% of total revenue, respectively, no single
contract accounted for more than 2.0% of total revenue in 2003. The acquisitions of Wave Science, Inc., in
the third quarter of 2002 and Jaycor, Inc., in March of 2002, contributed an aggregate of approximately
$20.2 million to the total revenue increase. Revenue growth in 2002 was primarily attributable to organic
revenue growth and the impact of the acquisition of Jaycor, Inc., and a full year of operations generated by
Datron Systems (Datron) and BTG, Inc. (BTG), companies acquired in the latter half of 2001, which
contributed an aggregate of approximately $361 million to the increase in 2002. The organic revenue
growth in 2002 reflects increased demand from the intelligence community and Homeland Security
agencies, including systems integration services and cryptological equipment for U.S. and Allied
intelligence agencies, vulnerability assessments and first responder operations training on Homeland
Security contracts, and Armed Services technical services such as linguist support, specifically related to
the war on terrorism. Increased revenues in 2002 were also driven by the ramp up of work on Titan’s
enterprise information technology contract with the U.S. Special Operations Command, and work for the
Air Force’s Electronic Systems Center on a variety of technical, engineering and acquisition support
contracts.

Selling, General aﬁd Administrative

Our SG&A expenses increased from $154.5 million in 2001 to $179.6 million in 2002 and decreased
from $179.6 million in 2002 to $163.9 million in 2003. SG&A, as a percentage of revenues, decreased from
15.9% in 2001 to 12.9% in 2002 and from 12.9% in 2002 to 9.2% in 2003. The 2003 SG&A included
amortization of purchased intangibles of $4.4 million and deferred compensation amortization of
$7.2 million. The 2002 SG&A was impacted by amortization of purchased intangibles of $5.7 million
compared to amortization of goodwill of $10.0 million in 2001, and an increase in the amortization of
deferred compensation from $4.3 million in 2001 to $27.8 million in 2002. The amortization of deferred
compensation in 2002 includes approximately $23.3 million resulting from the merger of Titan’s national
security subsidiary, Titan Systems, into Titan, which occurred on September 25, 2002, and resuited in the
exchange of all outstanding Titan Systems stock options for Titan Corporation stock options. For further
details regarding deferred compensation, please refer to Note 14 to our consolidated financial statements.
The decrease in SG&A from 2003 and 2002 was attributable to the decrease in amortization noted above
as well as cost reduction and consolidation activities initiated in early 2002 that reduced our SG&A
expenses necessary to operate our business and support our revenue growth. The decreases as a
percentage of revenues in 2003 and 2002 were attributable to these cost savmgs as well as overall increased
economies of scale with higher revenues.
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Research and Development

Our R&D expenses increased from $9.3 million in 2001 to $9.6 million in 2002 and from $9.6 million
in 2002 to $11.3 million in 2003. R&D expenses in 2003 were incurred primarily on the development of a
low cost phased array radar system, secure communications devices, satellite communications modems and
the HF ‘manpack and portable radios. The increased R&D expenditures in 2002 compared to 2001 were
primarily attributable to increased development expenses incurred to develop software reprogrammable
modems and digital radios for military and homeland security applications. As a' percentage of revenues,
R&D remained at 1% or less in all periods. :

Impalrment Charge Related to SureBeam

Prior to and in connection with the spin-off of SureBeam Corporation, Titan and SureBeam entered
into a number of agreements. Titan extended a $50 million secured senior credit facﬂlty of which
$25 million in principal was advanced and is outstandlng as of December 31, 2003. The senior credit facility
is secured by a lien on substantially all of SureBeam’s assets. In addition, Titan guaranteed certain lease
obligations of SureBeam and subleased facilities to SureBeam. Titan is SuréBeam’s only secured lender.
The aggregate amount of the lease obligations Titan has guaranteed as of December 31, 2003, is
approximately $18.6 million. The leases extend through periods ending in 2023. The aggregate amount due
to Titan as of December 31, 2003 for future obligations under the sublease agreements for approximately
63,800 square feet for perlods through 2010 is appr0x1mate1y $4.9 million. SureBeam’s obligation to
reimburse Titan for any amounts paid under the guarantees is secured under the senior credit facility.

On January 19, 2004, SureBeam voluntarily filed for: bankruptcy relief to be lxquldated under Chapter
7 of the United States Bankruptcy Code. As a result of this filing, we recorded an estimated pre-tax
impairment charge of $15.8 million (and an associated tax benefit of $6.3 million) in the fourth quarter of
2003 related to the senior credit facility with SureBeam as well as SureBeam’s other indebtedness and
obligations to us. The ultimate amount of impairment to be recognized is contingent upon the amount of
actual proceeds recovered by Titan from the liquidation of collateral securing the senior credit facility. The
current estimate of such proceeds, which includes estimated sales of equipment and inventory, primarily
electron beam systems and other related components, is approximately $9.0 million. The ultimate
impairment is also dependent upon Titan’s ability to mitigate its obligations under the facilities lease
guarantees through subleases, and loan repayments from Hawaii Pride (as discussed below). The current
estimate of such mitigation of obligations under leases and lease guarantees is approximately $16.8 million,
The impairment charge was offset by an $8.1 million liability previously accrued by Titan to -SureBeam
under a Tax Allocation Agreement. The actual amount of Titan’s losses could be lower or higher than
currently estimated depending on the amount of SureBeam liquidation proceeds received and the amount
of net payments made under its lease guarantees issued on behalf of SureBeam and bank debt guarantee
related to Hawaii Pride. Refer to Note 5 to our consolidated financial statements for further discussion of
Titan’s agreements with SureBeam.

On March 4, 2004, we entered in a settlement agreement with the bankruptcy trustee for SureBeam
and its subsidiary. The settlement agreement requires bankrutpcy court approval to become effective.
Under the settlement agreement, we will have an allowed secured claim in the amount of a minimum of
approximately $47.9 million and a first priority perfected lien on all assets of SureBeam other than certain
identified assets of SureBeam. Upon effectiveness of the settlement agreement, the automatic stays in the
bankruptcy will be modified to permit us to exercise our rights and remedies as a secured creditor and
sublessor, including the right to dispose of collateral. As part of the settlement, we also agreed to
undertake commercially reasonable efforts to collect two receivables of SureBeam that by agreement are
excluded from our collateral and to deliver the proceeds to the bankruptcy trustee.

In relation to SureBeam’s strategic alliance with Hawaii Pride, Titan has guaranteed repayment of
Hawaii Pride’s bank debt up to the greater of SureBeam’s equity interest in Hawaii Pride (which is zero),




or 19.9% of Hawaii Pride’s $6.8 million, 15-year loan from its lender, WebBank. As of December 31, 2003,
Titan has guaranteed approximately $1.2 million, or 19.9% of the current loan balance of $5.9 million. In
the event that Hawaii Pride defaults on the loan, Titan currently expects to be obligated to cover any
defaults on the entire outstanding balance of the loan if the default is not cured within 90 days. In late
October 2003, Titan was notified by Hawaii Pride that Hawaii Pride had stopped receiving financial
support from SureBeam and did not have sufficient cash resources to make its monthly principal and
interest payments to WebBank. Through March 8, 2004, Titan has loaned approximately $0.2 million to
Hawaii Pride under a new credit facility for a maximum amount of $0.45 million to be advanced to Hawaii
Pride to cover shortfalls in debt service payments. All amounts outstanding under this facility are required
to be repaid by May 2005. In the impairment charge discussed above, Titan has assumed that Hawaii Pride
will repay amounts advanced on the new credit facility.

Exit and Restructuring Charges &nd Other

Included in the year ended December 31, 2002, is $53.3 million of restructuring costs related to the
merger of Titan Systems into Titan on September 25, 2002, and exit charges related to the shutdown of
Cayenta’s headquarters office. Approximately $11.7 million of these exit charges are related to the
shutdown of the Cayenta headquarters office and network operations center, which includes employee
termination costs and other liabilities of approximately $4.5 million, lease commitment costs of
approximately $4.8 million, and non-cash asset impairment charges of approximately $2.4 million relating
primarily to the unamortized leasehold improvements and other fixed assets at the Cayenta headquarters.
The remaining lease commitment costs. are expected to be paid through future periods ending in
Januvary 2007. Included in the employee termination costs are 33 personnel reductions.

Approximately $39.9 million of the restructuring charges were related to the merger of Titan Systems
into Titan and other associated reorganization and consolidation costs. The costs included approximately
$32.2 million for the consolidation of various Titan Systems facilities into centralized locations in Virginia
and California. This charge reflects the estimated losses, net of estimated sublease income, on future lease
commitments of facilities with terms extending through year 2009. Titan has subleased certain of these
facilities and continues to actively pursue additional sublease opportunities for the remaining facilities.
However, the remaining available space is in markets adversely affected by the economy and may not be
subleased at attractive rates or at all. The actual amount of estimated losses on these lease commitments
could change based upon Titan’s ability to obtain sublease arrangements for these fac111t1es Included in the
employee termination costs are 19 personnel reductions.

Approximately $7.7 million of the Titan Systems restructuring costs are primarily related to employee
termination costs, employee retention costs, duplicate transition costs and professional fees related to
acquisitions and certain reorganization and consolidation activities within Titan Systems.

The remaining $1.7 million is related to direct transaction costs incurred by Titan in connection with
acquisitions that did not close, primarily the proposed acquisition with Science and Engineering
Associates, Inc. ,

At December 31, 2003, accruals for all exit and restructuring charges totaled $27.9 million, comprised
primarily of restructuring charges related to the merger of Titan Systems into Titan on September 25, 2002
and exit charges related to the shutdown of Cayenta’s headquarters office. These exit and restructuring
activities were accounted for under EITF Issue No. 94-3, which allowed accrual of restructuring costs upon
commitment to a plan and certain other criteria. Effective January 1, 2003, Titan was required to adopt
SEAS No. 146 “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”. SFAS No. 146 requires
companies to defer recognition of a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity until that
liability is incurred and can be measured at fair value. As these restructuring activities were entered into
prior to our adoption of SFAS No. 146, Titan. has accounted for these activities under EITF 94-3. A
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summary of exit and restructuring charges and other recorded and the utilization of those accruals during
the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2003 is as follows:

Charges Balance ‘ Balance

recorded  Asset  Cash paid December 31, Cash paid December 31,
in 2002 Disposals 2002 2002 2003 2003
Titan Systems restructuring: '
Estimated facilities consolidation costs. . $32,226 § — § 155 832,071 $4,775  $27,296
Employee termination/retention costs : ;
and other . ...... S FER 7,703 — 5,965 1,738 1,738 —
39,929 — 6,120 33,809 6,513 27,296
Transaction costs for unsuccessful deals .. 1,726 — 1,129 597 597 —
41,655 — 7,249 34,406 7,110 27,296
Cayenta headquarters exit costs:
Lease commitment costs............ - 4,816 — 1,680 3,136 2,511 625
Asset impairment costs. . ... .. ... ... 2,444 2444 — — — —
Employee termination costs and other.. 4,402 — 4,183 219 212 7
' 11,662 2,444 5,863 3,355 2,723 632

$53317 $2444 $13,112 $37,761  $9,833  $27,928

At December 31, 2003, $16.4 million of the exit and restructuring accruals are included in Other
Accrued Liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet and $11.5 million are included in Other Non-current
Liabilities. The remaining accrual balance is primarily comprised of amounts due under the facilities
‘consolidation, which requires payments in 2004 for certain lease cancellation fees and other lease costs, net
of assumed sublease income, with the remainder expected to be paid over the remaining lease terms, which
expire in 2009. :

Acquisition and Integration Related Charges and Other

Acquisition and integration related charges and other of $27.9 million in 2001 included $12.2 million
related to the integration of ACS and AverStar and other restructuring and realignment activities in our
government business, a $5.5 million impairment charge for fixed assets associated with Cayenta’s network
operations center and $10.0 million related to other asset impairments and restructuring activities
associated with Cayenta’s headquarters office, and $0.2 million related to personnel reductions in
Cayenta’s federal government business, which is now a part of Titan’s government business. Liabilities of
$1.3 million related to the charges remained at December 31, 2001, which were paid in 2002.

Merger Related Costs

Merger related costs in 2003 of $2.2 million are comprised of transaction costs related to the proposed
merger between Titan and Lockheed Martin.

Operating Profit

Consolidated. Our operating profit decreased from $27.7 million in 2001 to $20.7 million in 2002 and
increased from $20.7 million in 2002 to $103.1 million in 2003. Our operating profits have been
significantly impacted by a number of factors in each of 2001, 2002 and 2003. The 2001 operating results
include the acquisition and integration related charges and other of $27.9 million noted above, and the
2002 operating results include the exit and restructuring charges and other of $53.3 million noted above.
The 2003 operating results include an impairment charge related to SureBeam of $15.8 million and
$2.2 million of merger related costs, as noted above. Also impacting the results in each year was
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amortization of goodwill and purchased intangibles of $10.0 million in 2001, $5.7 million in 2002, and
$4.4 million in 2003 and deferred compensation amortization of $4.3 million in 2001, $27.8 million in 2002
and $7.2 million in 2003. Operating income in 2002 and 2003 increased primarily due to the increased
revenue volume discussed previously, as well as an increase in operating margins primarily resulting from
economies of scale and specific cdst containment initiatives.

Interest Expense, Net

Our net interest expense decreased from $34.9 million in 2001 to $31.0 million in 2002 and increased
from $31.0 million in 2002 to $32.2 million in 2003. Borrowings from our primary bank credit facility,
excluding working capital lines from acquired companies, averaged $337.3 million at a weighted average
interest rate of 7.5% during 2001, $350.2 million at a weighted average interest rate of 5.14% during 2002,
and $360.6 million at a weighted average interest rate of 4.7% during 2003, Interest expense in 2003
compared to 2002 reflects reduced interest expense on our credit facility resulting from the reduced
interest rates, offset by increased interest expense on $200 million in 8% senior subordinated notes issued
in May 2003, the proceeds of which were used to redeem $250 million in 5%% HIGH TIDES. The
reduction in interest expense in 2002 as compared to 2001 reflects lower average interest rates on our
primary bank credit facility. Also.included in interest expense is interest on our deferred compensation
plan and retiree medical obligations. Interest expense related to these items was $0.7 million for 2001,
$0.8 million for 2002, and $0.6 million for 2003.

Loss on Investments

The loss on investments of $6.2 million in 2003 relates to an unrealized loss on the carrying value of
our investment in Etenna Corporation based upon recent indications of fair value, and includes an
unrealized loss on our investment in DOAR Communications that was subsequently sold at a loss in
January 2004

Income Taxes

Consolidated income taxes reflect effective rates of a provision of 14% in 2001 reflecting a
$1.0 million provision on a pre-tax loss of $7.2 million, a benefit of 33% in 2002, and a provision of 43% in
2003. The provision in 2001 on a pre-tax loss was due to the impact of the relationship of significant
permanent non-deductible items compared to the book loss for the period. The reduced benefit rate in
2002 as compared to the statutory tax rate reflects the effect of additional state taxes due to separate state
filings. Due to Titan’s return to profitability in 2003, the consolidated income taxes now reflect a tax
provision compared to the tax benefit in 2002. The increased provision rate in 2003 reflects the
non-deductibility of certain losses and costs incurred in 2003. ‘

Loss From Discontinued 0perattons

Our loss from discontinued operatlons includes the results of operations for our Titan Wireless
business, certain components of our Cayenta business, our AverCom business, our LinCom Wireless
business and SureBeam (which was spun-off in August 2002). Excluded from the loss from discontinued
operations is a charge of $50.1 million for the impairment of goodwill which was recorded on January 1,
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2002 when Titan adopted SFAS No. 142, which has been reflected as the cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle. Following is a summary of the operating results for the discontinued operations.

Year Ended December 31,

N 2003 2002 2001

Gain on sale of business . . . ................ $12,195 § — —
Impairment of goodwill ................... — (96,961) —
Impairment of fixed assets and other . ......... (13,469) (162,449) (3,679)
Exit charges . . ... ... e e (5,000)  (24,403) (4,575)
(6,274) (283,813) (8,254)

Losses from operations . . . ................. (10,189)  (43,543)  (94,695)
' ' (16,463)  (327,356)  (102,949)

Tax benefit........ ... o i (15,609)  (109,250) (7,792)

Loss from discontinued opéi’ations, net of taxes .. $ (854) $(218,106) $ (95,157)

The 2003 tax benefit was impacted by the GlobalNet sale for which a tax provision was not provided
due to prior losses, as well as a tax benefit to adjust the carrying value of certain assets which are currently
held for sale in Titan’s remaining commercial information technology business that was previously part of
Titan Technologies. '

Titan Wireless (Discontinued July 11, 2002) 1In July 2002, our board of directors made the decision to
exit all of our international telecommunications business through a combination of selling or winding down
the operations within our Titan Wireless segment. Titan immediately began implementing these actions,
which were substantially completed during 2003. Titan has reported this exit of the Titan Wireless segment
as a discontinued operation in accordance with SFAS No. 144. Revenues for Titan Wireless were
$71.5 million and net income was $1.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The revenues were
primarily generated by the GlobalNet business prior to the sale of this business in the third quarter of 2003.
The net income was primarily a result of the gain of $12.2 million from the disposition of the GlobalNet
business, resulting from a previous write-down of the carrying value of the net assets, for which a tax
provision was not provided due to prior losses. The gain was offset by impairment charges of $10.8 million
resulting from the terms of the settlement agreements with Titan’s customers in Nigeria and Benin, and by
approximately $5.0 million of charges accrued for the exit activities in Benin.

On December 10, 1999, our wholly owned subsidiary, Titan Africa, Inc. (Titan Africa), in connection
with its contract to build a satellite-based telephone system for its customer, the national telephone
company of Benin, Africa (the OPT), entered into a Loan Facility agreement for up to 30.0 billion Francs
CFA (the currency of the African Financial Community), equivalent to approximately $45.0 million U.S.
dollars, with a syndicate of five banks, with Africa Merchant Bank as the arranger. This financing was
subsequently increased by 6.0 billion francs CFA to approximately $54.0 million. This medium term
financing is a non-recourse loan to Titan Africa which is guaranteed by the national telephone company of
Benin, Africa and secured by the national telephone company’s equipment and revenues related to the
project. The facility has a fixed interest rate of 9.5% per year and was originally to be repaid in seven equal
semi-annual payments from the net receipts of this project, or by the OPT in the event that such receipts
are not adequate to make these payments, which commenced on December 31, 2000 and were scheduled
to end on December 31, 2003. The payment terms were subsequently amended calling for quarterly
payments through mid-2006. The borrowings on this facility have been utilized to fund various equipment
and subcontractor costs incurred most notably by Alcatel of France, a major subcontractor to this project.

Related to Titan’s contract with the OPT, Titan has a $46.2 million gross receivable due from the OPT,
which is reflected in Current Assets of Discontinued Operations as of December 31, 2003. Of this amount,
approximately $32.3 million is recorded as a receivable on the project, reflecting the outstanding balance

24




on the non-recourse loan, drawn to cover subcontract costs. The remaining $14 million net receivable
represents amounts due from the OPT under the Titan settlement agreement entered into with the OPT.
Titan entered into the settlement agreement with the OPT in October 2003 pursuant to which Titan was to
be paid $29.5 million in full satisfaction of Titan’s performance on the OPT contract, of which $14 million
remains outstanding as of December 31, 2003.

In the second quarter of 2003, Titan sold its interest in Ivoire Telecom S.A. for approximately
$0.5 million cash consideration. In the third quarter of 2003, Titan completed the sale of its GlobalNet
business. Payments received for the sale of GlobalNet consisted of approximately $2 million in cash, notes
receivable of approximately $1.5 million, and the buyer’s assumption of all of the outstanding liabilities of
GlobalNet, which aggregated to approximately $21 million at the time of the consummation of the sale.
Titan has collected approximately $0.5 million of the amounts due under the notes receivable, and expects
to collect the remaining $1 million in the first quarter of 2004. Also during the third quarter of 2003, Titan
settled and accelerated the collection of its receivable due from its customer in Nigeria, resulting in an
aggregate cash collection of approximately $11.7 million in 2003.

Cayenta (Discontinued March 2002—previously included in our Software Systems segment) In July 2002,
the two information technology businesses of Cayenta were sold, for cash received to date of $0.2 million.

SureBeam (Discontinued October 2001) Titan discontinued the SureBeam segment in the third quarter
of 2001, and in the third quarter of 2002, Titan completed a tax free spin-off transaction in which all of
Titan’s shares of SureBeam Corporation were distributed to Titan stockholders. In 2003, we recorded an
estimated pre-tax impairment charge of $15.8 million related to SureBeam’s indebtedness to Titan. See the
discussion in “Impairment Charge Related to SureBeam” above for further details.

Titan Technologies In August 2002, our board of directors made the decision to sell or otherwise divest
our LinCom Wireless business and to sell our remaining commercial information technology business, both
of which were previously reported in our Titan Technologies segment. Accordingly, Titan has reflected.
both operations as discontinued in accordance with SFAS No. 144. In October 2002, the LinCom Wireless
business was shut down. The AverCom business, discontinued in the first quarter of 2002, was sold in
July 2002. The remaining commercial information technology business is currently held for sale.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, all commercial operations that have been sold or that are held for
sale have been reflected as discontinued operations for all periods presented in Titan’s consolidated
financial statements. SFAS No. 144 contains criteria that must be met for businesses to be classified as
held-for-sale and recorded as discontinued operations. Management periodically re-evaluates those
criteria for businesses held-for-sale, and if such criteria are no longer met, we would be required to
reclassify the operations and assets and liabilities of non-qualifying businesses into continuing operations.
Management believes that all businesses currently held-for-sale meet this criteria and, therefore, have been
reported as discontinued operations in accordance with SFAS No. 144.

Refer to Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements for further discussion of discontinued
operations. |

Net Income (Loss)

We reported net loss of $98.6 million in 2001, net loss of $271.5 million in 2002, and net income of
$29.1 million in 2003. Included in the net results for 2001, 2002 and 2003 are net losses from discontinued
operations of $95.2 million, $218.1 million and $0.9. million, respectively. The discontinued operations in
these years include SureBeam (through spin-off date in 2002), certain components of our Cayenta
business, our AverCom business, our Titan Wireless business, and our LinCom Wireless business. The
2003 net income includes an estimated impairment charge of $15.8 million related to our former
subsidiary, SureBeam Corporation, and a loss on investments of $6.2 million. Debt extinguishment costs of
$12.4 million and $9.4 million are included in the net results for 2003 and 2002, respectively. Included in
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the net loss for 2002 is a charge of $40.1 million, net of tax, for Titan’s adoption of SFAS No. 142, which is
reported as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. Also included in the 2001, 2002 and
2003 results are goodwill and/or purchased intangibles amortization of $10.0 million, $5.7 million and
$4.4 million, respectively, deferred compensation charges and ‘amortization of $4.3 million, $27.8 million
and $7.2 million, respectively, and exit and restructuring and other charges, integration, acquisition related
charges and other, and merger related costs of $27.9 million, $53.3 million and $2.2 million, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We generated cash of approximately $78.5 million from our continuing operations during the year
ended December 31, 2003, primarily resulting from our core government business, net of an increase in
receivable balances of approximately $75.7 million. The increase in accounts receivable balances primarily
reflects the growth in revenues over the past year. Our investing activities used net cash of approximately
$29.2 million, primarily for the acquisition of Advent for a net cash outlay of approximately $12.1 million,
capital expenditures of approximately $14.1 million and investments of $1.6 million. Financing activities
used $52.7 million, primarily due to the redemption of the $250 miliion HIGH TIDES, offset by the
issuance of $200 million 8% subordinated notes. At the time of the redemption, we borrowed $50- million
on our revolving credit facility to fund the redemption, which we repaid from cash flows from operations
prior to December 31, 2003. In addition, deferred debt issuance costs related to the senior subordinated
notes and extinguishment costs of the HIGH TIDES, were $13.3 million in total. Offsetting these uses
were the proceeds from stock issuances, primarily the exercise of stock options, which provided
$15.5 million. The proceeds from option exercises is an increase of 81% over the previous year, which
management believes was attributable to option holders’ anticipation of the proposed merger with
Lockheed Martin.

At December 31, 2003, total borrowings under our senior credit facility were $344.8 million at a
weighted average interest rate of 4.4%. Commitments under letters of credit were $10.2 million at
December 31, 2003, which reduces availability of our senior credit facility, resulting in $124.8 million of
borrowing availability on the senior revolving credit facility at December 31, 2003. Of the total borrowings,
$3.5 million was short-term. At December 31, 2003, we were in compliance with all financial covenants.

On May 15, 2003, we sold $200 million of 8% senior subordinated notes due May 15, 2011 in a private
placement (the Notes). We used the net proceeds from the issuance of the Notes, plus borrowings of
$50 million under our revolving credit facility and additional cash on hand, to redeem all of the
$250 million of the then-outstanding 5%% HIGH TIDES convertible preferred securities. The redemption
of HIGH TIDES occurred on June 4, 2003. In what it considered favorable corporate bond market
conditions, management made the decision to refinance the HIGH TIDES to eliminate the interest rate
risk and potential dilution to stockholders associated with the mandatory remarketing feature of the HIGH
TIDES. '

We incurred approximately $12.4 million in charges in 2003 related to the extinguishment of the
HIGH TIDES, comprised of the write-off of $8.1 million of remaining deferred debt issuance costs of
HIGH TIDES, a call premium of $3.6 million to redeem the HIGH TIDES, and approximately
$0.7 million of interest during the call period. All extinguishment charges were recorded in the second
quarter of 2003 as a charge to income from continuing operations. Following the redemption of the HIGH
TIDES, availability on the working capital line was reduced by $50 million for the borrowings on our
revolving line of credit for the borrowings required to complete the redemption.

We are required to make interest payments on the Notes semi-annually in arrears on May 15 and
November 15 at the rate of 8% per annum. The first scheduled interest payment for the outstanding Notes’
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was made on November 15, 2003. We may redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, on or after May 15, 2007
at the following redemption prices, plus accrued and unpaid interest and liquidated damages, if any:

Ea_r ‘ ‘ ] - Percentage
2007 ..o R S e 104.0%
2008 ...... S S PR e 102.0%
2009 and thereafter .................. IR e 100.0%

The Notes are unsecured and rank or will rank equally with our current or-future senior subordinated
indebtedness. Each of Titan’s domestic subsidiaries other than Cayenta guarantees the Notes. The
guarantees are unsecured and rank equally with each guarantor’s senior subordinated indebtedness. The
Notes and the guarantees are junior to all of Titan’s and each guarantor’s senior indebtedness and senior
to all of Titan’s and each guarantor’s subordinated indebtedness.

In connection with its proposed merger with Lockheed Martin, on February 11, 2004, Titan
commenced an offer to exchange the existing Notes for a new series of substantially identical 8% senior
subordinated notes registered under the Securities Act of 1933 and a consent solicitation relating to
proposed amendments to the indenture governing the Notes (described in Note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements) and the termination of the registration rights agreement Titan delivered in May 2003
for the benefit of the holders of the Notes. Titan announced on February 25, 2004 that it had received the
requisite consents from the holders of more than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Notes to
effect the proposed amendments to the indenture and the termination of the registration rights agreement.
Accordingly, Titan has entered into a supplemental indenture with the indenture trustee to effect the
amendments to the indenture and has entered into an amendment to the registration rights agreement
providing for its termination; however, the amendments and the termination of the registration rights
agreement will not become operative until immediately prior to the completion of the proposed merger
with Lockheed Martin. If the merger is completed, Lockheed Martin will guarantee the surviving entity’s
obligations as the obligor of the Notes. If the merger is not completed, the amendments will not become
operative. Until that pomt the mdenture and the registration rights agreement, without giving effect to the
proposed amendments or the termination of the registration rights agreement, will remain in effect. The
receipt of the requisite consents and the execution of the supplemental indenture satisfy one of the
conditions to the closing of the proposed merger with Lockheed Martin.

"In the third quarter of 2003, Titan completed the sale of its GlobalNet business. Payments received for
the sale of GlobalNet consisted of approximately $2 million in cash, notes receivable of approximately
$1.5 million, and the buyer’s assumption of all of the outstanding liabilities of GlobalNet, which aggregated
to approximately $21 million at the time of the consummation of the sale. Titan has collected
approximately $0.5 million of the amounts due under the notes receivable, and expects to collect the
remaining $1.0 million in the first quarter of 2004. Also during the third quarter of 2003, Titan settled and
accelerated the collection of its receivable due from its customer in ngerla resulting in an aggregate cash
colléction of apprommately $11.7 million.

We used $3.6 million for discontinued operations in 2003 due- prlmarlly to payments for vendor and
lease obligations, infusion of working capital, exit costs, and for operating losses, net of proceeds from the
sale of GlobalNet and .other discontinued oper'ations of approximately $2.7 million and collections of
approximately $26.5 million on our receivables from customers in Nigeria and Benin, Africa. In addition,
we incurred $2.0 million for a deferred payment related to a prior year acquisition (see Note 9 to our
consolidated financial statements.).

Deferred costs and expenses of $8.2' million related to the senior credit facility are included in Other
Assets at December 31, 2003 and will be amortized over the remaining term of the senior credit facility.
Deferred costs and expenses of $5.7 million related to the issuance of the Notes are also included in Other
Assets at December 31, 2003, and will be amortized over the term of the Notes.
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Except as discussed related to SureBeam above in “Impairment Charge Related to SureBeam”, there
are no Titan guarantees of debt, either directly or indirectly, other than approximately $1.4 million of
equipment financing associated with Ivoire Telecom.

On February 9, 2004, Titan announced that all outstanding shares of its cumulative convertible
preferred stock will be redeemed at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on March 15, 2004. The redemption is
being undertaken in anticipation of and as a condition to the close of the proposed merger with Lockheed
Martin but is not contingent on the merger closing. The convertible preferred shares are redeemable at
Titan’s option at a redemption price of $20 per share, plus cumulative dividends in arrears, for an
aggregate redemption price of $20.03 per share. Titan will redeem the shares using available cash balances.
The preferred stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “TTN_Pr” and closed at
$19.85 per share on March 8, 2004. Holders of Titan’s convertible preferred stock also have an existing
right to convert each of their shares into 0.781 shares of Titan’s common stock. The right to convert the
convertible preferred stock will terminate at 5:00 p.m., New York City Time, on March 15, 2004, the date
of redemption. As of February 9, 2004, there were 686,724 shares of convertible preferred stock
outstanding. To the extent that all of these shares are converted, then approximately 536,331 shares of
Titan common stock would be issued. Any shares of convertible preferred stock that are not converted will
be redeemed. Approximately $13.7 million of cash will be required to redeem all outstanding shares.

In relation: to our acquisition of International Systems in 2002, additional consideration may be
payable in 2004 through 2011 based upon earnings levels achieved. As of December 31, 2003,
approximately S0.8 million additional consideration was accrued for earnings in 2003, which is expected to
be paid in the first quarter of 2004. In addition, in relation to our acquisition of Wave Science, additional
consideration of $1.8 million was accrued as of December 31, 2003, and has been paid in the first quarter
of 2004. Refer to Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements. . .

In relation to the current investigation by the SEC and Department of Justice into whether payments
involving foreign consultants were made in violation of applicable law, we may be required to pay certain
liabilities in the future related to this matter. The Company has recorded a $3 million provision as of
December 31, 2003, representing our estimate of potential liabilities related to this matter. The ultimate
resolution of this matter is dependent upon the final results of such inquiries and investigations and
associated liabilities if any, could be different from the amount currently estimated.

We plan to finance our operations and working capital from a combination of sources, which include
cash generation from our core businesses, our credit facility and potential cash generated from the disposal
of discontinued businesses. Management believes that the combination of our existing cash, amounts
available under our credit facility and cash flow expected to be generated from our operations will be
sufficient to fund planned investments, the planned redemption of the preferred stock, the payment of
additional consideration on acquisitions, potential liabilities related to the current government
investigation and working capital requirements for at least the next twelve months if the proposed merger
with Lockheed Martin is not consummated. Under the merger agreement, we are prohibited from raising
additional capital. Should the merger be delayed or terminated, we could elect, or we could be required, to
raise additional funds during that period and we may need to raise additional capital in the future.
Additional capital may not be available at all, or may not be available on terms favorable to us. Any
additional issuance of equity or equity-linked securities may result in substantial dilution to our
stockholders. Management is continually monitoring and reevaluating its level of investment in all of its
operations and the financing sources available to achieve our goals.




Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments

Our contractual cash obligations as of December 31, 2003, including principal maturities of long-term
debt and other commitments, were as follows, excluding non-recourse debt and interest:

Payments Due By Period

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter Total

Contractual obligations:
Long-term debt:

Senior credit facility ........... $ 3,500 $ 3,500 $ 3,500 $ 3,500 $166,250 $164,500 $344,750

Other...................... 863 497 38 41 45 367 1,851

Senior subordinated notes . . ... .. — —_ — — — 200,000 200,000
Other contractual obligations: :

Operating leases . . . ......... .. 43,492 36,923 32,558 26,556 18,075 54,058 211,662

Capital leases . ............... 225 534 45 37 — — 841
Unconditional purchase .

obligations(1) .. .............. 102,736 10,245 644 1,239 39 — 114,903

Total contractual cash obligations . .. $150,816 $51,699 $36,785 $31,373 $184,409 $418,925 $874,007

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008  Thereafter  Total
Other commitments: ’
Guarantees(2):
Facilities guarantees on behalf of
SureBeam . ................ $ 976 $ 1,089 $ 1,114 $ 1,141 § 1,168 $ 13,195 $ 18,683
Titan facilities subleased to
SureBeam . ................ 1,103 - 717 737 746 156 829 4,888
Bank guarantee related to Hawaii
Pride .......... .. ..... ... 513+ 513 513 513 513 3,335 5,900
Standby letters of credit . ....... 9,488 701 — — — — 10,189
Total commitments . . . . .. e $ 12,080 $ 3,020 § 2,364 $ 2,400 $§ 2,437 $ 17,359 § 39,660

(1) Purchase obligations include agreements to purchase goods or services that are enforceable and
legally binding and that specify all significant terms, including; fixed or minimum quantities. to be
purchased; fixed, minimum or variable price provisions; and the approximate timing of the
transaction. Subcontractor commitments related to customer contracts are included to the extent that
we have received funding from the customer for the related tasks that the subcontractor is to perform.

(2) The amounts in this table represent total potential contingent liabilities under the guarantees. As
discussed above in “Impairment Charge Related to SureBeam”, the ultimate amount of net cash
outlays will be contingent upon the amount of actual proceeds recovered by Titan from the liquidation
of collateral securing the senior credit facility with Titan, Titan’s ability to mitigate its obligations
under the facilities lease guarantees through subleases, and loan repayments from Hawaii Pride.

Critical Accbunting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confdrmity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
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financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Specifically, management must make estimates in the
following areas:

Revenue adjustments and allowance for doubtful accounts. . We provide a reserve against our
receivables for estimated losses that may result from our customers’ inability to pay. These reserves are
recorded as an allowance for doubtful accounts and included in bad debt expense. These reserves are
based on potential uncollectible accounts, aged receivables, historical losses, and our customers’ credit-
worthiness. We also record reserves against receivables for estimated adjustments to revenue that may
result from changes in expected government funding on certain of our contracts and adjustments that may
arise from audits by the Defense Contract Audit Agency (DCAA) of certain of our government contracts.
Should a customer’s account become past due, we generally will place a hold on the account and
discontinue further shipments and/or services provided to that customer, minimizing further risk of loss.
The likelihood of a material loss to Titan on an uncollectible account in our discontinued operations would
be principally dependent on a deterioration in economic and/or political conditions in a particular country,
such as Benin, Africa, in which our receivables due from the government controlled phone company of
Benin may be impacted by such an event, or in the Middle East, in which our receivables due from a
government agency in the Middle East may be impacted by political conditions.

Our accounts receivable balances include unbilled receivables which are comprised of work-in-process
which will be billed in accordance with contract terms and delivery schedules, as well as amounts billable
upon final execution of contracts, contract completion, milestones or completion of rate negotiations.
Payments to us for performance on certain of our U.S. Government contracts are subject to audit by the
DCAA, and are subject to government funding. We provide a reserve against our receivables for estimated
losses that may result from rate negotiations, audit adjustments, and/or government funding availability. To
the extent that actual adjustments due to rate negotiations, audit adjustments, or government funding
availability differ from our estimates, our revenue may be impacted. Due to a high degree of diversification
in our government business, the likelihood of a material loss to Titan on an uncollectible account from this
activity is not probable.

Inventory. Inventories are stated at lower of cost or market. We review the components of our
inventory on a regular basis for excess, obsolete and impaired inventory based on estimated future usage
and sales. The likelihood of any material inventory write-downs is dependent on changes in competitive
conditions, new product introductions by us or our competitors, or rapid changes in customer demand.

Determining impairment losses on non-marketable securities. We evaluate our investment in
non-marketable securities taking into consideration the financial condition of the investee, the near-term
prospects of the investee, including the opportunities in the region and industry of the investee, changes in
‘technology, the progress of the investee in achieving operational milestones according to its operating plan,
and indications of implied fair value as a result of recent financing transactions. We also evaluate various
alternatives relative to realizing the value of our investment. Factors that would influence the likelihood of
a material change in our evaluation of whether there is a decline other than temporary include significant
changes in the investee’s ability to generate positive cash flow, a significant change in technology, loss of
legal ownership or title to the asset or a significant decline in the economic and competitive environment
on which the investee depends.

Impairment charge related to SureBeamn. We estimated the impairment charge related to SureBeam
based upon assumptions we made regarding estimated proceeds we expect to recover from the liquidation
of collateral, securing SureBeam’s indebtedness and other obligations to us under the senior secured credit
facility. We estimated these proceeds based upon discounted sales values we believe the SureBeam
equipment and inventory, primarily electron beam systems and other related components, can be sold for
to third parties. We based these discounted sales-values on recent sales prices as well as preliminary
indications of interest from third parties. We evaluated the obligations due under the guarantee and lease
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agreements by taking into consideration the estimated sublease income and cash flows anticipated from all
sources. We estimated the net amounts owed under the facilities lease agreements and lease guarantees
issued on behalf of SureBeam by taking into consideration the estimated sublease income based on current
market lease property values. Related to the bank guarantee we issued on behalf of Hawaii Pride, we
evaluated the estimated cash flow to be generated from the operations of Hawaii Pride to determine the
estimated amount that we may be required to loan to Hawaii Pride to enable it to make its debt payments.
We did not take into consideration the potential proceeds resulting from a sale of the intellectual property
of SureBeam or any risks regarding potential attempts to set aside our liens on the collateral.

Valuation of goodwill, intangible and other long-lived assets. We use assumptions in establishing the
carrying value, fair value and estimated lives of our long-lived assets and goodwill. The criteria used for
these evaluations include management’s estimate of the asset’s continuing ability to generate positive
income from operations and positive cash flow in future periods compared to the carrying value of the
asset, as well as the strategic significance of any identifiable intangible asset in our business objectives. If
assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment recognized is the amount by which the carrying value
of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. Useful lives and related amortization or depreciation
expense are based on our estimate of the period that the assets will generate revenues or otherwise be used
by us. Factors that would influence the likelihood of a material change in our reported results include
significant changes in-the asset’s ability to generate positive cash flow, loss of legal ownership or title to the
asset, a significant decline in the economic and competitive environment on which the asset depends,
significant changes in our strategic business objectives, utilization of the asset, and a significant change in
the economic and/or political conditions, particularly in which we have investments.

Benefit plans. We provide for limited postretirement medical benefit obligations of operations
discontinued in prior years for former employees and for certain current senior executive officers.
Accounting and reporting for the pension plans requires the use of assumptions for discount rates,
expected mortality rates and estimated growth rates in medical and healthcare costs—all assumptions our
actuaries rely upon in preparing their estimates for us. Any materially different valuations for actuarial
assumptions that are different from our current expectations could impact our accruals for these
postretirement benefit obligations. As the population that participates in these plans is limited, we do not
believe changes in valuations would have a material impact on our provisions for these postretirement
obligations.

Valuation of deferred income taxes. Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce
deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. The amount of the net deferred tax asset
considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income
during the carryforward period are reduced. Also, under Federal tax law, certain potential changes in
ownership of Titan may limit annual future utilization of these carryforwards. As such, the valuation
allowance recorded is provided against certain carryforwards which may not be utilized. The likelihood of a
material change in our expected realization of these assets is dependent on future taxable income, our
ability to deduct tax loss carryforwards against future taxable income, the effectiveness of our tax planning
and strategies among the various tax jurisdictions that we operate in, and any significant changes in the tax
treatment received on our business combinations and/or divestitures.

Revenue recognition. We recognize a portion of our revenue using the percentage-of-completion
method, which includes revenues recognized as costs are incurred or as output measures are identified, in
accordance with Statement of Position (SOP) 81-1 “Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and
Certain Production-Type Contracts.” Total estimated costs are based on management’s assessment of costs
to complete the project based upon evaluation of the level of work achieved and costs expended to date. To
the extent that our estimated costs materially change, our revenues recorded under such contracts could
materially be affected and could have a material adverse effect on our operations in the future periods. In
2003, approximately 20% of our total revenues were generated by fixed-price contracts, which are generally
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recognized using the percentage-of-completion method. The remaining 80% of our revenues in 2003 were
generated by cost reimbursable contracts and time and materials contracts, for which
percentage-of-completion is not used, and revenues are generally recognized as work is performed and
billed to the customer. :

Titan contracts with its government customers using various cost-type contracts. They include
cost-plus fixed fee, cost-plus award fee, cost-plus incentive fee with incentives based upon both cost and/or
performance, and cost sharing contracts. Revenues and profits are recognized in accordance with
Accounting Research Bulletin No. 45 and SOP 81-1. For award and incentive fee type contracts, we
recognize the expected fee to be awarded by the customer at the time such fee can be reasonably
estimated, based on factors such as our prior award experience and communications with the customer
regarding our performance, including any interim performance evaluations rendered by the customer.
Revenues are recognized under fixed price contracts based on the percentage-of-completion basis, using
the, cost-to-cost or units-of-delivery methods. On occasion we receive unpriced and priced change orders
from our customers, whereby we are requested to make modifications to the contract, which may include
changes in specifications or design, method or manner of performance, equipment, materials, and period
for completion of work. Some change orders are unpriced; that is, the work to be performed is defined, but
the adjustment to the contract price is to be negotiated later. We evaluate these change orders according to
their characteristics and the circumstances in which they occur after taking all factors into consideration
such as probability of recovery, our experience in negotiating change orders, and separate documentation
for change order costs that are identifiable and reasonable. We record the costs and associated revenue as
appropriate, in accordance with SOP 81-1.

Accounting for business combinations. In relation to our allocation of purchase price to the fair value
of assets acquired and contingencies assumed in acquisitions accounted for as purchase transactions,
management makes estimates of such amounts as the fair value of assets and contingencies assumed. To
the extent that the actual values or contingencies may differ from the estimates used, our allocation of
purchase price may differ, which may result in a change to the amount of goodwill and/or purchased
intangibles. Management also obtains an independent purchase valuation to assist in its purchase price
allocation. : : ‘

Principles of consolidation. Management evaluates its investment in each joint venture and
investment on an individual basis for purposes of determining whether consolidation or the cost or equity
method is appropriate, based upon management’s evaluation of the level of our ability to retain and
exercise control through decision-making ability and exercise significant influence, as well as our equity
ownership interest. In the event that our ability to obtain control and exercise significant influence changes
materially from management’s evaluation in determining whether consolidation should occur, or whether
or not the cost or equity method is appropriate, then our operating results could be materially impacted,
either positively or negatively. ‘

New Accounting Standards

In December 2003, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, “Revenue Recognition” (SAB
No. 104), whick codifies, revises and rescinds certain sections of SAB No. 101, “Revenue Recognition”, in
order to make this interpretive guidance consistent with current authoritative accounting and auditing
guidance and SEC rules and regulations. The changes noted in SAB No. 104 did not have a material effect
on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In May 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics
of both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS No. 150 requires that certain financial instruments, which under
previous guidance were accounted for as equity, must now be accounted for as liabilities. The financial
instruments affected include mandatory redeemable stock, certain financial instruments that require or
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may require the issuer to buy back some of its shares in exchange for cash or other assets and certain
obligations that can be settled with shares of stock. SFAS No. 150 is effective for all financial instruments
entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim
period beginning after June 15, 2003. Titan adopted SFAS No. 150 effective July 1, 2003, and the adoption
did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS No. 149 amends SFAS No. 133 by requiring that contracts with
comparable characteristics be accounted for similarly and clarifies when a derivative contains a financing
component that warrants special reporting in the statement of cash flows. SFAS No. 149 is effective for
contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003 and for hedging relationships designated after
June 30, 2003, and must be applied prospectively. The adoption of SFAS No. 149 had no effect on our
consolidated financial condition or results of operatlons " ‘

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consohdat10n of Vanable Interest Entities”
(FIN 46), which addresses the consolidation of certain entities (variable interest entities, or VIE’s) in
which an enterprise has a controlling financial interest through other than voting interests. FIN No. 46
requires that a variable interest entity be consolidated by the holder of the majority of the expected risks
and rewards associated with the activities of the variable interest entity. FIN 46 was effective for VIE’s
entered into prior to February 1, 2003 in periods beginning after June 15, 2003. The adoption of FIN 46
did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations. In
January 2004, the FASB issued a revision to FIN 46 (FIN 46R), to clarify some requirements and add new
scope exceptions. The revised guidance is effective for the first reporting period beginning after
December 15, 2003. The adoption of the provisions of FIN 46R is not expected to have a material impact
on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness to Others, an interpretation
of FASB Statements No. 5, 57 and 107 and a rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34.” This
Interpretation elaborates on the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial
statements about its obligations under guarantees issued: The Interpretation also clarifies that a guarantor
is required to recognize, at inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation
undertaken. The initial recognition and measurement provisions of the Interpretation are applicable to
guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002 and has not had a material effect on Titan’s
financial condition. The disclosure requirements are effective for financial statements of interim or annual
periods ending after December 15, 2002.

In November 2002, the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) issued EITF Issue No. 00-21,
“Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.” EITF Issue No. 00-21 addresses how
to determine whether a revenue arrangement involving multiple deliverables contains more than one unit
of accounting for the purposes of revenue recognition and how the revenue arrangement consideration
should be measured and allocated to the separate units of accounting. EITF Issue No. 00-21 applies to
revenue arrangements entered into after June 15, 2003. The adoption. of this statement did not have a
material impact on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146 “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities” (SFAS 146). SFAS 146 is effective for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31,
2002. This standard requires companies to recognize costs associated with exit or dlsposal activities when
they are incurred rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. The standard
replaces the existing guidance provided by the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3,
“Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity
(including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” Titan did not initiate any activities in 2003 that
would be included within the scope of this standard. ‘ o
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In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections as of April 2002”, which was effective
for fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002. SFAS No. 145 rescinded SFAS No. 4 and SFAS No. 64, which
required that all gains and losses from extinguishment of debt be aggregated, and if material, classified as
an extraordinary item. As a result of changes in the criteria, gains and losses from debt extinguishment are
to be classified as extraordinary only if they meet the criteria set forth in Accounting Principles Board
(APB) Opinicn No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations—Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a
Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions.”
In accordance with SFAS 145 and APB 30, the deferred debt issuance costs and other extinguishment costs
related to the HIGH TIDES were expensed upon extinguishment of that debt in 2003. The charge is
reflected in the results of continuing operatlons as Debt Extinguishment Costs in the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations. Also in accordance with SFAS No. 145, 2002 debt extinguishment
costs associated with the termination of a senior credit facility have been reclassified from an extraordinary
item to results from continuing operations. See Note 11 to our consohdated financial statements for
further discussion of the charges.

Cautionary Statements

In connection with the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, we
are hereby filing cautionary statements identifying important risk factors that could cause our actual results to
differ materially from those projected in our ‘forward looking statements” in this report or otherwise within the
meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended. These forward looking statements are all statements other than historical facts and relate to future
events or our future financial and/or operating performance and can be generally identified as such because the
context of the statement will include words such as “may,” “will,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” *‘anticipates,”
“expects,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential,” “possible,” “continue,” or “opportunity,” the negative of these
words or words of s:mzlar import. Similarly, statements that describe our reserves, our estimates, and our future
plans, strategies, intentions, expectations, objectives, goals or prospects are also forward looking statements.
These forward looking statements are based largely on our expectations and projections about future events and
future trends affecting our business and so are subject to risks and uncertainties, including those risks and
uncertainties described below, that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those anticipated as
of the date of this report. In addition, past financial or operating performance is not necessarily a reliable
indicator of future performance. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to publicly revise these
forward looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after the date of this report.

<

Risks Relating to Our Business ‘
We may not complete the proposed merger with Lockheed Martin as scheduled or at all.

The completion of the proposed merger with Lockheed Martin requires the approval of our
stockholders and the satisfaction or waiver of several other closing conditions. Among these is that there
not have occurred a material adverse change, circumstance, fact, event or effect that, individually or in the
aggregate with all other adverse changes, circumstances, facts, events and effects, is or is reasonably likely
to be materially adverse to the business, condition (financial or otherwise), assets or results of operations
of Titan and its consolidated subsidiaries, taken as a whole.

Lockheed Martin has stated that, if the internal reviews being conducted by it and Titan, the SEC’s
investigation and the criminal inquiry being undertaken by the Department of Justice are not completed by
the date of the special meeting of Titan stockholders for consideration of the proposed merger, Lockheed
Martin will have to consider whether all of the conditions to the closing of the merger are met. Lockheed
Martin has not given any assurances as to whether it will be satisfied that the preliminary results of the
internal reviews and the ongoing nature of the SEC investigation and Department of Justice criminal
inquiry do not constitute a material adverse change in Titan. Accordingly, pending favorable resolution of




these matters on or prior to March 16, 2004, the date scheduled for the special meeting of Titan
stockholders for consideration of the proposed merger, Titan cannot provide any assurances that the
merger will be completed as scheduled on that date. If the merger is not completed by March 31, 2004,
either Lockheed Martin or Titan may terminate the merger agreement, provided that the party seeking to
terminate the agreement is not then in material breach of its obligations under the merger agreement.

If the proposed merger is not completed, our stock price, which has traded since the announcement of
the merger in September 2003 close to the announced price that Lockheed Martin agreed to pay per share,
would likely decline. The inability to complete the merger would also likely result in litigation, which could
be costly and could divert the attention of management. In addition, our results of operations for the first
quarter of 2004 would likely be adversely affected by costs related to the government and mternal
investigations and merger-related activities.

As a result of the government’s investigation into whether payments involving foreign consultants were made
in violation of applicable law and related issues, the government could take action against us and/or some of
our employees.

As a result of the current investigation by the SEC and the Department of Justice, if the government
determines that unlawful payments were made, the government could take action against us and/or some
of our employees. These actions could include criminal and civil fines, penalties, criminal sanctions and
limitations on our or our affected businesses’ abilities to export products or enter into future U.S.
government contracts. As of December 31, 2003, we have recorded a $3 million provision related to these
matters. We may be required to record an additional provision or reduce this provision if the actual
settlement amount of these matters differs from the current provision.

Titan depends on government contracts for most of .its revenues and the loss of government contracts or a
decline in funding of existing or future government contracts could adversely affect Titan’s revenues and cash
flows and Titarn’s ability to fund its growth,

Titan’s revenues from U.S. government business represented approximately 96% of Titan’s total
revenues in 2003. Titan’s U.S. government contracts are only funded on an annual basis, and the U.S.
government may cancel these contracts at any time without penalty or may change its requirements,
programs or contract budget or decline to exercise option periods, any of which could reduce Titan’s
revenues and cash flows from U.S. government contracts. Titan’s revenues and cash flow from U.S.
government contracts could also be reduced by declines in U.S. defense, homeland secunty and other
federal agency budgets.

Approximately 57% of Titan’s revenue in 2003 was for products and services under contracts with
various parts of the U.S. Navy, U.S. Air Force or U.S. Army or with prime contractors to the U.S. Navy,
U.S. Air Force or U.S. Army. Although these various parts of the U.S. Navy, U.S. Air Force or U.S. Army
are subject to common budgetary pressures and other factors, Titan’s various U.S. Navy, U.S. Air Force or
U.S. Army customers exercise independent purchasing decisions. However, because of such concentration
of Titan’s contracts, Titan is vulnerable to adverse changes in its revenues and cash flows if a significant
number of Titan’s U.S. Navy, U.S. Air Force or U.S. Army contracts and subcontracts are simultaneously
delayed or canceled for budgetary or other reasons. .

In addition to contract cancellations and declines in ageﬁcy budgets, Titan may be adversely affected
by:

* curtailment of the U.S government’s use of technology services and products providers; and
* technological developments that impact purchasing decisions or Titan’s competive position.

These or other factors could cause U.S. defense and other federal agencies to reduce their purchases
under contracts, to exercise their right to terminate contracts or not to exercise options to renew contracts
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or limit Titan’s ability to obtain new contract awards. Any of these actions or any of the other actions
described above could reduce Titan’s revenues and cash flows.

Government audits of Titan’s government contracts could result in a material charge to Titan’s earnings and
have a negative effect on Titan’s cash position following an audit adjustment. '

Titan’s government contracts are subject to cost audits by the gavernment. These audits may occur
several years after the period to which the audits relate. If a cost audit were to identify significant
unallowable costs, Titan could have a material charge to its earnings or reduction in its cash position as a
result of an audit, including an audit of one of the companies Titan has acquired. Some of Titan’s acquired
companies did not historically impose internal controls as rigorous as those Titan imposes on the
government contracts Titan performs, which may increase the likelihood that an audit of their government
contracts couid cause a charge to Titan’s earnings or reduction in Titan’s cash position.

Titan’s operating margins may decline under its fixed-price contracts if Titan fails to estimate accurately the
time and resources necessary to satisfy Titan’s obligations.

Some of Titan’s contracts are fixed-price contracts under which Titan bears the risk of any cost
overruns. Titan’s profits are adversely affected if its costs under these contracts exceed the assumptions
Titan used in bidding for the contract. In 2003, approximately 20% of Titan’s revenues were derived from
fixed-price contracts for both defense and non-defense related government contracts. Often, Titan is
required to fix the price for a contract before Titan finalizes the project specifications, which increases the
risk that Titan will mis-price these contracts. The complexity of many of Titan’s engagements makes
accurately estimating Titan’s time and resources more difficult.

If Titan is not able to retain its contracts with the U.S. government and subcontracts under U.S. government
prime contracts in the competitive rebidding process, Titan’s revenues may suffer.

Upon expiration of a U.S. government contract or subcontract under a U.S. government prime
contract, if the government customer requires further services of the type provided in the contract, there is
frequently a competitive rebidding process. Titan cannot guarantee that Titan, or if Titan is a
subcontractor that the prime contractor, will win any particular bid, or that Titan will be able to replace
business lost upon expiration or completion of a contract. Further, all U.S. government contracts are
subject to protest by competitors. The termination of several of Titan’s significant contracts or nonrenewal
of several of Titan’s significant contracts could result in significant revenue reductions.

Titan may be liable for penalties under a variety of procurement rules and regulations, and changes in
government regulations could adversely impact Titan’s revenues, operating expenses and profitability.

Titan’s defense and commercial businesses must comply with and are affected by various government
regulations that impact Titan’s operating costs, profit margins and its internal organization and operation
of its businesses. These regulations affect how Titan’s customers and Titan do business and, in some
instances, impose added costs on Titan’s businesses. Any changes in applicable laws could adversely affect
the financial performance of the business affected by the changed regulations. With respect to U.S.
government contracts, any failure to comply with applicable laws could result in contract termination, price
or fee reductions or suspension or debarment from contracting with the U.S. government. Among the most
significant regulations are the following:

» the U.S. Federal Acquisition Regulations, which comprehensively regulate the formation,
administration and performance of government contracts;

* the U.S. Truth in Negotiations Act, which requires certification and disclosure of all cost and pricing
data in connection with contract negotiations; and
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» the U.S. Cost Accounting Standards, which impose accounting requirements that govern Titan’s
‘right to reimbursement under certain cost-based government contracts.

‘Titan has taken an impairment charge in connection with SureBeam Corporation’s indebtedness to Titan, and
Titan may not be able to recover the estimated amounts from SureBeam’s bankruptcy and Titan may be
required to make net payments on lease and bank debt guarantees in excess of estimated amounts.

As a result of SureBeam Corporation’s voluntary filing on January 19, 2004 for liquidation under
Chapter 7 of the United States Bankruptcy Code, Titan recorded an estimated pre-tax impairment charge
~of $15.8 million in 2003 related to the $25 million in principal owed to Titan by SureBeam under a senior
secured credit facility, as well as obligations to reimburse Titan under Titan guarantees and subleases
related to SureBeam facilities. The ultimate amount of impairment to be recognized is contingent upon the
amount of actual proceeds recovered by Titan from the liquidation of collateral securing the SureBeam
senior credit facility with Titan, and Titan’s ability to mitigate its obligations under the facilities lease
guarantees, through subleases, and loan repayments. from Hawaii Pride. The actual amount of Titan’s
recovery from SureBeam could be lower or higher than currently estimated. Titan is SureBeam’s only
senior secured lender, however, other creditors of SureBeam may seek to challenge Titan’s lien on some or
all assets of SureBeam in order to attempt to recover some of their claims. Titan also may be required to
pay third parties more than it currently expects to pay under various guarantees and leases. As of
December 31, 2003, Titan had guaranteed approximately $18.6 million in future lease payments and had
subleased SureBeam facilities with estimated future lease payments of approximately $4.9 million. Titan
also had extended a partial guarantee of a bank loan to Hawaii Pride that had a balance of $5.9 million as
of December 31, 2003.

Titan may not be able to recoup the net book value of its discontinued commercial businesses, including Titan
Wireless and Titan Technologies, through divestitures and may incur exit costs in excess of its accruals in
connection with the divestiture or shut down of some or all of these businesses.

During 2002, Titan made the decision to exit substantially all of its remaining commercial businesses,
including Titan Wireless and Cayenta, and to focus in the foreseeable future on its national security and
civil government businesses. At December 31, 2003, the total net book value of its discontinued businesses
is $1.6 million, including $1.7 million in Titan Wireless net assets, primarily relating to receivables on its
contract with the OPT of Benin of $14 million and a receivable from a customer in Nigeria for $0.3 million,
and remaining accrued exit costs and other liabilities of approximately $12.5 million, and remaining net
assets of $0.5 million in Titan Technologies. If Titan is unable to collect the remaining amounts due from
the OPT, it may incur additional impairment charges.

In relation to the remaining commercial information technology business of Titan Technologies
currently held for sale. If Titan is unable to sell this business, it may be required to incur additional
impairment charges to reduce the carrying value of this business and may incur additional operating losses.

Titan’s failure to identify, attract and retain qualified technical and management personnel could adversely -
affect its existing businesses.

Titan cannot guarantee that it will be able to attract and retain the highly qualified technical
personnel, including engineers, computer programmers and personnel with security clearances required
for classified work, or management personnel to supervise such activities that are necessary for
maintaining and growing Titan’s existing businesses.
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Titan competes primarily for government contracts against many companies that are larger, better financed
and better known than Titan. If Titan is unable to compete effectively, Titan’s business and prospects will be
adversely affected.

Titan’s businesses operate in highly competitive markets. Many of its competitors are larger, better
financed and better known companies who may compete more effectively than Titan can. In order to
remain competitive, Titan must invest to keep its products and services capabilities technically advanced
and compete on price and on value added to Titan’s customers. Titan’s ability to compete may be adversely
affected by limits on Titan’s capital resources and Titan’s ability to invest in maintaining and expanding its
market share.

Titan has completed numerous strategic acquisitions which could increase Titan’s costs or liabilities or be
disruptive.

Since January 1, 1998, Titan has acquired 19 government information technology businesses as part of
Titan’s strategy of consolidating government information technology businesses. Several of the businesses
that Titan acquired had themselves acquired other businesses prior to their acquisition by Titan. Titan may
not be able to integrate successfully any acquired businesses without substantial expense, delay or other
operational or financial problems. The acquisition and integration of new businesses involves risk. The
integration of acquired businesses may be costly and may result in a decrease in the value of Titan’s
common stock for the following reasons, among others:

s Titan may need to divert more management resources to integration than Titan planned, which may
adversely affect Titan’s ability to pursue other more profitable activities;

* the difficulties of integration may be increased by the necessity of coordinating geographically
separated organizations, integrating personnel with disparate business backgrounds and combining
different corporate cultures;

* Titan may not eliminate as many redundant costs as Titan anticipated in selecting its acquisition
candidates; and

+ one or more of Titan’s acquisition candidates also may have liabilities or adverse operating issues
that Titan failed to discover through its due diligence prior to the acquisition.

Titan may incur significant costs in protecting Titan’s intellectual property which could adversely affect.
Titan’s profit margins. Titan’s inability to protect its patents and proprietary rights in the U.S. and foreign
countries could adversely affect Titan’s businesses’ prospects and competitive positions.

As part of Titan’s strategy, Titan seeks to protect its proprietary technology and inventions through
patents and other proprietary-right protection in the U.S. and other countriés. The laws of some foreign
countries do not protect proprietary rights to the same extent as the taws of the U.S. If Titan is unable to
obtain or maintain these protections, Titan may not be able to prevent third parties from using its
proprietary rights. In addition, Titan may incur significant expense both in protecting its intellectual
property and in defending or assessing claims with respect to intellectual property owned by others.

Titan assesses the strength of its patent and intellectual property protection for its technologies and
products. Despite Titan’s assessments and Titan’s belief in the strength of its patent protection for
particular technologies or products, Titan’s patents may not provide effective barriers to entry against
competitors in the markets targeted by particular technologies and products because Titan’s competitors
may develop competing technologies and products that do not infringe upon Titan’s patents. Titan also
could choose to modify or abandon one or more planned or current products because of these assessments
or actual or threatened claims by other companies. Titan is not certain that its pending patent applications
will be issued.
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Titan also relies on trade secrets, proprietary know-how and continuing technological innovation to
remain competitive. Titan has taken measures to protect its trade secrets and know-how, including the use
of confidentiality agreements with Titan’s employees, consultants and advisors. It is possible that these
agreements may be breached and that any remedies for a breach will not be sufficient to compensate Titan
for damages incurred. Titan generally controls and limits access to, and the distribution of, its product
documentation and other proprietary information. Titan also cannot guarantee that other parties will not
independently develop Titan’s know-how or otherwise obtain access to Titan’s technology.

The covenants in Titan’s credit facility restrict Titan’s financial and operational flexibility, including its ability
to complete additional acquisitions, invest in new business opportunities, or pay down certain indebtedness.

Titan’s credit facility contains covenants that restrict, among other things, Titan’s ability to borrow
money, make particular types of investments, including investments in Titan’s subsidiaries, make other
restricted payments, limits the ability to pay down the senior subordinated debt, swap or sell assets, merge
or consolidate, or make acquisitions. An event of default under Titan’s credit facility could allow the
lenders to declare all amounts outstanding to be immediately due and payable. Titan has pledged
substantially all of its consolidated assets and the stock of Titan’s subsidiaries to secure the debt under
Titan’s credit facility, excluding Titan’s foreign affiliates. If the amounts outstanding under the credit
facility were accelerated, the lenders could proceed against those consolidated assets and the stock of
Titan’s subsidiaries. Any event of default, therefore, could have a material adverse effect on Titan’s
business. Titan’s credit facility also requires Titan to maintain specified financial ratios. Titan’s ability to
meet these financial ratios can be affected by events beyond Titan’s control, and Titan cannot assure you
that Titan will meet those ratios. Titan also may incur future debt obligations that might subject Titan to
restrictive covenants that could affect Titan’s financial and operational flexibility or subject Titan to other
events of default. In addition, if the proposed merger with Lockheed Martin is not completed, we will
remain subject to restrictive covenants in our 8% senior subordmated notes. These covenants may limit
our flexibility to pursue all of our strategic objectives and could adversely affect our future operations.

Titan’s revenues could be less than expected if Titan is not able to deliver components of systems or products
as scheduled due to disruptions in its supply of products and components or services.

Because Titan’s internal manufacturing capacity is limited, Titan uses contract manufacturers. While
Titan uses care in selecting its manufacturers, this arrangement gives Titan less control over the reliability
of supply, quality and price of products or components than if Titan manufactured them itself. In some
cases, Titan obtains products from a sole supplier or a limited group of suppliers. Consequently, Titari risks
disruptions in its supply of key products and components if Titan’s suppliers fail or are unable to perform
because of strikes, natural disasters, financial condition or other factors. Any material supply disruptions
could adversely affect Titan’s ability to perform its obligations under its contracts and could result in
cancellation of contracts or purchase orders, delays in realizing revenues, and payment delays as well as
-adversely affect Titan’s ongoing product cost str'ucture‘

Titan’s business is subJect to significant envzronmental regulation. Compliance costs, or any Juture vwlatwns
or liability under environmental laws, could harm Titan’s business.

Titan is subject to environmental and safety laws and regulations governing the use, storage and
disposal of hazardous substances or wastes and imposing liability for the cleanup of contamination from
these substances. Titan‘cannot completely ehmmate the risk of contamination or injury from these
substances or wastes, and, in the event of such an incident, Titan could be held liable for any damages that
result, From time to time, Titan has been notified of violations of government and environmental
regulations. Titan attempts to correct these violations promptly without any material impact on Titan’s
operations. In addition, Titan may be required to incur significant additional costs to comply with
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environmental laws and regulations in the future. These costs, and any future violations or liability under
environmental laws or regulations, could have a material adverse effect on Titan’s business.

Titan’s results of operations have historically fluctuated and may continue to fluctuate significantly in the
Juture, which could adversely affect the market price of its common stock.

Titan’s revenues are affected by factors such as the unpredictability of sales and contracts awards due
to the long procurement process for most of its products and services, the potential fluctuation of defense,
intelligence and civil agency budgets, the time it takes for the new markets Titan targets to develop and for
Titan to develop and provide products and services for those markets, competition and general economic
conditions. Titan’s contract type/product mix and unit volume, its ability to keep expenses within budgets,
and its pricing affect its gross margins. These factors and other risk factors described herein may adversely
affect Titan’s results of operations within a period and cause Titan’s. financial results to fluctuate
significantly on a quarterly or annual basis. Consequently, Titan does not believe that comparison of its
results of operations from period to period is necessarily meaningful or predictive of its likely future results
of operations. It is possible that in some future quarter or quarters Titan’s operating results will be below
the expectations of public market analysts or investors. If so, the market price of Titan’s common stock
may decline significantly.

Anti-takeover provisions in Titan’s certificate of incorporation, bylaws and Delaware law, as well as Titan’s
shareholder rights plan, could discourage, delay or prevent a change of control that Titan’s stockholders may
Javor.

Provisions in ‘Titan’s certificate of incorporation, Titan’s bylaws and Delaware law could make it
difficult and expensive for a third party to pursue a takeover attempt that Titan opposes even if a change in
control of Titan would be beneficial to the interests of its stockholders. These provisions could discourage
potential takeover attempts and could adversely affect the market price of Titan’s common stock. These
provisions:

» permit Titan’s stockholders to take action by written consent instead of at a meeting and to
nominate directors or bring other business before stockholder meetings only if they comply with
advance notice and other procedural requirements in Titan’s bylaws;

* authorize Titan’s board of directors, without stockholder approval, to issue up to 2,931,898 shares of
blank check preferred stock that could be issued. by Titan’s board of directors to increase the
" number of outstanding shares and prevent a takeover attempt; and

+ prohibit Titan from engaging in mergers and other business combinations with stockholders that
beneficially own 15% or more of Titan’s voting stock, or with their affiliates, unless Titan’s directors
or stockholders approve the business combination in the prescribed manner.

In addition to the provisions described above, in 1995 Titan’s board of directors adopted a poison pill
shareholder rights plan, which may further discourage a third party from making a proposal to acquire
Titan which Titan has not solicited or does not approve, even if the acquisition would be beneficial to
Titan’s stockholders. As a result, Titan’s stockholders who wish to participate in such a transaction may not
have an opportunity to do so. Under Titan’s rights plan, preferred share purchase rights, which are
attached to Titan’s common stock, generally will be triggered upon the acquisition, or actions that would
result in the acquisition, of 15% or more of Titan’s common stock by any person or group. If triggered,
these rights would entitle Titan’s stockholders other than the acquiror to purchase, for the exercise price,
shares of Titan’s common stock having a market value of two times the exercise price. In addition, if a
company acquires Titan in a merger or other business combination not approved by the board of directors,
these rights will entitle Titan’s stockholders other than the acquiror to purchase, for the exercise price,
shares of the common stock of the acquiring company having a market value of two times the exercise
price. ‘




There may be volatility in the price of Titan’s common stock that impacts the price a stockholder may realize .
upon a sale of the common stock.

Stock prices of many companies have experienced wide fluctuations that have often been unrelated to
the operating performance of these companies. The market price of Titan’s common stock may vary widely
as a result of several factors, including:

» status of the pending merger with Lockheed Martin;

» United States government’s information technology, defense and civil budgets and strategic
priorities;

* budgetary constraints affecting U.S. government spending generally, changes in fiscal policy, and
government regulatory initiatives; ‘

+ announcements of technological innovations or new products by Titan or its competitors;
* patent or proprietary rights dévelopments; and
* general market conditions.

These factors could lead to a significant decrease in the market price of Titan’s common stock. In
2003, the market price of Titan’s common stock has ranged from a high of $21.89 per share to a low of
$6.80 per share.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Market Risk

The principal objectives of our asset/liability management activities are to minimize debt and
maximize net investment income, while maintaining acceptable levels of interest rate risk and facilitating
our funding needs. Our net investment income and interest expense are subject to the risk of interest rate
fluctuations. To mitigate the impact of fluctuations in interest rates, we manage the structure of the
maturity of debt and investments. As of December 31, 2003, we did not hold any material amounts of
marketable securities. The amount of marketable securities we hold fluctuates based upon our cash needs,
including the use of our available cash resources to fund acquisitions. As a policy matter, we invest cash in
excess of our cash needs for limited periods in cash equivalents and available-for-sale investments.

The following table provides information about our financial instruments that are sensitive to changes
in interest rates as of December 31, 2003. For debt obligations, the table presents principal cash flows and
related weighted average interest rates by expected maturity dates. For terms relating to our long-term
debt, see Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements.

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Beyond Total \vl’f:}::‘e
(in thousands, except percentages)

Assets: None ‘
Liabilities:
Long-term debt

including debt due

within one year: _
Fixedrate ......... $ 863 § 497 § 38 § 41 .8 45 $200,367 $201,851 $201,851
Average interest rate . 8.58% 895% 858% 8.58% 8.58% 8.00% 8.01% 8.01%
Variable rate(l) .. ... $3,500 $3,500 $3,500 $3,500 $166,250 $164,500 $344,750 $344,750

Average interest rate . 4.41% 441% 441% 4.41% 4.41% 4.41% 4.41% 4.41%

(1) Maturities assume extension of the revolving portion of Titan’s senior credit agreement to the end of
the term loan maturities. See Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements for detailed
information on the terms of this agreement.
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board 'of Directors and Stockholders
The Titan Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Titan Corporation and subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2003. In
connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the financial
statement schedule as listed in the accompanying index. These consolidated financial statements and
financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on
our audits. We did not audit the financial statements of SureBeam Corporation, which financial statements
reflect total assets constituting 8 percent of the Company’s total assets as of December 31, 2001, and net
income (loss) from discontinued operations constituting 80 percent for the year ended December 31, 2001,
of the related consolidated totals. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors who have
ceased operations. Those auditors expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements in their
report dated February 11, 2002. Our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for SureBeam
Corporation, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits and the report of the
other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of the other auditors, the consolidated financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The Titan
Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, based on
our audits and the report of other auditors, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in
relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material
respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted the provisions of
SFAS No. 142 “Accounting for Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” on January 1, 2002 and, accordingly,
has changed its method of accounting for goodwill.

/s/f KPMG LLP

San Diego, California
March 9, 2004
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THE TITAN CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share data)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
REVEIIUES . . . o vttt et e e e e e $1,775,007  $1,392,160  $974,497
Costs and expenses: '
COSt Of TEVEIUES . . v v v v v v e et e e e e et et e e e e e e e 1,478,631 1,129,061 755,115
Selling, general and administrative . .. .................. .. e e 163,919 179,559 154,514
Research and development . .. ... ... i i i 11,324 9,555 9,310
Impairment charge related to SureBeam (Note 5). . .. ...................... 15,757 — —
" Exit and restructuring charges and other (Note6) ... ..y — 53,317 —
Acquisition and integration related charges and other (Note 7) ................ — 27,847
Mergerrelated COSES . .« v v vt i v e e 2,247 — -
Total costs angi expenses . ....... e e e e e e e e e e e 1,671,878 1,371,492 946,786
Operating Profit . . . ..o vie i [P 103,129 20,668 27,711
Interest expense . .. ....... e e e e e e e e : (34,574) (32,664)  (36,669)
Interestincome . . . .. ....... ... ... .. o e 2,326 1,708 1,779
Debt extinguishment COSts . . . . ... o v e e ‘ (12,423) (9,435) —
Lossoninvestments . . . ... ..o e (6,154) — —
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes, minority interests and
cumulative effect of change in accountmg principle . . . ... ... o 52,304 (19,723) (7,179)
Income tax provision (benefit) . ............ ... ... ... ISP e 22,353 ¢ (6,479) 1,007
Income (loss) from continuing operations before minority interests and cumulanve effect
of change in accounting principle . . .. ...... ... ... . o o L 29,951 (13,244) (8,186)
Minority interests ... ............ e e e e — — 4,729
Income (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle . . ... ... L e 29,951 (13,244) (3.457)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax benefit of $(15, 609) $(109,250), and
B7,792) (NOE B) « v v vt e et ittt e it e e e e e (854) . (218,106) = (95,157)
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accounting p;rinciple ............ 29,097 (231,350)  (98,614)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax benefit (Notes 3 and 8) . . — (40,111) —
Netincome (J0SS) . . v v vt i it e e © 29,097 (271,461)  (98,614)
Dividend requirements on preferred stock . .. ............ e (688) (689) (690)
Net income (loss) applicable to common stock . .. ............... e $ 28,409 $(272,150) $(99,304)
Basic earnings (loss) per share: .
Income (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative effect of change in .
accounting prinCiple . . . . . ... e 8 037 § (018) $ (0.13)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes . . .. .. .......... e (0.01) (2.87) (1.63)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, netof taxes . .. .. ....... ... — (0.53) —
Net income (I0SS) « . . o vt vt it e e e $ 036 § (338 § (1.76)
Weighted average shares. . . .. . ... . i e e 79,957 75,988 58,793
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle . . .. ... .. e $ 035 § (018) $ (0.13)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes . . .. ....... ... .. .. .. ... ... (0.01) (2.87) (1.63)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of taxes . . ... ... ....... — (0.53) —
Net income (lOSS) . . . o v v vt v e $ 034 $ (358 $ (1.76)
Weighted average shares. . .. ................... S . 83,398 75,988 58,793

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE TITAN CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

As of December 31,

2003 2002
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . . . ... . ... . .. e $ 26974 § 34,123
Restrictedcash . .................. e — 394
Accounts receivable—net . . . . .. L e 387,963 314,363
INVENIOTIES . . . . o e e e e e e e 29,405 31,280
Prepaid expenses and other ... ... ... ... . .. ... . A 24,044 19,441
Deferred inCome taXes . . . . o . v it it e e e e e e e P 91,272 108,046
Current assets of discontinued operations (Note 8) .. ......... ... ... ... .. ... ... 54,769 103,871
Total CUITENE ASSEIS . . o o o v v e i e e it e e e e e e e e 614,427 611,518
Property and equipment—net ... ....... ... P I, 65,791 63,705
Goodwill . . o . e 479,623 462,719
Intangible assets . . . ... ... ... ... e 31,751 37,218
Other aSSEIS—NEL . . . o . .ttt i e e e e e e e e e 36,262 62,685
Deferred INCOME LAXES . . . . o v v v it i i it ettt e e e e e e e e e [ 62,781 53,015
Non-current assets of discontinued operations (Note 8) . ... .. ... ... ... .. ... ... — 6,582
TOAl SSES . .« vttt e e e e e e e $1,290,635  $1,297,442
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities:
Current portion of amounts outstanding under line of credit . ... ........... ... ....... $ 3500 $ 3,500
Accounts payable . . .. .. ... .. .. L. e T 91,283 81,376
Current portion of long- Aerm debt . . e e 863 847
Accrued compensation and benefits . .. ... ... ... L. e e e e 81,823 66,639
Other accrued Habilities . . . . . o v o s st e e e e e e e 95,339 87,602
Current liabilities of discontinued operations (Note 8) .. ...... ... ... e e 18,783 49,143
Total current Habilities . .. ... ..... .. ... .. ... .. .. e 291,591 289,107
Long-term portion of amounts outstanding under line of credit . .. ... ... ... ............. 341,250 344,750
Senior subordinated notes . . . . . e e e e e e PR 200,000 —
- Other long-term debt . . . . .. . e e 988 2,045
Other non-current liabilities . . . . .. .. . . . . e e e 51,051 54,401
Non-current liabilities of discontinued operations (Note 8) . .. ... .. ... ... ... ..., 34,346 44,826
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 4, 5, 6 and 12)
Company obhgated mandatory redeemable convertible preferred securities of a Slleldlal’y trust whose :
sole assets are ‘senior subordinated convertible debenturesof Titan . .. . ... . ... .. ... ... .. _— 250,000
Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock: $1 par value, authorized 5,000,000 shares:
Cumulative convertible, $13,700 liquidation preference, désignated 1,068,102 shares: 686,829 and
688,129 shares issued and outstanding . . . . ... ...l 687 688
Series A junior participating, designated 1,000,000 authorized shares: None issued . ......... —
Common stock: $.01 par value, authorized 200,000,000 shares 82,182,250 and 78,344,550 shares
issued and outstanding . . . ... e e 822 783
Capital inexcess of parvalue . . ... ... . . e 670,733 647,752
Deferred COMPEnSAtiON . . . . o .ottt ittt e e e e e (1,584) .(8,791)
Retained earnings (deficit) . . .. . .. .. ... L (298,221)  (327,318)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (I0s8) . . . . ... ... .. L o e (215) (132)
Treasury stock (265,124 and 245,750 shares), at oSt . . . . . . ... oL (813) (669)
Total stockholders’ equity . . . .. .. . . e 371,409 312,313
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity . . . . . . oo v v it e $1,290,635  $1,297,442

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE TITAN CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands of dollars)

For the Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: :
Income (loss) from continuing OPerations . ... .. ... .t i i $ 29951 § (13,244) § (3.457)
Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from continuing operations to net cash provided by

continuing operations, net of effects of businesses acquired and sold:

Impairment charge related to SureBeam . . . ... ... .. ... . ... . o o 15,757 — —
Debt extinguishment COSIS . . . . . . i it e 12,423 9,435 —_
LOSS ON INVESHMEIS . . . . v v v vt e it e e et e et et e et e e e e e e 6,154 —_— —
Depreciation and amortization . . . . . ... ... e 20,845 21,705 21,971
Write-offs due to asset impairments. . .. .. ... ... ... .. e — — 14,640
Deferred income taxes and other . . . . . . . . . ... e e e 24,780 20,295 1,314
MInOriy iNErests . . . . . . . . ot e e e — — (5,119)
Deferred compensation charges . . . . .. . . .. .. 7,207 27,835 4,282
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of businesses acquired and sold:
Accounts receivable . . . . .. L L e e e e (75,660) 63,480 (23,216)
Inventories . . ............ PR e 4,006 6,913) (5,276)
Prepaid expenses and other assets . ... ... ... .. ... (9,189) (6,980) 3,191
Accounts payable . .. ... .. L e 4,550 9,166 8333
Accrued compensation and benefits . . ... ... L L o oL 21,172 (5,005) 6,133
Income taxes payablefrefundable . . .. ... ... ... L o L L Lo (153) (1,187 37
Other ligbilities & . . . . . . .o 16,634 37,130 (12,417)
Net cash provided by continuing opérations . . . . ....... ... .. .. ... L o 78,477 155,717 10,342
Loss from discontinued operations . . . . .. .. ... L e (854)  (218,106) (95,157)
Holdback payment related to prior year acquisition (Note 9) . . . . ... ... ... .. ... ...... (2,000) — —
Proceeds from divesture of businesses (Note 8) . . ... ......... ... .. ... . ....... 2,700 — —
Deferred compensation charge attributable to discontinued operations . . . . .............. — 7,780 54,270
Issuance of stock in subsidiaries . . ... ... ... . ... e e — 172 61,327
Minority interest aftributable to discontinued operations . . .......... ... .. .. . ... — (130) (11,872)
Changes in net assets and liabilities of discontinued operations . . ... ................. (3,465) 75,892 (122,917)
Net cash used for discontinued operations . . . .. .. ...... .. ... i ‘ (3,619)  (134392)  (114,349)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities . . ... ......... ... ... ... .. .. ... 74,858 21,325 (104,007)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities: )
Capital expenditures . . . . .. .. .. e e (14,104) (26,002) (14,237)
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired . . .. ........ . ... L o L (14,089) 27,409 (34,171)
Capitalized software development costs . . . . . . ... ..o L — (1,586} 4)
Proceeds from sales of investments and business . . .. ... ... ... ... ... .. . — 6,917 3,217
Advances to SureBeam on line of credit . . ... ... .. ... o o oo o — (25,000) —
Other INVESIMENIS . . . . . . o vt s it e et e et e e e e e (1,615) (6,851) (12,546)
OFhET . . . e 594 7,594 (206)
Net cash used for investing activities . . . . . . .. ..ttt it e (29,214) (17,519) (57,947)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Extinguishment of HIGH TIDES and other debt reductions . . . . ... ... .............. (254,541) (4,647) (38,100)
Issuance of senior subordinated notes and other debt additions . . . ... ................ 200,000 18,250 66,875
Deferred debt issuance COStS . . . . ... . e e (8,924) (8,908) (1,600)
Debt extinguishment costs . . . . .. ... . e (4,352) — —
Proceeds from StOCK ISSUANCES . . . . . v v v v i i it e e e e e e e 15,491 8,566 147,579
Issuance of stock by subsidiaries . . . ... ... .. L e — 19 42
Dividends paid . . . . . . oL e e e (688) (689) (690)
Decrease (increase) inrestricted cash . . . . .. ... . .. L e 394 (394) —
Other . . o e (90) (241) 2
Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities. . . . ... ... ... ... .. ....... (52,710) 11,956 174,108
Effect of exchange rate changesoncash .. .. ... ... ... ... . .. ... (83) (260) 20
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . . . ... ... ... ... ........ (7,149) 15,502 12,174
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . . . . . . . . .. .. ... . e 34,123 18,621 6,447
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year . . . . . . .. .. . i e $ 26974 § 34,123 § 18,621

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE TITAN CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003, 2002 AND 2001

(In thousands of dollars, except per share data)

Cumulative Accumuiated
Convertible Capital in Retained Other
Preferred . Common Excess of Deferred Earnings Comprehensive Treasury
Stock Stock  Par Value Compensation (Deficit} Income (Loss) Stock Total

Balances at December 31,2000 . ... .. .. $690 $541  § 190,666 $(13,882) § (9,268) $108 - 8(1,439) $167416
Proceeds from issuance of stock . . ... ... 80 136,102 ' 136,182
Issuance of stock for acquisitions . . .. ... . 40 144,724 144,764
Exercise of stock options and other . . . . . . 40 11,749 (392) 11,397
Deferred compensation, related to the

issuance of stock options . . . ... ... .. 78,725 (78,725) —
Amortization of deferred compensation . . . ‘ 58,552 58,552
Foreign currency translation adjustment . . . 20 20
Valuation of options assumed in acquisitions . 16,272 (464) 15,808
Income tax benefit from employee stock . .

transactions . . . ... ... ... ‘ 5,157 5,157
Gain related to issuance of stock in subsidiary . 52,025 52,025
Shares contributed to employee benefit plans 4,097 844 - 4,941
Dividends on preferred stock=—Cumulative

Convertible, $1.00 per share . . . ... ... (690) . (690)
Netloss . . . ovv e i e - (98,614) (98,614)
Balances at December 31,2001 ... .. ... 690 701 586,802 (34,519) . (55,857) 128 (987) 496,958
Spin—off of SureBeam . . . ... .. I (124,722) 19,318 (105,404)
Stock issued for acquisitions . . . ... .. .. 68 137,431 312 137,811
Exercise of stock options and other . . . . .. 10 8,556 8,566
Shares contributed to employee benefit plans 4 7,519 6 7,529
Conversion of preferred stock . ... .. ... ) 2 —
Deferred compensation, related to the '

issuance ofstock options . . ... ... ... 29,834 (29,834) : —
‘Write-off of deferred compensation related '

to discontinued operations . . . . . ... .. (629) 629 —
Amortization of deferred compensation . . . 35,615 - 35,615
Income tax benefit from employee stock

transactions . . . . .. e DR ' 3,648 : 3,648
Dividends on preferred stock—Cumulative

Convertible, $1.00 per share . . . . . . o (689%) o ) (689)
Foreign currency translation adjustment . . . ‘ ‘ ) (260) (260)
Nefloss . o vvv oo oo e (271,461) (271,461)
Balances at December 31,2002 . .. ... o 688 783 - 647,752 (8,791) (327,318) (132) (669) 312,313
Exercise of stock options and other . . . . .. 27 - 15,608 o (144) 15,491
Issuance of stock for acquisition (Note 4) . . 3 3,256 . 3,259
Return of shares related to acquisition ‘

(Note9) . ........ ... .. (2,000) Co (2,000)
Amortization of deferred compensation . . . ) 7,207 7,207
Shares contributed to employee benefit plans 9 6,518 , ' 6,527
Foreign currency translation adjustment . . . (83) (83)
Conversion of preferred stock . . . .. .. .. )] 1- ' o ’ -
Income tax benefit from employee stock . ’

transactions . . . ... e 286 286
Dividends on preferred stock—Cumulative . .

- Convertible, $1.00 per share . . . ... ... (688) (688)
Netincome . . ... ........ ... ..... 29,097 29,097
Balances at December 31,2003 . ... .... $687 $822 - $670,733 $ (1,584)  $(298,221) $(215) | $ (813) $ 371,409

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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THE TITAN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and per share data, or as otherwise noted)

Note 1. Nature of Operations

The Titan Corporation is a leading technology developer and systems integrator for the Department
of Defense, the Department of Homeland Security, and intelligence and othér key government agencies.
We provide a range of services and systems solutions. These solutions and services include research and
development, design, installation, integration, test, logistics support, maintenance and ‘trainingﬁ We also
provide services and solutions to government agencies with sophisticated information systems. These
include information processing, information fusion, data management, and communication systems. In
addition, we also develop and produce digital imaging products, sensors, lasers, electro-optical systems,
threat simulation/training systems, 1ntellxgence electronic hardware, signal intercept systems, and complex
military specific systems.

We focus on the following four markets: C4ISR (Command, Control, Communications, Computers,
Intelligence, Surveillance and Reconnaissance), Transformational Programs, Enterprise Information
Technology, and the War on Terrorism/Homeland Security.

Prior to the discontinuance of certain operations in 2002, Titan grouped ‘its businesses into five
business segments—Titan Systems, Titan Wireless, Software Systems (including Cayenta), Titan
Technologies and the SureBeam business. As discussed below, Titan is no longer reporting the results of
operations by these segments, however, reference may be made to these segments in discussions of other
historical information. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 131,
“Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information,” substantially all of Titan’s
operations are aggregated into one reportable segment given the similarities of economic characteristics
between the operations and the common nature of the products, services, and customers.

Note 2. Proposed Merger with Lockheed Martin Corporation

Lockheed Martin Corporation (Lockheed Martin) and Titan have entered into a definitive agreement
for Lockheed Martin to acquire Titan. Under the merger agreement, stockholders of Titan may elect to
receive $22 per share in cash, an equivalent amount of Lockheed Martin common stock, or a 50/50
combination of cash and Lockheed Martin common stock. Among other terms, the merger agreement
provides that the exchange rate for stockholders who receive Lockheed Martin common stock will be
determined by dividing $22 per share by the average of the daily high and low sales prices per share of
Lockheed Martin common stock on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) composite transaction tape for
the 10 trading days preceding the third trading day prior to the effective date of the merger, subject to
specified collars. If the average price exceeds $58 per share (the Upper Collar), then the exchange rate will
be calculated using the Upper Collar instead of the average price. If the average price is less than $46 per
share (the Lower Collar), then the exchange rate will be calculated using the Lowér Collar instead of the
average price. :

On February 9, 2004, Titan announced that all outstanding shares of its cumulative convertible
preferred stock will be redeemed on March 15, 2004. The redemption is being undertaken in anticipation
of and as a condition to the close of the proposed merger with Lockheed Martin but is not contingent on
the merger closing. The convertible preferred shares are redeemable at Titan’s option at a redemption
price of $20 per share, plus cumulative dividends in arrears, for an aggregate redemption price of $20.03
per share. Titan will redeem the shares using available cash balances. Holders of Titan’s convertible
preferred stock also have an existing right to convert each of their shares into 0.781 shares of Titan’s
common stock. The right to convert the convertible preferred stock will terminate on March 15, 2004, the
date of redemption. As of February 9, 2004, there were 686,724 shares of convertible preferred stock
outstanding. To the extent that all of these shares are converted, then approximately 536,331 shares of
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" THE TITAN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(in thousands, except share and per share data, or as otherwise noted)

Note 2. Proposed Merger with Lockheed Martin Corporation (Continued)

Titan common stock would be issued. Any shares of convertible preferred stock that are not converted will
be redeemed.

In response to concerns raised by the U.S. government concerning organizational conflicts of interest
certain of Titan’s contracts might create with Lockheed Martin’s existing businesses, in the first quarter of
2004, Titan has divested certain contracts with organizational conflict of interest provisions and the related
business unit where these conflicts could not be mitigated to the satisfaction of the customer. Neither the
revenues associated with the divested contracts, nor the divestiture transaction itself, were material to
Titan.

Refer to Note 12 for a discussion of contingencies related to recently announced internal and
governmental investigations into whether payments involving Titan’s foreign consultants were made in
violation of applicable law.

Refer to Note 11 for a discussion of the impact of the proposed merger on Titan’s outsfanding debt.

In the year ended December 31, 2003, Titan incurred $2.2 million in transaction costs related to the
proposed merger, which are reflected as merger related costs in the accompanying consolidated statements
of operations. ‘

Note 3. Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Titan and its
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. From time to
time, we make investments in joint ventures which may involve international locations and operations.
Management evaluates its investment in each joint venture on an individual basis for purposes of
determining whether or not consolidation is appropriate. Investments in such ventures are generally
consolidated in instances where Titan retains control through decision-making ability and generally a
greater than 50% ownership interest. In the absence of such factors, we generally account for these
investments under the cost or equity method, depending upon management’s evaluation of Titan’s ability
to exercise significant influence or control.

- Reclassifications. Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year presentations to conform to
the 2003 presentation.

Stock-Based Compensation. Titan has elected to adopt the disclosure only provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”.
Accordingly, Titan accounts for its stock-based compensation plans under the provisions of Accounting
Principles Board (APB) No. 25. Titan also follows the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure,” which amends SFAS No. 123.

As allowed by SFAS No. 123, Titan has elected to continue to apply the intrinsic value method of
accounting for stock options and has adopted the disclosure only provisions of the fair value method
contained in. SFAS No. 123. Compensation cost, if any, is measured as the excess of the quoted market
price of Titan stock on the date of grant over the exercise price of the grant. Had compensation cost for
Titan stock-based compensation plans been determined based on the fair value method at the grant dates
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THE TITAN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(in thousands, except share and per share data, or as otherwise noted)

Note 3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

for awards under those plans, our results of operations would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts
indicated below:

2003 2002 2001

Net income (loss), as reported .. ..................... PPN $29,097 $(271,461) $ (98,614)
Less: Additional stock-based employee compensation expense

determined under fair value method for all awards, net of related

taxeffects. . ...... ... oL e (4,488) (5,575) (9,123)
Net income (loss), proforma . ..............oovuiuneenennn. $24,609 $(277,036) $(107,737)
Earnings per share: .

Basic as reported . .. ... e $ 036 $ (3358 $§ (1.76)

Basicproforma .. ........ ..t $ 030 5 (366) 5 (192)

Diluted as reported . . ......... e e e e $ 034 $ (358) $ (1.76)

Diluted pro forma....... e PN $ 029 $ (3.66) $§ (1.92)
Stock-based compensation expense included in income (loss) as '

reported . . . ...... I $ 7207 $ 35615 $ 58,552

Stock-based compensation expense included in income (loss) as reported results primarily from deferred
compensation amortization (see Note 14).

Minority Interest in Subsidiaries. Minority interest in subsidiaries consists primarily of equity securities
issued in 2000 by Titan’s subsidiary, Cayenta, Inc., which was the operations of the Software Systems
business, which primarily included certain components which were discontinued in March 2002, and equity
securities issued in 2000 and 2001 by Titan’s SureBeam subsidiary. Titan owned substantially all of the
voting equity of Cayenta and SureBeam both before and after the transactions. Titan records minority
interest to reflect the portion of the earnings or losses of majority-owned operations which are applicable
to the minority interest partners. The minority interest percentages of Cayenta and SureBeam were
approximately 24.3% and 19.9%, respectively, as of December 31, 2001, 23% and 0% as of December 31,
2002, respectively, and 23% and 0% as of December 31, 2003, respectively. The minority interest portion
of SureBeam’s and Cayenta’s losses from the discontinued components are reflected in the loss from
discontinued operations. In addition, the minority interest portion of the continuing components of
Cayenta are reflected in continuing operations.

Financial Instruments. The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts
payable, accrued liabilities, line of credit and other long-term debt approximate the carrying amounts due
to their short maturities or variable interest rates. The estimated fair value Titan’s senior subordinated
notes at December 31, 2003, approximate $205.7 million compared with the carrying value of $200 million.

Foreign Currency Translation. The financial statements of certain of our foreign subsidiaries are
measured using the local functional currency. Assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries are translated at
exchange rates in effect as of the balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses are translated at average rates
of exchange in effect during the year. The resulting cumulative translation adjustments have been recorded
in other comprehensive income within stockholders’ equity. Foreign currency transaction gains and losses
are included in consolidated net income.
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- THE TITAN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(in thousands, except share and per share data, or as otherwise noted)

Note 3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continuéd)

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the U.S. requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition. A majority of Titan’s revenue is derived from products manufactured and
- services performed under cost-reimbursable, time-and-materials, and fixed-price contracts. Cost
reimbursable contracts for the government provide for reimbursement of costs plus the payment of a fee.
Under fixed-price contracts, the Company agrees to perform certain work for a fixed price. Under time
and materials contracts, the Company is reimbursed for labor hours at negotiated hourly billing rates and
are reimbursed for travel and other direct expenses at actual costs plus applied general and administrative
expense. Titan’s contracts with government customers may use various cost-type contracts. They include
cost-plus fixed fee, cost-plus award fee, cost-plus incentive fee with incentives based upon both cost and/or
performance, and cost sharing contracts. Under fixed-price contracts, revenues are generally recognized as
services are performed, using the percentage-of-completion method, applying the cost-to-cost or units of
delivery method, in accordance with Accounting Research Bulletin No. 45 and American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) Statement of Position 81-1 “Accounting for Performance of
Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type Contracts (SOP 81-1). Total estimated costs are based on
management’s assessment of costs to complete the project based upon evaluation of the level of work
achieved and costs expended to date. Estimated contract losses are fully charged to operations when
identified. Billings in excess of cost incurred are recorded as reductions in accounts receivable in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet. For award and incentive fee type contracts, the Company
recognizes the expected fee to be awarded by the customer at the time such fee can be reasonably
estimated, based on factors such as prior award experience and communications with the customer
regarding performance, including any interim performance evaluations rendered by the customer.

As most of Titan’s revenue recognition practices are in accordance with SOP 81-1 and AICPA
Statement of Position 97-2 “Software Revenue Recognition” (SOP 97-2), the adoption of Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 101, “Revenue Recognition in
Financial Statements” in 2000 had no material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Deferred Revenues. Included in other accrued liabilities are deferred revenues which consist principally
of customer deposits whereby Titan receives payment in advance of performing the service.

Cash Equivalents.  All highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or
less are classified as cash equivalents. :

Unbilled Accounts Receivable. Unbilled accounts receivable are included in accounts receivable and
include work-in-process which will be billed in accordance with contract terms and delivery schedules, as
well as amounts billable upon final execution of contracts, contract completion, milestones or completion
of rate negotiations. Generally, unbilled accounts receivable are expected to be billed and collected within
one year. Payments to Titan for performance on certain U.S. government contracts are subject to audit by
the Defense Contract Audit Agency. Revenues have been recorded at amounts expected to be realized
upon final settlement.
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THE TITAN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(in thousands, except share and per share data, or as otherwise noted)

Note 3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Concentration of Risk. As Titan expanded its business into international markets and developing
countries during 2000 and 2001, certain accounts receivable may have been exposed to credit risk due to
political and/or economic instability in these areas. To mitigate credit risk in foreign countries, we have
generally denominated our foreign contracts in U.S. dollars and required payment primarily in the form of
stand-by letters of credit, advance deposits, or wire transfer, prior to shipment. Sales to the U.S.
government, including both defense and non-defense agencies, and sales as a subcontractor as well as
direct sales, aggregated approximately $1,702.0 million in 2003, $1,320.0 million in 2002, and $905.3 million
in 2001. With the exception of Titan’s linguist contract with the U.S. Army’s Intelligence and Security
Command and the contract to provide enterprise information technology support for the U.S. Special
Operations Command which contributed 7.0% and 3.5% of total revenues for 2003, respectively, no other
signle contract accounted for more than 2.0% of total revenue for 2003. Substantially all of Titan’s
operations are located in the United States. Export and foreign revenues amounted to approximately
$36.6 million, $29.6 million, and $21.4 million in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively, related primarily to
customers in Europe, the Middle East, Africa and Asia. Substantially all international sales are
denominated in U.S. dollars. The increase from 2002 to 2003 is primarily due to increased revenues of
approximately $10.4 million to Titan’s customers in the United Kingdom.

A majority of Titan’s total revenues are from U.S. government contracts. Any cancellations or
modifications of our significant contracts or subcontracts, or failure by the U.S. government to exercise an
option period relating to those contracts or subcontracts, could adversely affect our financial condition and
results of operations in the short- and long-term. A significant and continuing decline in U.S. defense and
other federal agency budgets also may negatively impact our business. Although we bid for and are
awarded long-term U.S. government contracts and subcontracts, the U.S. government only funds these
contracts on an annual basis, and many of our contracts and subcontracts include option years. The U.S.
government may cancel these contracts at any time without penalty or may change its requirements,
programs or contract budget, and generally has the right not to exercise option periods. The U.S. Congress
may decline to appropriate funds needed to complete the contracts awarded to us or the prime contractor.
On our subcontracts, we generally do not control the prime contractor’s allocation of resources. We also
depend upon the prime contractor to perform its obligations on the primary government contract. In
addition to contract cancellations and declines in agency budgets, our financial condition and results of
operations may be adversely affected by:

* budgetary constraints affecting U.S. government spending generally, and changes in fiscal policy or
available funding;

*» curtailment of the U.S. government’s use of technology services providers;
* the adoption of new laws or regulations;

* U.S. government facilities closures or agency realignments;

* competition and consolidation in our business areas; and

* general economic conditions.

These or other factors could cause government agencies to reduce their purchases under contracts, to
exercise their right to terminate contracts or not to exercise options to renew contracts. Any of these
actions could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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THE TITAN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(in thousands, except share and per share data, or as otherwise noted)

Note 3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Inventories, Inventories include the cost of material, labor and overhead, and are stated at the lower
of cost, determined on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) and weighted average methods, or market. We
periodically evaluate our on-hand stock and make appropriate disposition of any stock deemed excess or
obsolete.

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method, with estimated useful lives of 5 to 30 years for buildings, 2 to 15 years for leasehold
improvements, representing the lesser of the useful life of the improvement or the lease term, and 3 to
15 years for machinery and equipment and furniture and fixtures. Certain machinery and equipment in our
medical sterilization business is depreciated based on units of production.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Goodwill represents the excess of costs over fair value of assets of
businesses acquired. Effective January 1, 2002, Titan adopted SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” which establishes financial accounting and reporting for acquired goodwill and other
intangible assets and supersedes APB Opinion No. 17, “Intangible Assets”. Goodwill and intangible assets
acquired in a purchase business combination and determined to have an indefinite useful life are not
amortized, but instead tested for impairment at least annually in accordance with the provisions of SFAS
No. 142. SFAS No. 142 also requires that intangible assets with estimable useful lives be amortized over
their respective estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values, and reviewed for 1mpa1rment in
accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.”

SFAS No. 142 requires that goodwill be tested for impairment at the reporting unit level at adoption
and at least annually thereafter, utilizing a two step methodology. The initial step requires Titan to assess
whether indications of impairment exist. If indications of impairment are determined to exist, the second
step of measuring impairment is performed, wherein the fair value of the relevant reporting unit is
compared to the carrying value, including goodwill, of such unit. If the fair value exceeds the carrying
value, no impairment loss is recognized. However, if the carrying value of the reportmg unit exceeds its fair
value, the goodwill of the reporting unit is impaired.

Titan performs its annual testing for impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets in the first
quarter of each year, prior to the release of the annual financial statements for the previous year. Based on
management’s assessments at December 31, 2003, there were no-indicators of impairment.

Initial Adoption

In connection with the initial adoption of this standard as of January 1, 2002, during the first quarter
of 2002, Titan’s independent valuation consultant, Bearing Point, completed step one of the test for
impairment, which indicated that the carrying values of certain reporting units exceeded their estimated
fair values, as determined utilizing various evaluation techniques including discounted cash flow and
comparative market analysis. Thereafter, given the indication of a potential impairment, Titan completed
step two of the test. Based on that analysis, a transitional impairment loss of $40.1 million, which was net of
‘a $10.0 million tax benefit, was recognized in the first quarter of 2002 as the cumulative effect of an
accounting change. The impairment charge resulted from a change in the criteria for the measurement of
the impairment loss from an undiscounted cash flow method, as required by SFAS No. 121, “Accounting
for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of,” to an estimated
fair value analysis as required by SFAS No. 142. The gross $50.1 million impairment charge recorded in the
first quarter of 2002 was comprised of approximately $27.5 million in certain components of our Cayenta
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Note 3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

business, approximately $14.9 million in our AverCom business, which was previously reported in our Titan
Technologies segment, both attributable to lower valuations and weakened outlook in commercial IT
services, and approximately $7.7 million in our Titan Wireless business. The entire $50.1 million charge was
related to discontinued businesses; approximately $42.4 million of this charge pertained to businesses that
were discontinued by Titan on March 1, 2002 with the remaining charge of $7.7 million related to Titan’s
long distance telecommunications business that was discontinued in the third quarter of 2002.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 142, goodwill was amortized on a straight-line basis over the
expected periods to be benefited, generally 1 to 40 years, and assessed for recoverability by determining
whether the amortization of the goodwill balance over its remaining life could be recovered through
undiscounted future operating cash flows of the acquired operation. All other intangible assets were
amortized on a straight-line basis from 1 to 10 years. The amount of goodwill and other intangible asset
impairment, if any, was measured based on projected discounted future operating cash flows using a
discount rate reflecting our average cost of funds.

Impairment Subsequent to Initial Adoption

As a result of Titan’s board of directors’ decision in July 2002 to exit its long distance
telecommunications business, and the deterioration in pricing and valuations in the telecommunications
industry, Titan recorded an additional impairment charge in 2002 of $74.8 million of goodwill in its
international telecommunications business, Titan Wireless, based upon indications of fair value as
determined by recent sales offers from potential buyers.

In connection with Titan’s board of directors’ decision in the third quarter of 2002 to divest its
LinCom Wireless business, Titan recorded a $2.7 million impairment of goodwill in the third quarter of
2002 based upon indications of fair value as determined by offers from potential buyers. In October 2002,
Titan shut down the operations of LinCom Wireless.

In addition, approximately $19.4 million of additional goodwill was determined to be impaired in 2002
related to previously discontinued components of Cayenta, AverCom and other commercial information
technology businesses, which impairment was recorded based upon estimates of fair value. ‘ :

All impairment charges recognized subsequent to our initial adoption of SFAS No. 142 have been
reported in the loss from discontinued operations, as all impairments were incurred in businesses held for
sale or disposed of during 2002 (see Note §).

The adjustment of previously reported net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share below
represents the elimination of recorded amortization of goodwill. The impact on net income (loss), and
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basic and diluted net earnings (loss) per share for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 is set
forth below:

Reconciliation of Net Income (Loss) and Earnings (Loss) Per Share:

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Income (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative effect of change in accounting ‘

principle . . . .. e $29,951 3 (13,244) $ (3.457)
Add back amortization of goodwill, net of tax . ... .. e e e e e —_— — 11,424
Adjusted income (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle . . . .. ... 29,951  (13,244) 7,967
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax . .. .................... . (854)  (218,106)  (95,157)
Add back amortization of goodwill, netof tax . . ..., L e . — —_ 16,641
Adjusted loss from discontinued operations. . . .......... ... e (854) (218,106)  (78,516)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle .. ... ... .. ... ... . ... ..., — (40,111) —
Net income (loss) . .. ........ S 29,097  (271,461)  (70,549)
Dividend requirements on preferred stock . . ....... . ... . . o o oo, (688) (689) (690)
Net income (loss) applicable t0 COMMON SLOCK . . . .« ..o ot et e e $28,409  $(272,150) $(71,239)
Basic earnings (loss) per share: )

Income (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative effect of change in accounting

PHOCIPLE . o o o e e $ 037 § (0.18) § (0.13)

Add back amortization of goodwill, netof tax. . . .. ... ... .. .. oL —_— — 0.19

Adjusted income (loss) from continuing operations . .. ..... ... ... ... ... ... . 0.37 (0.18) 0.06

Loss from discontinued operations, netof tax . . . .......... ... ....... e (0:01) (2.87) (1.63)

Add back amortization of goodwill, netof tax. . . .. ...... ... .. .. e e . — — 0.28

Adjusted loss from discontinued operations . . ... ... .. L Lo (0.01) (2.87) (1.35)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . .. ............ U — (0.53) —

Net income (I0s8) . ... ... ............. R I $ 036 $ (358 § (129

Weighted average shares .. . . . ... L e 79,957 75,988 58,793
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:

Income (loss) from continuing operations before cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle . . ... ... .. .. .. e % 035 % (0.18) $ (0.13)

Add back amortization of goodwill, netof tax . . . . ... ... . o L L oL — — 0.19

Adjusted income (loss) from continuing operations before extraordinary item . . . . .. .. .. 0.35 (0.18) 0.06

Loss from discontinued operations, netof tax . . .. ............. e (0.01) (2.87) (1.63)

Add back amortization of goodwill, netoftax. . . .......... ... .. . L 0 0L — — 0.28

Adjusted loss from discontinued operations P (0.01) (2.87) (1.35)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . ... .. .. .. B — (0.53) —

Netincome (10SS) . . . . . ot -$ 034 § (358 § (L29)

Weighted average shares . . .. ... .. .. ... L 83,398 75,988 58,793

Impairment of Investments in Non-marketable Securities. Periodically, Titan reviews for possible
impairments its non-marketable securities, which include our investments in emerging businesses, which
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are accounted for under the cost method. Whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset is other than temporarily impaired, asset values are adjusted accordingly based
on a write down of cost to estimated fair value. In evaluating whether a loss in the carrying value of an
investment is other than temporary, Titan evaluates the financial condition and near-term prospects of the
investee and the region and industry of the investee, including any specific events which may influence the
operations of the investee such as changes in technology, and its overall investment intent. Titan will
generally deem an impairment to be other than temporary if its cost basis has exceeded its fair value for a
period of six to nine months. If a loss in the carrying value of an investment is deemed to be other than
temporary, we recognize such loss based on a write down of cost to realizable value.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. SFAS No. 144 provides a single accounting model for long-lived
assets to be disposed of. SFAS No. 144 also changes the criteria for classifying an asset as held for sale,
broadens the scope of businesses to be disposed of that qualify for reporting as discontinued operations
and changes the timing of recognizing losses on such operations. Titan adopted SFAS No. 144 on
January 1, 2002. Refer to Note 8 for discussion of operations discontinued since Titan’s adoption of SFAS
No. 144. '

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, long-lived assets, such as property, plant, and equipment, and
purchased intangibles subject to amortization, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of
assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated
undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the
carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of would be
separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value
less costs to sell, and are no longer depreciated. The assets and liabilities of a disposed group classified as
held for sale would be presented separately in the appropriate asset and liability sections of the balance
sheet.

Goodwill and intangible assets not subject to amortization are tested annually for impairment, and are
tested for impairment more frequently if events and circumstances indicate that the asset might be
impaired. An impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount exceeds the asset’s fair
value. ‘

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 144, Titan accounted for long-lived assets in accordance with SFAS
No. 121, “Accounting for Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed
Of.” o :

Income Taxes. Titan accounts for income taxes under SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,”
which requires the use of the liability method of accounting for deferred income taxes. Under this method,
deferred income taxes are recorded to reflect the tax consequences on future years of differences between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts at each year-end. If it is more
likely than not that some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized, a valuation allowance is
recognized. :

Per Share Information.  Titan computes earnings per share based on the provisions of SFAS No. 128,
“Earnings Per Share.”
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The following data summarize information relating to-the per share computations for continuing
operations before extraordinary loss and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003

Income (Less)  Shares (000’s)  Per-Share
(Numerator) {Denominator) Amounts

Income from continuing operations . .............. I $29,951
Less preferred stock dividends . . . .. .. T e (688)
Basic EPS: : ‘ ‘ o
Income from continuing operations available to common
stockholders . .................. P 29,263 79,957  $0.37
Effect of dilutive securities: Stock options and warrants. . . .. .. — 3441 (0.02)

Diluted EPS:
Income from continuing operations available to common- _
stockholders .................... e S $29,263 83,398 $ 0.35

For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

Income (Loss)  Shares (000’s) . Per-Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amounts

Loss from continuing operations before cumulatlve effect of
change in accounting principle . ....... ... ... ... .. ... $(13,244)
Less preferred stock dividends .. .. .. .. ... P ' (689)

Basic and Diluted EPS:
Loss from continuing operations available to common
- stockholders .......... e - $(13,933) 75,988 $(0.18)

‘For the Year Ended December 31, 2001

Income (Loss)  Shares (000’s)  Per-Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amounts

Loss from continuing operations . .. ... ... e $(3,457)
Less preferred stock dividends . . . . .. e (690)
Effect of minority interests ....... R RN (3,228)

Basic and Diluted EPS:
Loss from continuing operations available to common
stockholders . ........ ... .. . . ... . $(7,375) 58,793 $(0.1:3)

In the year ended December 2003, options and warrants to purchase approximately 2,531,700 shares
of common stock at prices ranging from $13.85 to $29.74 per share were not included in the computation
of diluted EPS as the effect would have been anti-dilutive because the options’ exercise price was greater
than the average market price of the common shares.

In the year ended December 31, 2002, options to purchase‘ approximately 3,357,700 shares of common
stock at exercise prices ranging from $1.04 to $13.09 per share were not included in the computation of
diluted EPS, as the effect would have been anti-dilutive due to the loss from continuing operations before
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cumulative effect of change in accounting principle. In the year ended December 31, 2001, options to
purchase approximately 2,074,600 shares of common stock at exercise prices ranging from $1.12 to $20.04
per share were not included in the computation of diluted EPS, as the effect would have been anti-dilutive
due to the loss from continuing operations. In the year ended December 31, 2002, options to purchase
approximately 3,963,900 shares of common stock at prices ranging from $13.18 to $29.74 were not included
in the computation of diluted EPS because the options’ exercise price was greater than the average market
price of the common shares. In the year ended December 31, 2001, options to purchase approximately
1,206,800 shares of common stock at exercise prices ranging from $20.70 to $47.50 per share were not
included in the computation of diluted EPS because the options’ exercise price was greater than the
average market price of the common shares. '

In 2003, 2002, and 2001, approximately 537,300, 538,400, and 459,900 shares of common stock,
respectively, that could result from the conversion of cumulative convertible preferred stock were not
included in the computation of dilutive EPS, as the effect would have been anti-dilutive on the results of
continuing operations. Similarly, in 2003, 2002 and 2001, approximately 2,859,100, 6,776,500 and 5,038,000
shares, respectively, that could result from the conversion of the remarketable term income deferrable
equity securities (HIGH TIDES) were not included in the computation of diluted EPS. The change in
potential dilution from 2002 to 2003 for the HIGH TIDES is due to their extinguishment on May 15, 2003.
The change in potential dilution from 2001 to 2002 for the HIGH TIDES and the preferred stock is the
change in conversion ratios due to the SureBeam spin-off (see Note 14).

Comprehensive Income. Comprehensive income represents all changes in equity of an enterprise that
result from transactions and other economic events of the period other than transactions with owners.
Comprehensive income is the total of net income and all other nonowner changes in equity.

During the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, Titan’s only element of other
comprehensive income resulted from foreign currency translation adjustments, which are reflected in the
consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’ equity as foreign currency translation adjustments
within accumulated other comprehensive income.

Gain on Issuance of Stock in Subsidiary. In 2001, as a result of the SureBeam initial public offering and
in accordance with the provisions of SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 51 (SAB 51) Titan recorded a gain
of $52.0 million related to its equity interest in SureBeam. In accordance with the provisions of SAB 51,
the transaction is reflected as an equity transaction, and the net effect of the transaction is reflected in the
accompanying Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity as “Gain related to issuance of stock in
subsidiary”.

New Accounting Standards

In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 148,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure”, which amends SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary
change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition,
this statement also amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent disclosures
in both annual and interim financial statements. Certain of the disclosure modifications are required for
fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002 and are included in the notes to these consolidated financial
statements.
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In December 2003, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, “Revenue Recognition” (SAB
No. 104), which codifies, revises and rescinds certain sections of SAB No. 101, “Revenue Recognition”, in
order to make this interpretive guidance consistent with current authoritative accounting and auditing
guidance and SEC rules and regulations. The changes noted in SAB No. 104 did not have a material effect
on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS No. 149 amends SFAS No. 133 by requiring that contracts with
comparable characteristics be accounted for similarly and clarifies when a derivative contains a financing
component that warrants special reporting in the statement of cash flows. SFAS No. 149 is effective for
contracts entered into or modified after June 30, 2003 and for hedging relationships designated after
June 30, 2003, and must be applied prospectively. The adoption of SFAS No. 149 had no effect on our
consohdated financial condition or results of operations.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS No. 150 requires that certain financial instruments,
which under previous guidance were accounted for as equity, must now be accounted for as liabilities. The
financial instruments affected include mandatory redeemable stock, certain financial instruments that
require or may require the issuer to buy back some of its shares in exchange for cash or other assets and
certain obligations that can be settled with shares of stock. SFAS No. 150 is effective for all financial
instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the
first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. Titan adopted SFAS No. 150 effective July 1, 2003, and
the adoption did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities”
(FIN 46), which addresses the consolidation of certain entities (variable interest entities, or VIE’s) in
which an enterprise has a controlling financial interest through other than voting interests. FIN No. 46
requires that a variable interest entity be consolidated by the holder of the majority of the expected risks
and rewards associated with the activities of the variable interest entity. FIN 46 was effective for VIE’s
entered into prior to February 1, 2003 in periods beginning after June 15, 2003. The adoption of FIN 46
did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations. In
January 2004, the FASB issued a revision to FIN 46 (FIN 46R), to clarify some requirements and add new
scope exceptions. The revised guidance is effective for the first reporting period beginning after
December 15, 2003. The adoption of the provisions of FIN 46R is not expected to have a material impact
on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

In November 2002, the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) issued EITF Issue No. 00-21,
“Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.” EITF Issue No. 00-21 addresses how
to determine whether a revenue arrangement involving multiple deliverables contains more than one unit
of accounting for the purposes of revenue recognition and how the revenue arrangement consideration
should be measured and allocated to the separate units of accounting. EITF Issue No. 00-21 applies to
revenue arrangements entered into after June 15, 2003. The adoption of this statement did not have a
material impact on our consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness to Others, an interpretation
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~ of FASB Statements No. 5, 57 and 107 and a rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34.” This
Interpretation eiaborates on the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial
statements about its obligations under guarantees issued. The Interpretation also clarifies that a guarantor
is required to recognize, at inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation
undertaken. The initial recognition and measurement provisions of the Interpretation are applicable to
guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002 and has not had a material effect on Titan’s
financial condition. The disclosure requirements are effective for financial statements of interim or annual
periods ending after December 15, 2002.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146 “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal
Activities” (SFAS 146). SFAS 146 is effective for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31,
2002. This standard requires companies to recognize costs associated with exit or disposal activities when
they are incurred rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. The standard
replaces the existing guidance provided by the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3,
“Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity
(including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” Titan did not initiate any activities in 2003 that
would be included within the scope of this standard.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64,
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections as of April 2002”, which was effective
for fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002. SFAS No. 145 rescinded SFAS No. 4 and SFAS No. 64, which
required that all gains and losses from extinguishment of debt be aggregated, and if material, classified as
an extraordinary item. As a result of changes in the criteria, gains and losses from debt extinguishment are
to be classified as extraordinary only if they meet the criteria set forth in Accounting Principles Board
(APB) Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations—Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a
Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions.”
In accordance with SFAS 145 and APB 30, the deferred debt issuance costs and other extinguishment costs
related to the HIGH TIDES were expensed upon extinguishment of that debt in 2003. The charge is
reflected in the results of continuing operations as Debt Extinguishment Costs in the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations. Also in accordance with SFAS No. 145, 2002 debt extinguishment
costs associated with the termination of a senior credit facility have been reclassified from an extraordinary
item to results from continuing operations. See Note 11 for further discussion of the charges.

Note 4. Acquisitions

On November 3, 2003, Titan acquired Advent Systems for total cash consideration, net of cash
acquired, of approximately $12.1 million. Advent provides intelligence, surveillance, reconnaissance,
support and mission planning services to the U.S. government. The acquisition was to further Titan’s
strategic goal of acquiring government information technology companies that fit strategically with its
government business. The transaction was accounted for using the purchase method, and accordingly,
results of operations of Advent Systems are included in our results of operations as of the date of purchase.
The excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair market value of the net assets acquired was
approximately $10.1 million, and has been reported as goodwill. Pro forma information related to the
Advent Systems acquisition has not been presented, as the effect on Titan’s results of operations is not
significant.
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In January 2003, Titan announced that the agreement to acquire Science & Engineering
Associates, Inc. (SEA), a privately held provider of engineering and information technology services, had
expired and that Titan and SEA mutually agreed not to extend the purchase agreement at that time. Direct
costs of $1.2 million related to this transaction were included in exit and restructuring charges and other in
2002 (see Note 6).

During 2002, we completed three acquisitions within the U.S. Government business that were
accounted for using the purchase method and, accordingly, results of operations of the acquired companies
are included in our operating results as of the date of the purchase. The following table represents selected
data regarding each acquisition. ‘

Consideration Paid Goodwill and
Name Date of Acquisition and Accrued Purchased Intangibles
Wave Science, Inc. . . ........ ... ... .. September 12, 2002  $ 10.3 million* $ 9.9 million
Jaycor,Inc. .. ........ ... ... ... ... March 21, 2002 $103.5 million $49.9 million
International Systems, LLC ........... February 22, 2002 $ 7.3 million* $ 7.8 million

*  Consideration paid is subject to adjustment if certain earn-out conditions are achieved.

On September 12, 2002, Titan completed the acquisition of 100% of the outstanding shares of Wave
Science, Inc. (Wave Science), a privately held designer of radio components and communication systems,
for a purchase price of approximately $8.5 million in cash, subject to post-closing adjustments and
indemnification obligations. The acquisition was to further Titan’s goal of acquiring government
information technology companies which fit strategically with its government business, particularly the
addition of Wave Science’s experienced engineering team. The purchase agreement provided for
additional consideration of up to $3.0 million based on achieving certain revenue and profit margin targets
for the two-year period beginning January 1, 2002 through December 31, 2003, and additional
consideration of up to $1.0 million based on the receipt of certain contract awards through December 31,
2004. Additional consideration of $1.8 million has been accrued at December 31, 2003, representing the
total amount due based on the revenue and profit margin targets through December 31, 2003, and was
paid in February 2004. This additional purchase price was accounted for as an increase to goodwill. The
additional consideration of up to $1 miilion for certain contract awards through December 31, 2004 may
still be earned. As the total consideration for the acquisition of Wave Science may change based upon the
receipt of contract awards through December 31, 2004, goodwill may change to reflect any such additional
consideration. ‘

‘On March 21, 2002, Titan completed the acquisition of Jaycor, Inc. (Jaycor), a San Diego, California,
based provider of information technology services and specialized communications and sensor products to
further Titan’s goal of acquiring government information technology companies which fit strategically with
its government business. At the closing, Titan issued approximately 4,919,500 shares of Titan common
stock for all the outstanding shares of common stock of Jaycor, based on an exchange ratio of 0.50160
shares of Titan common stock for each share of Jaycor common stock at an aggregate value of
$99.6 million, based on $20.24 per Titan share, the average trading price ending March 20, 2002, the date
on which the formula for the purchase consideration became fixed. The excess of the $99.6 million
purchase price over the estimated fair market value of the net assets acquired ($57.6 million) was
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approximately $42.0 million. In April 2002, Titan obtained an independent valuation completed by Bearing
Point to assist management in its purchase price allocation for the Jaycor acquisition. The independent
valuation was used by Titan to allocate $38.1 million to goodwill and $3.9 million to intangible assets. The
intangible assets consist of backlog, customer relationships and trade name of $0.7 million, $1.3 million,
and $1.9 million, respectively, which are being amortized over the estimated useful lives of 1 year, 1 to
3 years and 5 years, respectively. At December 31, 2003, the unamortized balance of purchased intangibles
was $1.8 million included in Other Assets in the consolidated balance sheet. The transaction value was
increased by approximately $3.9 million to an aggregate total of $103.5 million to reflect an additional
173,099 shares issued in July to cover certain costs of the shareholders of Jaycor, and an additional 20,948
shares issued in July 2002 and August 2002 related to certain working capital adjustments. The additional
purchase price of $3.9 million was accounted for as an increase to goodwill resuiting in goodwill of
$45.9 million at December 31, 2003.

On February 22, 2002, Titan completed the acquisition of International Systems, LLC (International
Systems), which designs and builds low-cost combat systems for the Department of Defense (DoD) and
agencies of the DoD, to further Titan’s goal of acquiring government information technology companies
which fit strategically with its government business. The purchase price, which aggregated approximately
$1.8 million, was comprised of approximately 100,000 shares of Titan common stock, subject to
post-closing adjustments and indemnification obligations. In addition, additional consideration may be
paid based on the receipt of certain contract awards and the achievement of defined earnings level on all
contracts by International Systems, which consideration may be satisfied with cash or our common stock.
The additional consideration for defined earnings levels will be equal to 20% of International Systems’
EBIT (earnings before income tax and benefit allowances) from certain specified defense technology
programs for each year from 2002 to 2006 and 7.5% of International Systems’ EBIT from those defense
technology programs for each year from 2007 to 2011. In July 2002, 100,000 shares of Titan stock valued at
$1.2 million were issued based on the receipt of certain of these contract awards. In July 2003, Titan issued
350,000 shares of common stock valued at $3.3 million and paid $0.2 million in cash of additional
consideration related to the receipt of these contract awards and the percentage of EBIT eamed in these
contracts in 2002. The value of the shares, in addition to the cash paid, were recorded as an increase to
goodwill. The additional consideration for contract awards was fully paid as of December 31, 2003.
Additional consideration of $0.8 million has been accrued at December 31, 2003, representing the total
amount due based on EBIT achieved in 2003. In October 2002, under the provisions of the original
purchase agreement, Titan advanced $0.8 million to a former principal shareholder and current employee
of International Systems. Such advance is evidenced by a promissory note which was secured by the
shareholder’s purchase consideration of Titan shares and shares issuable upon achievement of certain
milestones as praovided under the original purchase agreement. This note is reflected as an Other Current
Asset on the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2003, and was paid in full by the former
shareholder in January 2004. As the total consideration for the acquisition of International Systems may
change based upon the achievement of defined earnings levels, goodwill will change to reflect any such
additional consideration.

During 2001, we completed three acquisitions within the U.S. Government business that were
accounted for using the purchase method and, accordingly, results of operations of the acquired companies
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are included in our operating results as of the date of the purchase. The following table represents selected
data regarding each acquisition.

Goodwill and
Name ‘ Date of Acquisition Consideration Paid  Purchased Intangibles
BTG, Inc. .......... i, November 27, 2001  $135.5 million $147.4 million
Datron Systems, Inc. .. .......... ".... September 28,2001 § 48.9 million $ 28.5 million
Assets of Maxwell Technologies Systems
Division, Inc. . . .. ... March 23, 2001 $ 10.7 million $ 7.0 million

On November 27, 2001, we completed the acquisition of BTG, Inc. (BTG), a provider of information
technology solutions and services primarily to the U.S. military and other government agencies, for $13.35
per BTG share. The acquisition was to further our goal of acquiring government information technology
companies which fit strategically with us. We issued approximately 4,024,100 shares of Titan common stock
at an aggregate value of $99.9 million, based on $24.814 per Titan share, the average trading price ending
November 19, 2001, the date on which the formula for consideration became fixed, and paid cash of
$23.4 million for all the outstanding shares of BTG common stock and assumed BTG stock options
representing approximately 734,200 shares of Titan common stock at an aggregate value of $12.2 million,
based on an exchange ratio of approximately 0.5380 shares of Titan stock for each share of BTG common
stock. We also paid off $37.1 million of BTG’s outstanding debt as of the closing date. The excess of
purchase price over the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired was recorded as goodwill of
$139.2 million, intangible assets of $8.2 million and deferred compensation of $0.5 million related to
unvested options assumed. The intangible assets consist of backlog, customer relationships and a strategic
relationship of $1.7 million, $5.5 million and $1.0 million, respectively, which are being amortized over the
estimated useful lives of 1 year, 2 to 5 years and 2 years, respectively. At December 31, 2003, the
unamortized balance of purchased intangibles was $3.3 million included in Other Assets in the
consolidated balance sheet. The deferred compensatlon will be amortized over the remaining vesting
period of the assumed options. : :

On September 28, 2001, we completed the acquisition of the remaining shares of Datron Systems
Incorporated (Datron), a provider of radio and satellite-based communication systems and broadband
communication products for government and commercial markets, that were acquired through a stock for
stock exchange tender offer that closed in August 2001. The acquisition was to further our goal of
acquiring government information technology companies which fit strategically with us. We issued
approximately 2.3 million shares of Titan common stock for all the outstanding shares of Datron common
" stock at an aggregate value of $44.9 million, based on $19.544 per Titan share, the average trading price
ending July 27, 2001, the date on which the formula for consideration became fixed, and assumed Datron
stock options representing approximately 437,000 shares of Titan common stock at an aggregate value of
$4.0 million, based on an exchange ratio of approximately .81919 shares of Titan common stock for each
share of Datron common stock. The transaction was accounted for as a purchase, and the excess of the
purchase price over the estimated fair market value of the net assets acquired was recorded as goodwill of
$22.7 million and intangible assets of $5.8 million. The intangible assets consist of backlog, customer
relationships and trademarks and patents of $1.0 million, $3.2 million and $1.6 million, respectively, which
are being amortized over the estimated useful lives of 1 to 2 years, 10 years and 5 years, respectively. At
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December 31, 2003, the unamortized balance of purchased intangibles was $3.5 million included in Other
Assets in the consolidated balance sheet.

On March 23, 2001, our subsidiary, Titan Systems Corporation, consummated an agreement to
purchase certain assets from Maxwell Technologies Systems Division, Inc., a subsidiary of Maxwell
Technologies, Inc., which specializes in research, development and technical services primarily for military
applications. The purchase price was approximately $11.5 million in cash, subject to post-closing
adjustments and indemnification obligations, less a $1.7 million holdback, due 180 days from the date of
closing. The initial $9.8 million of the purchase price was paid on April 2, 2001, We received approximately
$0.6 million in July 2001 from Maxwell Technologies, Inc. resulting from the resolution of post-closing
working capital adjustments. Under the agreement, we had full recourse to the seller for all accounts
receivable not collected within 180 days of the closing date. In October 2001, we paid approximately
$1.5 million in full satisfaction of the $1.7 million holdback, as adjusted for uncollected accounts
receivable. The transaction was accounted for as a purchase, and the excess of the purchase price over the
estimated fair market value of the net assets acquired, was amortized on a straight line basis over 30 years
until the adoption of SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002. The remaining unamortized balance of
approximately $6.8 million at December 31, 2003, was ‘reflected as goodwill in the accompanymg
consolidated balance sheet.

‘During 2002, apprommately $2.0 million was paid in satisfaction of purchase price holdbacks for the
SenCom Corporation acquisition made in 2000 and approximately $2.7 million was paid in satisfaction of
purchase price holdbacks for the System Resources Corporation acquisition made in 1999. Each of these
amounts had been recorded as liabilities in periods prior to January 1, 2002.

In 1999, Titan’s subsidiary, Titan Systems Corporation, acquired Atlantic Aerospace Corporation. The
terms of the acquisition provided for up to an additional $3 million in contingent consideration payable
based upon the award of future contracts. During 2001, approximately $1.2 million of contingent
consideration was paid upon the award of certain contracts. In the third quarter of 2003, Titan paid
$1.8 million in full satisfaction of the contingent consideration payable. All amounts paid in 2001 and 2003
had been previously accrued. :

In connection with the determination of the fair value of assets acquired in connection with
acquisitions in 2001, 2000 and 1999, and pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 141, we have valued
acquired contracts in process at contract price, minus the estimated costs to complete and an allowance for
the normal industry profit on its effort to complete such contracts. This adjustment has been reflected in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as an increase to goodwill and a corresponding increase to
deferred profit. We recognized approximately $0.2 million, $2.3 million, and $2.8 million as a reduction of
costs against the deferred profit in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. The remaining amount of
$0.6 million at December 31, 2003 is estimated to reduce costs through 2007.

Note 5. Im.pairment Charge Related to SureBeam

Prior to and in connection with the spin-off of SureBeam Corporatibn, Titan and SureBeam entered
into a number of agreements. Titan extended a $50 million senior secured revolving credit facility of which
$25 million in principal was advanced and is outstanding as of December 31, 2003. The senior credit facility
is secured by a lien on substantially all of SureBeam assets. In addition, Titan guaranteed certain lease-
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Note 5. Impairment Charge Related to SureBeam (Continued)

obligations of SureBeam and subleased facilities to SureBeam. Titan is SureBeam’s only senior secured
lender. The aggregate amount of the lease obligations Titan has guaranteed as of December 31, 2003 is
approximately $18.6 million. The leases extend through periods ending in 2023. The aggregate amount due
to Titan as of December 31, 2003, for future obligations under the sublease agreements for approximately
63,800 square feet for periods through 2010 is approximately $4.9 million. SureBeam’s obligation to
reimburse Titan for any amounts paid under the guarantees is secured under the senior credit facility.

On January 19, 2004, SureBeam voluntarily filed for bankruptcy relief to be liquidated under
Chapter 7 of the United States Bankruptcy Code. As a result of this filing, Titan recorded an estimated
pre-tax impairment charge of $15.8 million (and an associated tax benefit of $6.3 million) in the fourth
quarter of 2003 related to the senior credit facility with SureBeam as well as SureBeam’s other
indebtedness and obligations to us. The ultimate amount of impairment to be recognized is contingent
upon the amount of actual proceeds recovered by Titan from the liquidation of collateral securing the
senior credit facility. The current estimate of such proceeds, which includes estimated sales of equipment
and inventory, primarily electron beam systems and other related components, is approximately
$9.0 million. The ultimate impairment is also dependent upon Titan’s ability to mitigate its obligations
under the facilities lease guarantees through subleases and loan repayments from Hawaii Pride (as
discussed below). The current estimate of such mitigation of obligations under leases and lease guarantees
is approximately $16.8 million. The impairment charge was offset by an $8.1 million liability previously
accrued by Titan to SureBeam under a Tax Allocation Agreement. The actual amount of Titan’s losses
could be lower or higher than currently estimated depending on the amount of SureBeam liquidation
proceeds received and the amount of net payments made under its lease guarantees issued on behalf of
SureBeam and bank debt guarantee related to Hawaii Pride.

On March 4, 2004, Titan entered in a settlement agreement with the bankruptcy trustee for SureBeam
and its subsidiary. The settlement agreement requires bankruptcy court approval to become effective.
Under the settlement agreement, Titan will have an allowed secured claim in the amount of a minimum of
approximately $47.9 million and a first priority perfected lien on all assets of SureBeam other than certain
identified assets of SureBeam. Upon effectiveness of the settlement agreement, the automatic stays in the
bankruptcy will be modified to permit Titan to exercise Titan rights and remedies as a secured creditor and
sublessor, including the right to dispose of collateral. As part of the settlement, Titan also agreed to
undertake commercially reasonable efforts to collect two receivables of SureBeam that by agreement are
excluded from Titan collateral and to deliver the proceeds to the bankruptcy trustee.

In relation to SureBeam’s strategic alliance with Hawaii Pride, Titan has guaranteed repayment of
Hawaii Pride’s bank debt up to the greater of SureBeam’s equity interest in Hawaii Pride (which is zero),
or 19.9% of Hawaii Pride’s $6.8 million, 15-year loan from its lender, WebBank. As of December 31, 2003,
Titan has guaranteed approximately $1.2 million, or 19.9% of the current loan balance of $5.9 million. In
the event that Hawaii Pride defaults on the loan, Titan currently expects to be obligated to cover any
defaults on the entire outstanding balance of the loan if the default is not cured within 90 days. In late
October 2003, Titan was notified by Hawaii Pride that Hawaii Pride had stopped receiving financial
support from SureBeam and did not have sufficient cash resources to make its monthly principal and
interest payments to WebBank. Through March 8, 2004, Titan has loaned approximately $0.2 million to
Hawaii Pride under a new credit facility for a maximum amount of $0.45 million to be advanced to Hawaii
Pride to cover shortfalls in debt service payments. All amounts outstanding under this facility are required
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Note 5. Impairment Charge Related to SureBeam (Continued)

to be repaid by May 2005. In the impairment charge discussed above, Titan has assumed that Hawaii Prlde
will repay amounts advanced on the new credit facility.

Other Agreements. In connection with the license Titan purchased to use SureBeam’s intellectual
property, the remaining unamortized balance of $7.0 million at December 31, 2003, is reflected as a
non-current asset in Other Assets in the consolidated balance sheet. The license is being amortized over a
15 year life, the average life of the related patents. The license was purchased in September 2001, and
includes a world-wide perpetual and exclusive, non-royalty bearing license to use SureBeam’s intellectual
property for all applications and fields other than the food, animal hide and flower markets. Titan has
utilized this technology for its contract with the U.S. Postal Service to provide mail sanitization systems.

Note 6. Exit and Restructuring Charges and Other

Included in the year ended December 31, 2002, is $53.3 million of restructuring costs related to the
merger of Titan Systems into Titan on September 25, 2002, and exit charges related to the shutdown of
Cayenta’s headquarters office. Approximately $11.7 million of these exit charges are related to the
shutdown of the Cayenta headquarters office and network operations center, which includes employee
termination costs and other liabilities of .approximately $4.5 million, lease commitment costs of
approximately $4.8 million, and non-cash asset impairment charges of approx1mate1y $2.4 million relating
primarily to the unamortized leasehold improvements and other fixed assets at the Cayenta headquarters.
The remaining lease commitment costs are expected to be paid: through future periods ending in
January 2007. Included in the employee termination costs were 33 personnel reductions.

Approximately $39.9 million of the restructuring charges were related to the merger of Titan Systems
into Titan and other associated reorganization and consolidation costs. The costs included approximately
$32.2 million for the consolidation of various Titan Systems facilities into centralized locations in Virginia
and California. This charge reflects the estimated losses, net of estimated sublease income, on future lease
commitments of facilities with terms extending through year 2009. Titan has subleased certain of these
facilities and continues to actively pursue additional sublease opportunities for the remaining facilities.
However, the remaining available space is in markets adversely affected by the economy and may not be
subleased at attractive rates or at all. The actual amount of estimated losses on these iease commitments
could change based upon Titan’s ability to obtain sublease arrangements for these facilities. Included in the
employee termination costs are 19 personnel reductions.

Approximately $7.7 million of the Titan Systems restructuring costs were primarily related to
employee termination costs, employee retention costs, duplicate transition costs and professional fees
related to acquisitions and certain reorganization and consolidation activities within Titan Systems.

The remaining $1.7 million was related to direct transaction costs incurred by Titan on acquisitions
that did not close, primarily the Science and Engineering Associates, Inc. proposed acquisition.

At December 31, 2003, accruals for all exit and restructuring charges totaled $27.9 million, comprised
primarily of restructuring charges related to the merger of Titan Systems into Titan on September 25, 2002
and exit charges related to the shutdown of Cayenta’s headquarters office. These exit and restructuring
activities were accounted for under EITF Issue No. 94-3, which allowed accrual of restructuring costs upon
commitment to a plan and certain other criteria. Effective January 1, 2003, Titan was required to adopt
SFAS No. 146 “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”. SFAS No. 146 requires
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Note 6. Exit and Restructuring Charges and Other (Continued)

companies to defer recognition of a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity until that
liability is incurred and can be measured at fair value. As these restructuring activities were entered into
prior to our adoption of SFAS No. 146, Titan has accounted for these activities under EITF 94-3. A
summary of exit and restructuring charges and other recorded and the utilization of those accruals during
the years ended pecember 31, 2002 and 2003 is as follows:

Charges : Balance Balance
recorded Asset Cash paid December 31, Cash paid December 31,
in 2002  Disposals 2002 2002 2003 2003
Titan Systems restructuring; »
Estimated facilities consolidation
COSES oot e et $32,226 $§ — § 155 ° $32,071 $4,775 $27,296
Employee termination/retention S '
costsandother.............. 7,703 — . 5965 1,738 1,738 —
739,929 — 6120 33,809 6,513 27,296
Transaction costs for unsuccessful ' :
deals . ...................... 1,726 +~ — 1,129 597 597 —
41,655 — 7,249 134,406 7,110 27,296
Cayenta headquarters exit costs: ‘ ' o '
Lease commitment costs. . ....... 4,816 — 1,680 3,136 2,511 625
Asset impairment costs. . ... ..... 2,444 2444 — — — ' —
Employee termination costs and ‘ ' ‘ »
other ............... e 4,402 — 4,183 219 © 212 7
‘ 11,662 2,444 5,863 3,355 2,723 632

$53,317 $2,444 $13,112  $37,761 $9,833 $27,928

At December 31, 2003, $16.4 million of the exit and restructuring accruals are included in Other
Accrued Liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet and $11.5 million are included in Other Non-current
Liabilities. The remaining accrual balance is primarily comprised of amounts due under the facilities
consolidation, which requires payments in 2004 for certain lease cancellation fees and other lease costs, net
of assumed sublease income, with the remainder expected to be paid over the remaining lease terms, which
expire in 2009. :

Note 7. Acquisition and Integration Related Charges and Other

Acquisition and integration related charges and other of $27.9 million in 2001 included $12.2 million
related to the integration of ACS and AverStar and other restructuring and realignment activities in our
government business, a $5.5 million impairment charge for fixed assets associated with Cayenta’s network
operations center and $10.0 million related to other asset impairments and restructuring activities
associated with Cayenta’s headquarters office, and $0.2 million related to personnel reductions in
Cayenta’s federal government business, which is now a part of Titan’s core government business. Liabilities
of $1.3 million related to the charges remained at December 31, 2001, which were paid in 2002.
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Note 8. Discontinued Operations
2002 Discontinued Operations -

In August 2002, Titan’s board of directors made the decision to sell or otherwise divest its LinCom
Wireless business and to sell our remaining commercial information technology business, both of which
were previously reported in our Titan Technologies segment. Accordingly, Titan has reflected both
operations as discontinued in accordance with SFAS No. 144. In October 2002, the LinCom Wireless
business was shut down. The remaining commercial information technology business is currently held for
sale. » -

In July 2002, Titan’s board of directors made the decision to exit all of our international
telecommunications business through a combination of selling and winding down our operations within
- our Titan Wireless segment. Titan immediately began implementing these actions, which were substantially
completed during 2003. We reported this exit of the Titan Wireless segment as a discontinued operation in
accordance with SFAS No. 144. : o

During the first quarter of 2002, Titan’s board of directors made the decision to sell certain of its
commercial information technology operations within the Cayenta segment and the AverCom business
within the Titan Technologies segment. These businesses were sold in 2002.

In the third quarter of 2003, Titan completed the sale of its GlobalNet business. Payments received for
the sale of GlobalNet consisted of approximately $2 million in cash, notes receivable of approximately
$1.5 million, and the buyer’s assumption of all of the outstanding liabilities of GlobalNet, which aggregated
to approximately $21 million at the time of the consummation of the sale. Titan has collected
approximately $0.5 million of the amounts due under the notes receivable, and expects to collect the
remaining $1 million in the first quarter of 2004, The AverCom business was sold in July 2002. In
accordance with SFAS No. 144, all commercial operations that have been sold or are held for sale have
been reflected as discontinued operations for all periods presented in Titan’s consolidated financial
statements. ‘

Titan Wireless
Overview

On July 11, 2002, Titan announced it would exit all of its international telecommunications business,
directly as a result of an increasingly deteriorating market, particularly in the wholesale long distance
business. Notably, the bankruptcies of Global Crossing, Ltd., WorldCom, Inc. and PhonelGlobalwide
Corporation (formerly Globaltron Corporation), and the dire financial condition of other providers, such
as ibasis, imposed a rapid and sudden deterioration in wholesale prices in 2002. As a direct result of
decreasing wholesale margins, and the difficulty of providers to obtain financing to invest in new projects
globally, Titan’s telecommunications business operating results declined substantially beginning in the
second quarter of 2002. The losses in the second quarter of 2002 and the bleak outlook of the
telecommunications market globally led to the July 2002 Titan board of directors decision to exit these
markets. Titan has substantially completed the sale and winding down of all of its operations within Titan
Wireless, including all of the operations discussed below.
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Note 8. Discontinued Operations (Continued)
Acquisitions and Investments
GlobalNet, Inc.

On March 21, 2002, Titan completed the acquisition of GlobalNet, Inc. (GlobalNet), a provider of
international voice, data, and Internet services. Titan issued approximately 1,452,800 shares of common
stock for all the common stock of GlobalNet at an aggregate value of $28.6 million, based on $19.67 per
Titan share, the average trading price ending March 15, 2002, the date on which the formula for
consideration became fixed, and assumed stock options and warrants representing approximately 77,900
shares of Titan common stock at an aggregate value of $0.8 million, based on an exchange ratio of 0.3853
shares of Titan common stock for each share of GlobalNet common stock. GlobalNet’s operations from
March 22, 2002 were reported in our Titan Wireless business, which was discontinued in the third quarter
of 2002. The transaction was accounted for as a purchase. The excess of the purchase price of $29.4 miilion
over the estimated fair market value of the net liabilities acquired of approximately $26.4 million was
approximately $55.8 million. In April 2002, Titan obtained an independent valuation completed by
“independent valuation specialists Bearing Point to ‘assist in its purchase price allocation of the GlobalNet
acquisition. The independent valuation was used by Titan to allocate $55.8 million to goodwill and $0 to
intangible assets as of March 31, 2002.

As a result of Titan’s decision on July 11, 2002, to exit its telecommunications business and to sell
certain of these businesses, Titan determined in the third quarter of 2002 that there was an impairment of
the carrying value of GlobalNet'’s goodwill of approximately $55.8 million in accordance with
SFAS No. 142. The measurement of this impairment was evident based upon estimates of fair value, as
determined by recent offers from potential buyers, compared to the carrying value of the asset. As
discussed above, Titan completed the sale of its GlobalNet business in the third quarter of 2003. The sale
resulted in a gain of $12.2 million, resulting from a previous write-down of the carrying value of the net
assets, which ultimately was recovered at the time of the sale.

Ivoire Télecom

On June 28, 2000, Titan Wireless Afripa Holding, Inc., a subsidiary of Titan Wireless, made a
$5 million investment to acquire 80% of the outstanding equity interests in Ivoire Telecom S.A., a
Luxembourg-chartered company that intended to engage, through various majority-owned local
subsidiaries, in a wireless telecommunications business in Africa using a satellite uplink through France.
Titan’s primary long-term investment objective was to acquire through the various majority-owned local
subsidiaries of Ivoire Telecom what Titan considered to be potentially valuable telécommunications
licenses in African countries, build out a supporting network and backbone system to carry traffic in these
countries and then, ultimately, to realize its investment by sale of the fully operational business. This
investment was subsequently sold in 2003 for approximately $0.5 million cash consideration.

At the time of the initial equity investment, Titan also advanced an additional $5.5 million to Ivoire
Telecom for working capital in exchange for a promissory note. In addition, Titan agreed to lend Ivoire
Telecom up to $35 million in additional funds pursuant to a line of credit agreement. Such funds were to be
used for capital and other expenditures necessary to acquire licenses, fund operations and construct and
build out the necessary infrastructure of Ivoire Telecom’s telecom network in Africa. To that end, Titan
also contributed equipment with an approximate aggregate value of $4.5 million to Ivoire Telecom.
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At the time Titan made its investment, Ivoire Telecom held only a few licenses and was just beginning
operations and the build-out of its network. Titan had arranged to work with Ivoire Telecom’s chief
executive officer to enhance Ivoire Telecom’s existing system of financial controls, policies and procedures
such that Titan would have the ability to exercise significant influence through its status as the majority
stockholder over each of Ivoire Telecom’s operating subsidiaries, through which the business was to be
conducted. As part of this effort, it was Titan’s plan to develop and have in place a system of financial
controls, policies and procedures sufficient for U.S. financial reporting purposes and conforming to the
requirements of Section 13(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. In pertinent part, subsection (2) of
that section of the Exchange Act requires Titan to: -

(A) Make and keep books, records, and accounts which, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of assets of Titan; and

(B) Devise and maintain a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable
assurances that: :

(i) Transactions are executed in’ accordance with management’s general or specific
authorization;

(if) Transactions are recorded as necessary (I) to permit preparation of financial statements in
‘conformity with generally accepted accounting principles or any other criteria applicable to
such statements, and (II) to maintain accountability for assets;

(iii) Access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management’s general or specific
authorization; and

(iv) The recorded accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable
intervals and appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences.

Titan encountered significant difficulties in obtaining consolidated financial results from Ivoire
Telecom shortly after the initial investment was made. The difficulties in obtaining accurate and timely
financial information were further complicated by the rapidly growing business of Ivoire Telecom, which
expanded from a start-up business to a company with 14 operating subsidiaries in various countries.
Although this rapid growth was contemplated by the business plan and positive from a business
perspective, it produced multiple-currency and multiple-entity consolidation implications. Beginning in
July 2000, the Chief Financial Officer of Titan Wireless and other Titan personnel made regular trips,
generally on a monthly basis, to Ivoire Telecom’s headquarters to attempt to work directly with Ivoire
Telecom’s accounting staff and management to improve reporting awareness and capability. After Titan’s
repeated attempts to obtain the requisite financial information were unsuccessful, Titan was forced to
conclude that enhancing Ivoire Telecom’s existing system of financial controls, policies and procedures to a
system sufficient for U.S. financial reporting purposes was not a priority of Ivoire Telecom’s management
and accounting personnel.

Titan engaged a global independent public accounting firm to audit the financial statements of Ivoire
Telecom for the year ended December 31, 2001. The independent public accounting firm did not complete
its audit procedures due to difficulties encountered in resolving open audit issues. Specifically, the
independent public accounting firm reported that there were weaknesses in internal controls, inconsistent
accounting policies and procedures, and limited use of management information systems, all resuiting in
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the inability of Ivoire Telecom to prepare and report accurate financial statements sufficient for U.S.
financial reporting purposes. All of Titan’s requests and other direct actions have resulted in no success in
obtaining timely and reliable financial statements meeting U.S. standards from Ivoire Telecom. -

Titan consolidated the operating results of Ivoire Telecom for the period from July 1, 2000 through
December 31, 2000 in Titan’s reporting period from October 1, 2000 through March 31, 2001 (reflecting a
three month reporting lag), which cumulative results included approximately $0.4 million of revenues and
$3.4 million of pre-tax operating losses. During the second quarter of 2001, however, Titan appropriately
concluded that, as a result of its inability to control or exert significant influence on Ivoire Telecom’s
financial policies, Titan ceased consolidation and determined that the cost method was appropriate.

- Additionally, Titan believes that it has taken all actions necessary to be kept well informed of Ivoire
Telecom’s business, network build-out and use of proceeds from the advances through regular operational
status reports and continuing discussions with Ivoire Telecom’s management and major equipment
providers, as well as through the physical installation, test and inspection of assets and equipment
purchased using such proceeds. Specifically, Titan Wireless’s technical team performed in-country
installation and test procedures on selected network equipment, and provided direct installation guidelines
to Ivoire Telecom’s equipment providers. Further, Titan Wireless management performed periodic site
visits of the significant subsidiaries, which included a physical verification of the significant network assets.
As a result of this continuing interaction with Ivoire Telecom and the verification from its customers that
Ivoire Telecom was in fact carrying long distance traffic over the network, Titan was able to monitor the
use of Ivoire Telecom’s assets and equipment. In this regard, Titan believes that its controls were sufficient
to have reasonable assurances that the asséts were used in accordance with Titan’s authorization of the
advances.

Titan engaged in substantial efforts to establish appropriate financial controls and procedures to
enable accurate and timely reporting of financial results of Ivoire Telecom. These efforts, as discussed
above, were not successful, leading Titan to cease consolidating the operating results of Ivoire Telecom and
reporting its investment on the cost method. While inadequate to support continued consolidation, Ivoire
Telecom did have adequate controls and practices in place to permit Titan to monitor the use of funds by
Ivoire lelecom to acquire telecommunications equipment, licenses, and related infrastructure in
accordance with the business plan developed by Ivoire Telecom. Accordingly, Titan believes that it
complied with the requirements of Section 13(b) noted above in all material respects. In the third quarter
of 2002, the entire carrying value of the investment of approximately $52 million was determined to be
impaired and written off. In the second quarter of 2003, Titan sold its interest in Ivoire Telecom for
consideration of approximately $0.5 million cash.

Sakon LLC

In January 1999, the Company invested approximately $0.5 million for a 19.9% ownership interest in a
joint venture with Sakon. In July 2000, Titan loaned Sakon $15 million pursuant to a loan agreement. In
October 2000, Titan exercised its option pursuant to the loan agreement to convert amounts owed under
the loan into additional equity interest of 30.0% of Sakon, bringing the total equity interest in Sakon to
49.9%. This equity interest was converted in August 2002 from a 49.9% voting interest to a 15% voting
interest and a 34.9% non-voting interest. At such time, the amount outstanding of $15 million under the
loan was converted to purchase consideration as the initial payment due under the terms of the agreement
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and recorded as goodwill. Under the terms of the agreement, an additional $12.5 million of consideration
was due and payable upon certain revenue targets being attained. These targets were met in January 2001,
and a $5.0 million instailment was made in the second quarter of 2001, a $3.75 million installment was
made in the first quarter of 2002, and the remainder was paid in the third quarter of 2002. The excess of
the purchase price over the estimated fair market value of the net assets acquired, which has been
amortized over 20 years, was approximately $26.8 million at December 31, 2001. In connection with the
new requirements for evaluation of goodwill under SFAS No. 142, the $26.8 million was determined to be
impaired and was fully expensed in the third quarter of 2002. Prior to August 2002, Titan consolidated the
operating results of Sakon due to Titan’s ability to control and significantly influence the operations and
policies of Sakon, in accordance with a management agreement with Sakon. In August 2002, the
management agreement was modified to nullify Titan’s ability to control Sakon, and Titan resigned from
the management committee of Sakon. Accordingly, Titan has no ability to substantially influence or control
the operations of Sakon. Thereafter, Titan’s investment in Sakon has been accounted for under the cost
method, for which the investment carrying value was written down to zero in 2002.

Benin

On December 10, 1999, Titan’s wholly owned subsidiary, Titan Africa, Inc. (Titan Africa), in
connection with its contract to build a satellite-based telephone system for its customer, the national
telephone company of Benin, Africa (the OPT), entered into a Loan Facility agreement for up to
30.0 billion Francs CFA (the currency of the African Financial Community), equivalent to approximately
$45.0 million U.S. dollars, with a syndicate of five banks, with Africa Merchant Bank as the arranger. This
financing was subsequently increased by 6.0 billion francs CFA to approximately $54.0 million. This
medium term financing is a non-recourse loan to Titan Africa which is guaranteed by the national
telephone company of Benin, Africa and secured by the national telephone company’s equipment and
revenues related to the project. The facility has a fixed interest rate of 9.5% per year and was originalily to
be repaid in seven equal semi-annual payments from the net receipts of this project, or by the OPT in the
event that such receipts are not adequate to make these payments, which commenced on December 31,
2000 and were scheduled to end on December 31, 2003. The payment terms were subsequently amended
calling for quarterly payments through mid 2006. The borrowings on this facility have been utilized to fund
various equipment and subcontractor costs incurred most notably by Alcatel of France, a major
subcontractor to this project. '

Related to Titan’s contract with the OPT, Titan has a $46.2 million gross receivable due from the OPT,
which is reflected in Current Assets of Discontinued Operations as of December 31, 2003. Of this amount,
approximately $32.3 million is recorded as a receivable on the project, reflecting the outstanding balance
on the non-recourse loan, drawn to cover subcontract costs. The remaining $14 million net receivable
represents amounts due from the OPT under the Titan settlement agreement entered into with the OPT.
Titan entered into the settlement in October 2003 pursuant to which Titan was to be paid $29.5 million in
full satisfaction of Titan’s performance on the OPT contract, of which $14 million remains outstanding as
of December 31, 2003.
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Note 8. Discontinued Operations (Continued)
Operating Results

For the year ended December 31, 2003, Titan Wireless generated $71.5 million of revenues and net
income of $1.0 million, net of a $7.4 million tax benefit. The revenues were primarily generated by the
GlobalNet business for the period prior to the sale of the business in the third quarter of 2003. The net
income was primarily a result of operating losses of $2.8 million, and the gain from the disposition of the
GlobalNet business of $12.2 million, resulting from a previous write-down of the carrying value of the net
assets, for which a tax provision was not provided due to prior losses. The gain was offset by impairment
charges of $10.8 million resulting from the terms of the settlement agreements with Titan’s customers in
Nigeria and Benin, and by approximately $5 million of charges accrued for the exit activities in Benin.
Included in the operating losses of Titan Wireless for 2003 is interest expense allocated to discontinued
operations of $0.7 million.

Included in Titan Wireless’ net loss for the year ended December 31, 2002 are impairment charges of
$211.4 million, or $137.4 million, net of tax, that were recorded as a result of Titan’s decision to exit its
international telecommunications business. The charges were comprised of the following: (1) impairment
of goodwill in accordance with SFAS No. 142 of approximately $74.8 million, primarily comprised of
Titan’s acquisition of GlobalNet discussed above and Sakon, recorded in accordance with SFAS No. 142;
(2) impairment of investments of approximately $62.6 million, primarily comprised of Titan’s investment in
Ivoire Telecom discussed above; (3) and impairment of fixed and other assets of approximately
$74.0 million.

In addition, exit charges of approximately $20.1 million were recorded in the third quarter of 2002,
primarily related to outstanding commitments of warranty obligations of $3.9 million, commitments for
space satellite segments of $3.0 million, and outstanding lease obligations of $1.6 million. The remaining
$11.6 million of the charge is primarily related to employee termination costs of $2.6 million, other
estimated direct costs to exit these businesses of $4.0 million and the estimated settlements of other
obligations of approximately $5.0 million. Such commitments are expected to be paid through the first half
of 2004. As of December 31, 2003, approximately $3.8 million is included in current liabilities of
discontinued operations. ‘

In summary, included in Titan Wireless’ net loss for 2002 is an impairment charge of $211.4 million,
exit charges of $20.1 million and pre-tax losses excluding impairment and exit charges of $8.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2002. Included in the operating losses of Titan Wireless for 2002 is interest
expense allocated to discontinued operations of $0.7 million.

Titan Technologies

For the year ended December 31, 2003, the discontinued operations of Titan Technologies had
revenues of approximately $13.8 million and a net loss of $1.9 million, net of a tax benefit of $8.2 million.
The loss was comprised of a $7.4 million operating loss and a $2.7 million impairment loss recorded to
reflect the most recent indications of fair value of the carrying value of the net assets. Included in the
results for Titan Technologies is a tax benefit of $2.3 million to reflect the estimated tax impact of adjusting
the carrying value of certain assets which are currently held for sale related to the remaining commercial
information technology business that was formerly reported in the Titan Technologies segment. Included in
the operating losses of 2003 is interest expense allocated to discontinued operations of $0.4 million.

73



THE TITAN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(in thousands, except share and per share data, or as otherwise noted)

Note 8. Discontinued Operations (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2002, the discontinued operations of Titan Technologies generated
revenues of $31.4 million and a net loss of $48.0 million, net of a $20.6 million tax benefit. Included in
Titan Technologies’ net loss for 2002 is an impairment charge of $43.7 million, related to LinCom Wireless,
AverCom and Titan’s commercial information technology business. The measurement of this impairment
is based upon indications of fair value, resulting in a write-off of the carrying value of its assets which
included an impairment of goodwill of $21.0 million, in accordance with SFAS No. 142, and impairment of
other assets of $22.7 million consisting primarily of fixed assets and capitalized software. In addition, exit
charges of approximately $4.3 million were recorded primarily related to employee termination costs, lease
termination costs and other outstanding commitments.

In September 2002, certain assets of the AverCom business were sold for $0.5 million cash and an
earn-out of $0.6 million of additional consideration based on certain gross margin targets. In addition,
Titan retained approximately $3.0 million of net accounts receivable balances, which were substantially
collected by December 31, 2002. In addition to the impairment of goodwill of $21.0 million, a charge of
$14.9 million was recorded on January 1, 2002, when Titan adopted SFAS No. 142 which was reported as a
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle.

In addition to the impairment charges discussed above, pre-tax losses excluding impairment and exit
charges for the Titan Technologies businesses for 2002 were $20.5 million. Included in the operating losses
for 2002 is interest expense allocated to discontinued operations of $0.8 million.

Cayenta

In July 2002, the two information technology businesses of Cayenta were sold, for cash received to
date of $0.2 million. For the year ended December 31, 2002, these businesses generated revenues of
$6.4 million and a net loss of $4.8 million, net of a tax benefit of $2.7 million. Included in the net loss is a
charge for goodwill impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 142 associated with these two businesses of
approximately $1.1 million, and other asset impairments of approximately $3.2 million. In addition, a
$27.5 million impairment of goodwill was recorded on January 1, 2002, when Titan adopted SFAS No. 142
which was reported as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. In addition to the
impairment charges noted above, operating losses, net of tax, for the year ended December 31, 2002 were
$3.2 million, and included $0.1 million in interest expense allocated to discontinued operations.

The consolidated financial statements of Titan for all periods presented have been restated to reﬂect
all businesses dlscussed above as discontinued in accordance with SFAS No. 144,

2001 Discontinued Operations

On March 16, 2001, SureBeam Corporation, Titan’s former subsidiary that provided electronic
irradiation systems and services, completed an initial public offering (IPO) of 6,700,000 shares of Class A
common stock at a price of $10 per share. On October 16, 2001, Titan adopted a definitive plan to spin off
SureBeam in the form of a tax-free dividend to Titan stockholders within the next 12 months from that
date. The plan involved filing a letter ruling request with the IRS to obtain approval of the tax-free
distribution. Titan received a favorable ruling in May 2002, and on August S5, 2002, Titan’s remaining
ownership interest in SureBeam was spun-off to Titan stockholders as a tax-free dividend. Prior to the
adoption of the spin-off plan, Titan reported the SureBeam business as a separate segment. In accordance
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Note 8. Discontinued Operations (Continued)

with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations-Reporting the
Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring
Events and Transactions,” the consolidated financial statements of Titan for all periods prior to the
spin-off have been restated to reflect SureBeam as a discontinued business. The net assets of SureBeam as
of August 5, 2002 and tax liabilities and other costs resulting from the spin-off resulted in a net dividend of
approximately $105.4 million which was recorded as a decrease to paid-in-capital, partially offset by the
reduction in deferred compensation related to deferred compensation charges in 2000 and 2001, reflecting
the net value distributed to Titan’s stockholders. The net assets excluded SureBeam’s liability to Titan of
$15 million at August 5, 2002 under SureBeam’s line of credit with Titan (see Note 5).

At the time Titan adopted the plan to spin-off SureBeam, in accordance with APB No. 30, we
recorded a charge of $35.4 million for estimated costs of disposal and for estimated operating losses up to
the date of disposal. This charge was recorded in the third quarter of 2001. All losses incurred by
SureBeam after that time were charged against this accrual. Losses charged against the accrual in 2001
were $14.9 million and in 2002 were $20.5 million in the six months ended June 30, 2002. An additional
charge of $11.0 million was taken during the second quarter of 2002 to record the net losses (in excess of
the accrual) incurred by SureBeam during the second quarter of 2002 as well as estimated operating losses
and spin-off expenses expected to be incurred through the spin-off date of August 5, 2002. Subsequent to
that date, SureBeam is no longer included in Titan’s results of operations. Losses through August 5, 2002
charged against the accrual in the third quarter of 2002 were $1.8 million. Approximately $3.5 million of
costs related to the spin-off were charged against the loss accruals, which is $0 as of December 31, 2003.

Revenues and net loss generated by SureBeam for the year ended December 31, 2001 were
$24.2 million and $76.1 million, respectively. Included in SureBeam’s net loss in 2001 is deferred
compensation of $54.3 million. Included in SureBeam’s net losses is interest expense of $7.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2001, related to the promissory note SureBeam had payable to us.

Following are summaries in tabular format of the loss from discontinued operations for 2003 and
2002:

Year ended December 31, 2003

Titan Titan
Wireless Technolegies Total

Gain on sale of business, net . ............... $ 12,195 § —  $ 12,195
Exitcharges ... ..., (5,000) — (5,000)
Impairment of assets . . .......... ... ...... ~(10,790) (2,679)  (13,469)

(3,595) (2,679 (6,274)
Loss from operations. . . ..., (2,783) (7,406)  (10,189)

(6,378)  (10,085)  (16,463)
Tax benefit . . ..o ot (7,392)  (8217)  (15,609)
Net income (loss) ........................ $ 1,014 (1,868) (854)

As discussed above, the 2003 tax benefit reflected in Titan Wireless was impacted by the GlobalNet
sale for which a tax provision was not provided due to prior losses, and the Titan Technologies tax benefit
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Note 8. Discontinued Operations (Continued)

was impacted by an adjustment to the carrying value of certain assets which are currently held for sale in
Titan’s remaining commercial information technology business that was previously part of Titan
Technologies.

Year ended December 31, 2002

Titan ‘ Titan .

Wireless Technologies Cayenta  SureBeam Total
Impairment of goodwill . .. ... e $ (74,818) $(21,022) $(1,121) § — $ (96,961)
Impairment of investments . . ............ (62,600). — — — (62,600)
Impairment of fixed and other assets. . . . . .. (74,001)  (22,714) (3,134) — (99,849)
Exit charges. .. ....... [ e (20,062) (4,341) — — - (24,403)

(231,481)  (48,077)  (4,255) . —  (283,813)
Losses from operations ................ (8,824) . (20,508) (3,197) (11,014)  (43,543)

(240,305)  (68,585)  (7,452) (11,014) (327,356)
Tax benefit ........... e e (84,888)  (20,563) (2,698)  (1,101) (109,250)
Netloss..........ooovvnn. EERERI . $(155,417)  $(48,022) $(4,754) $ (9,913) $(218,106)
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Note 8. Discontinued Operations (Continued)
Balance Sheet Summary

Following is a table of all related balance sheet categories for each discontinued operation:

As of December 31,

2003 2002
Current assets of discontinued operations:
Titan WIreless . . . . ..o et $46,584 § 93,145
Cayenta . .. ... e e - 661
Titan Technologies. . . .. ..o i e 8,185 10,065

$54,769  $103,871

Non-current assets of discontinued operations:

Titan WITEless . . . . v vt o e e e e e e $ — § 4212
Titan Technologies. . .. ............... e —. 2,370

$8 — § 6582

Current liabilities of discontinued operations:

Titan WIreless . . .o oo n e e e e e $12,540 $ 38,603
Cayenta ........ e e 97 2,155
SureBeam ... ... ... .. .. - 187
Titan Technologies. . .. ... e e e 6,146 8,198

$18,783 § 49,143

Non-current liabilities of discontinued operations: _ ‘ o
Titan WIreless . . .. oottt $32,307 $ 42,821

Cayenta ....... ... e 535 1,205
Titan Technologies. . .. ... ... . ... i, 1,504 800

$34,346  $ 44,826

Included in the total assets of Titan Wireless as of December 31, 2002 are approximately $46.6 million
of gross accounts receivable, less approximately $32.3 million (classified as a non current liability)
representing the amounts drawn on the non recourse loan facility with the African Merchant Bank to cover

- subcontract costs on Titan Wireless’s contract with the Office of Post and Telecommunications (OPT). The
net accounts receivable of $14.3 million are comprised of approximately $14 million due from the OPT,
and $0.3 million due from Titan Wireless’s customer in Nigeria. The amount due from the customer in
Nigeria was collected in the first quarter of 2004. The current liabilities of $12.5 million of Titan Wireless
include approximately $9.8 million of remaining exit costs.

The current assets of Titan Technologies are primarily comprised of cash, accounts receivable balances
and prepaid assets.
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Note 9. Other Financial Data

Following are details concerning certain balance sheet accounts:

At December 31,

2003 2002
Accounts Receivable:
U.S. Government—billed. . ...................... ... $313,578  $250,118
U.S. Government—unbilled . .. .............. [ 63,141 48,728
Trade ... oo e e e 14,818 22,295
Less allowance for doubtful accounts . .................. (3,574 (6,778)

$387,963  $314,363

Billing in excess of costs incurred are recorded as reductions to accounts receivable and total
$5.1 million and $8.9 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Deferred revenue included in
Other Accrued Liabilities totaled $12.9 million at December 31, 2003.

At December 31,

2003 2002
Inventories:
Materials . .. .. i e - $ 8448 § 11213
WOrk-in-process . .. .. covee it 15,554 9,947
Finishedgoods . ....... ... ... i 5,403 10,120

$ 29405 § 31,280

Property and Equipment: ‘ ’
Machinery and equipment. . .. ......... ... .. ... . ... $ 127,629 $ 118,540

Furniture and fixtures . . . . ... ... .. i 21,855 26,225
Land, buildings and leasehold improvements . ... ... e 28,281 28,162
Construction in Progress . . .« .o vvvv v v e un e e 1,985 1,664

179,750 174,591
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ......... (113,959) (110,886)

$ 65791 § 63,705
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Note 9. Other Financial Data (Continued)

Following is information related to intangible assets:

As of December 31, 2003

Gross
Carrying  Accumulated
Amount Amoritization  Net Value

Purchased intangibles . . . ................... $18,735 $10,110 $ 8,625
License agreement . . . ...............vv.... 8,000 1,006 6,994
Deferred financing costs . . . .. ....... ... ... .. 16,481 2,565 13,916
All other intangible assets . ............... . 2,566 350 2,216

$45,782 $14,031 $31,751

As of December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Aggregate amortization eXpense . .. .................. $5,232  $6,380 $246
Estimated aggregate amortization expense:

2004 ... P $6,599

2005 .. e $6,193

2000 . ... $4,518

2007 . $3,383

2008 .. e e $3,383

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

‘ 2003 2002 2001
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Stock issued for acquisitions . . ... ............. $ 3,259 $137,811 - $144,764
Gain related to issuance of stock in subsidiary . . . .. — — 52,025
Deferred compensation related to the issuance of

stock options . ........ ..o oL —_ 29,834 78,725
Shares contributed to employee benefit plans. . . ... 6,527 7,529 4,941
Write-off of deferred debt issuance costs . ........ 8,071 9,435 —
Write-off of deferred compensation related to

discontinued operations. . . ........:........ — 629 —
Shares tendered for option exercises . ........... 144 — 392
Cash paid for interest. ................. ... .. $31,557 $ 32,408 $ 38,021
Cash paid (refunds) for taxes . ..... PR e 1,149 (8,747) 3,612

In 2002, Titan issued 172,153 shares of Titan common stock valued at $3.8 million as consideration for
the purchase of assets of a company which became part of the Cayenta business, now reported in
discontinued operations. In the second quarter of 2003, the indemnification period as defined per the asset
purchase agreement expired, and as provided for in the purchase agreement, Titan elected to exchange all
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of the Titan common stock for cash of $2.0 million and the extinguishment of notes receivable of
$1.8 million for cash advances made in 2002.

Details regarding the acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired, in the Consolidated Statements
of Cash Flows are as follows:-

Year Ended December 31, 2003
Cash

Cash Paid  Acquired Net
Acquisition:
Advent SYSIEIMS . . vt $(14,781) $2,682  $(12,099)
International Systems. ... .................... (217) — (217)
Earn-out consideration for Atlantic Aerospace
Electronics Corporation . ................... (1,773) — (1,773)
$(16,771) $2,682  $(14,089)
Year Ended December 31, 2002
Cash
Cash Paid  Acquired Net
Acquisition:
JayCOr o $ —  $35,982 $35,982
Wave Systems ................ e (8,476) 4,678  (3,798)
International Systems . . ............. ... ... .. — 172 172
Purchase -adjustments for prior year acquisitions. .. . . (4,947) —  (4,947)
‘ $(13,423) $40,832 $27,409
Year Ended December 31, 2001
Cash
Cash Paid  Acquired Net
Acquisition:
BTG....... e e e e $(23,423) $1,193  $(22,230)
Datron . . ... . . e e — 3,652 3,652
Maxwell ...... ... ... .. . (10,661) — - (10,661)
Purchase adjustments for prior year acquisitions . . . . (4,932) — (4,932)

$(39,016) $4,845  $(34,171)

Titan’s investments in non-marketable securities as of December 31, 2003, include $3.5 million in
Etenna Corporation, reported in Other Assets. In 2003, we recorded a loss on investments of $6.2 million
related to an unrealized loss on the carrying value of our investment in Etenna Corporation based upon
recent indications of fair value, and an unrealized loss on our investment in DOAR Communications that
was subsequently sold at a loss in January 2004. All other investments in non-marketable securities totaled
$8.5 million at December 31, 2003, and are reported in Other Assets.
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Substantially all of Titan’s operations are located in the United States. Export and foreign revenues
amounted to approximately $36.6 million, $29.6 million, and $21.4 million in 2003, 2002, and 2001,
respectively, related primarily to customers in Europe, the Middle East, Africa and Asia. Substantially all
international sales are denominated in U.S. dollars. The increase in export and foreign revenues from 2002
to 2003 is primarily due to increased revenues of approximately $10.4 million to Titan’s customers in the
United Kingdom.

Sales to the U.S. government, including both defense and non-defense agencies, and sales as a
subcontractor as well as direct sales, aggregated approximately $1 702.0 mllllon in 2003, $1,320.0 m11110n in
2002, and $905.3 million in 2001.

Note 10. Income Taxes

The components of the income tax provision (benefit) from continuing operations are as follows:

2003 2002 2001
Current: ' ‘
Federal ........0... ..., $ — 8 — 85 —
Foreign ..... ... . — — —
State ....... S C 2,372 1,458 1,255
o - 2372 1458 1,255
Deferred Ll 19081  (7,937)  (248)

$22,353 $(6,479) $1,007

Following is a reconciliation of the income tax provision (benefit) from continuing operations
expected (based on the United States federal income tax rate applicable in each year) to the actual tax
provision (benefit) on income (loss):

‘ 2003 20027 2001

Expected federal tax provision on continuing - , ‘

OPETatioNs . .\ v vt vttt $18,308 $(6,706) $(2,441)
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit . . 2,354 (1,128) 1,255

' State taxes in separate f1hng states, net of federal

benefit ....... .. ... . — - 963 —
Goodwill amortization ........ L — — 1,283 -
Change in valuation allowance .................. — — —
Adjustment to estimated tax accruals . ............. (2,285) — —
Capital loss not benefited . ... ... ... e 2,277 —_ —
Acquisition charges andother ................... 7% @0 — 740
Meals and entertainment . ..................... 399 251 175
Other ....... ... S - 504 141 (%)
Actual tax provision (benefit) on continuing '

OPETations . . ..ottt e e $22,353  $(6,479) $ 1,007
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The net deferred tax asset as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, results from the following temporary
differences:

2003 - 2002

Loss carryforward . . . ... S $ 85,072 $ 69,053
Employee benefits. . ............. .. ... .. ... 24,696 32,018
Purchased other intangibles . . .................. (3,287) (5,487)
Tax credit carryforwards .................. ... 7,264 . 4,336
Inventory, contract loss and other reserves . ........ 39,254 50,608
Accounts and unbilled receivables ............... (6,471) (4,893)
Accrued liabilities . . .......... N 11,974 10,850
Depreciation and amortization. . ............... . (9,027) 18,723
Other. . ... i e . 2,277 —_

151,752 175,208
Valuation allowance ............... ... .. ... (8,767) (24,712)
Deferred tax asset, net .. ......... .. iier... $142985 $150,496

Realization of certain components of the net deferred tax asset is dependent upon our generating
sufficient taxable income prior to expiration of loss and credit carryforwards. The federal net operating loss
carryforwards at December 31, 2003, are approximately $230 million, which carryforwards will expire in
periods through 2023. Although realization is not assured, management believes it is more likely than not
that. the net deferred tax asset will be realized. The amount of the net deferred tax asset considered
‘realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the
carryforward period are reduced. Also, under Federal tax law, certain potential changes in ownership of
Titan may limit annual future utilization of these carryforwards. As such, the valuation allowance recorded
is provided against certain carryforwards which may not be utilized. The change in the valuation allowance
from 2002 to 2003 primarily reflects the sale of GlobalNet in 2003, for which a valuation allowance had
been provided for GlobalNet’s deferred tax assets in 2002. Prepaid Expenses and Other at December 31,
2003 and 2002 include prepaid taxes of $4.0 million and $3.1 million. Other Non-current Liabilities at
December 31, 2003 and 2002 include a deferred tax liability of $11.1 million and $17.4 million, respectively.

During 2003, 2002 and 2001, Titan recognized certain tax benefits related to stock option exercises in
the amount of $0.8 million, $9.9 million, and $13.9 million, respectively, or $0.3 million, $3.6 million, and
$4.1 million, net of tax. The net benefits were recorded as an increase to capital in excess of par value.

Note 11. Debt
Senior Subordinated Notes

On May 15, 2003, Titan sold $200 million of 8% senior subordinated notes due May 15, 2011 in a
private placement (the Notes). We used the net proceeds from the issuance of the Notes, plus borrowings
of $50 million under the revolving credit facility and additional cash on hand, to redeem all of the
$250 million of the then-outstanding 5%:% HIGH TIDES convertible preferred securities. The redemption
of HIGH TIDES occurred on June 4, 2003.
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Titan is required to make interest payments on the Notes semi-annually in arrears on May 15 and
November 15 at the rate of 8% per annum. The first scheduled interest payment for the outstanding Notes
was made on November 15, 2003. Titan may redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, on or after May 15,
2007 at the following redemption prices, plus accrued and unpaid interest and liquidated damages, if any:

Y_ea_x: . Percentage
2007 o e e e e i e 104.0%
2008 . ... ... e e e e e e e e e e e e 102.0%
2009 and thereafter . .. ... ... . . e 100.0%

In addition, on or prior to May 15, 2006, Titan may redeem up to 35% of the aggregate principal
amount of the Notes with the net proceeds of certain equity offerings at a redemption price of 108% of
principal together with accrued and unpaid interest. The Notes are unsecured and rank or will rank equally
with Titan’s current or future senior subordinated indebtedness. Each of Titan’s domestic subsidiaries
other than Cayenta guarantee the Notes. The guarantees are unsecured and rank equally with each
guarantor’s senior subordinated indebtedness. The Notes and the guarantees are junior to all of Titan’s
and each guarantor’s senior indebtedness and senior to all of Titan’s and each guarantor’s subordinated
indebtedness. '

In connection with its proposed merger with Lockheed Martin, on February 11, 2004, Titan
commenced an offer to exchange the existing Notes for a new series of substantially identical 8% senior
subordinated notes registered under the Securities Act of 1933 .and a consent solicitation relating to
proposed amendments to the indenture governing the Notes and the termination of the registration rights
agreement Titan delivered in May 2003 for the benefit of the holders of the Notes. Titan announced on
February 25, 2004 that it had received the requisite consents from the holders of more than a majority in
aggregate principal amount of the Notes to effect the proposed amendments to the indenture and the
termination of the registration rights agreement. Accordingly, Titan has entered into a supplemental
indenture with the indenture trustee to effect the proposed amendments to the indenture and has entered
into an amendment to the registration rights agreement providing for ‘its termination; however, the
amendments and the termination of the registration rights agreement will not become operative until
immediately prior to the completion of the proposed merger with Lockheed Martin. If the merger is
completed, Lockheed Martin will guarantee the surviving entity’s obligations as the obligor of the Notes. If
the merger is not completed, the amendments will not become operative. Until that point, the indenture
and the registration rights agreement, without giving effect to the proposed amendments or the
termination of the registration rights agreement, will remain in effect. The receipt of the requisite consents
and the execution of the supplemental indenture satisfy one of the conditions to the closing of the
proposed merger with Lockheed Martin,

Liquidated damages of 0.25% per annum per $1,000 whole dollars in principal amount of the existing
Notes began to accrue in October 2003 when Titan did not complete an exchange offer required under the
registration rights agreement. Titan did not complete the exchange offer because of the proposed merger
with Lockheed Martin. Beginning in January 2004, the liquidated damages rate increased to 0.50% and
such liquidated damages will continue to accrue, at rates increasing by 0.25% per annum per $1,000 whole
dollars in principal amount of existing notes, until the exchange offer described above i$ completed. The
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balance accrued at December 31, 2003 is $0.1 million. If the merger does not close for any reason, then
Titan intends to seek to complete the exchange offer.

We incurred approximately $12.4 million in charges in 2003 related to the extinguishment of the
HIGH TIDES, comprised of the write-off of $8.1 million of remaining deferred debt issuance costs of
HIGH TIDES, a call premium of $3.6 million to redeem the HIGH TIDES, and approximately
$0.7 million of interest during the call period. All extinguishment charges were recorded in the second
quarter of 2003 as a charge to income from continuing operations. Following the redemption of the HIGH
TIDES, availability on the revolving credit facility was reduced by $50 million for the borrowings required
to complete the redemption. The $50 million in availability was restored when the draw was repaid by
December 31, 2003, from positive cash flow generated form the Company’s operations.

Senior Credit Facility

In connection with the issuance of the Notes, Titan entered into an amendment to its senior credit
facility to permit, among other things, the issuance of the Notes and the redemption of the HIGH TIDES.

General. On May 23, 2002, Titan entered into an agreement with Wachovia Bank, National
Association and Wachovia Securities for a $485 million senior credit facility from a syndicate of
commercial banks including Wachovia Securities acting as sole lead arranger and Wachovia Bank, National
Association, as Administrative Agent, The Bank of Nova Scotia and Comerica Bank as Co-Syndication
Agents and Branch Banking and Trust Company and Toronto Dominion Bank as Co-Documentation
Agents and other financial institutions. The senior credit facility is comprised of an aggregate credit
commitment of $485 million, consisting of a seven-year term loan in an aggregate principal amount of
$350 million and a six-year $135 million revolving credit facility.

Interest Rates; Fees. As amended in connection with the issuance of the Notes, the senior credit
facility provides for interest rates per annum applicable to amounts outstanding under the term loan and
the revolving credit facility that are, at Titan’s option, either the administrative agent’s most recently
established base rate for U.S. dollars loaned in the United States (or, if greater, the Federal Funds Rate
plus 0.5%) plus a margin of 0.75% per annum to 2.00% per annum, based on Titan’s ratio of total debt to
EBITDA (as defined in the senior credit facility), or the LIBOR rate for the applicable interest period plus
a margin of 2.00% per annum to 3.25% per annum, based on Titan’s ratio of total debt to EBITDA. Titan’s
interest rates for base rate and LIBOR revolving loans are generally 0.50% to 0.75% lower than its interest
rates for base rate and LIBOR term loans at the same ratio of total debt to EBITDA. Titan is required to
pay the lenders under the senior credit facility a non-utilization fee ranging from 0.50% per annum to
1.00% per annum, payable quarterly in arrears, based on the applicable percentage of the undrawn portion
of the revolving credit facility. Titan is also required to pay letter of credit fees for outstanding letters of
credit equal to 0.25% per annum of the stated amount of the letter of credit, plus the product of the
applicable margin (from 2.00% to 2.75%, based on its ratio of total debt to EBITDA) for loans under the
revolving credit facility maintained as LIBOR loans multiplied by the stated amount of the letter of credit.

Amortization; Prepayments. Titan’s seven-year term loan matures on June 30, 2009 and the revolving
credit facility matures on May 23, 2008. The seven-year term loan amortizes at 1.0% per year for years one
through six (through the quarter ending June 30, 2008), with the remaining 94% due in four equal
quarterly payments in year seven of the loan (through the quarter ending June 30, 2009). Titan may prepay
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amounts borrowed under the term loan and the revolving credit facility at its option without any fee. Titan
is also required to make prepayments, subject to certain exceptions, of the outstanding amounts under the
term loan and the revolving credit facility from asset sales, issuance of subordinated debt and equity
securities, insurance or condemnation proceeds and from excess cash flows. Any such prepayments will be
applied first to reduce the amount of the term loan outstanding under the senior credit facility, and then to
reduce revolving loans .under the senior credit facility. Pursuant to the amendment to the senior credit
facility that was entered into in connection with the issuance of the outstanding Notes, none of that
offering’s proceeds were subject to mandatory prepayments under the senior credit facility.

Covenants. The terms of the senior credit facility require Titan to provide certain customary
covenants for a senior credit facility, including certain financial covenants. As amended, these financial
covenants, as defined per the senior credit agreement, are comprised of a maximum total debt to EBITDA
ratio of 5.5 to 1, declining to 5.25 to 1 beginning with the quarter ending September 30, 2003 through the
quarter ending March 31, 2004, a maximum total senior debt to EBITDA ratio of 3.75 to 1, declining to 3.5
to 1 beginning with the quarter ending December 31, 2003 through the quarter ending March 31, 2004, a
minimum interest coverage ratio of 2.75 to 1 through the quarter ending March 31, 2004, a minimum fixed
charge coverage ratio of 1.25 to 1 through the quarter ending March 31, 2004 and a minimum net worth of
approximately $254 million at December 31, 2003. The maximum and minimum thresholds for compliance
under the financial covenants in the senior credit facility will further adjust in the future in accordance with
the terms of the senior credit facility. For instance, the maximum total senior debt to EBITDA ratio will
decline to 3.25 to 1 beginning the quarter ending June 30, 2004, declining to 3.0 to 1 beginning the quarter
ending December 31, 2004, declining to 2.75 to 1 beginning with the quarter ending June 30, 2005 and
finally declining to 2.50 to 1 beginning with the quarter ending December 31, 2005.

Deferred costs and expenses of $8.2 million related to the senior credit facility are included in Other
Assets at December 31, 2003 and will be amortized over the remaining term of the senior credit facility.
Deferred costs and expenses of $5.7 million related to the issuance of the Notes are also included in Other
Assets at December 31, 2003, and will be amortized over the term of the Notes.

At December 31, 2003, Titan had other secured and unsecured debt outstanding under various
agreements totaling $0.9 million short-term and $1.0 million long-term, with interest rates ranging from
8.50% to 9.30%. These agreements mature by 2015. '
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Other Debt Information
Details of long-term debt are as follows:

December 31,

‘ 2003 2002

Senior credit facility . ......... ... ... ... . $344,750  $348,250
Senior subordinated debt. .. .............. e 200,000 —
Note payable to bank, interest at 9.30%, due February 2005, :

secured by a First Deed of Trust on an office building . . . .. 355 430
Note payable to Urban Business Development Corporation,

interest at 8.58%, due January 2015, guaranteed by the

Small Business Administration and secured by a Second

Deed of Trust on an office building .................. 558 587
Acquisition related notes payable of acquired companies, ‘

interest at 8.5%, due March 2005 . ................... 938 1,875

» 546,601 351,142

Less: Current portion . ............ ... n... (4,363) (4,347)

$542,238  $346,795

Titan Debt Maturities

Maturities of long-term debt, excluding non-recourse debt, are as follows: '

2004 . . e e e $ 4,363
2005 .. e e e e 3,997
2006 . . e 3,538
2007 . o 3,541
2008 ... e e e e e e ... 166,295
Thereafter. . .. ............ e e e e . 364,867

$546,601

Note 12. Commitments and Contingencies
Leases

Titan leases certain buildings and equipment under noncancelable operating lease agreements. These
leases generally require Titan to pay all executory costs such as taxes, insurance and maintenance related
to the leased assets. Certain of the leases contain provisions for periodic rate accelerations to reflect
cost-of-living increases. Rental expense under these leases was $40.6 million in 2003, $40.1 million in 2002,
and $23.8 million in 2001. In February 2000, Titan’s Cayenta subsidiary entered into a new long-term lease
agreement which requires future minimum lease payments of approximately $6.6 million over 7 years.
Titan is a guarantor on the lease. Due to Titan’s discontinuance of its Cayenta business, Titan has
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subleased this facility under agreements that extend through 2007. Rental expense in 2002 and 2001
includes $0.9 million and $0.8 million, respectively, paid related to this space.

Future minimum lease payments under noncancellable operating leases at December 31, 2003, are as
follows:

2004 .. e s 43492

2005 e e e SO 36,923
2006 . .. e e e e 32,558
2007 . i e 26,556
2008 . . [ e e - 18,075
“Thereafter. . .. .. .. . e P 54,058
Total minimum lease payments . . ... .........c.eurevnnn... PN $211,662

Obligations under capital leases were $0.8 mllhon at December 31, 2003, including $0.2 million
short-term in Other Accrued Liabilities and $0.6 million long-term in Other Non-current Liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheet.

During the first quarter of 2003, Titan entered into new long-term lease and sublease agreements for
office space in Virginia and Maryland as part of our restructuring efforts to consolidate various facilities of
our government business into centralized locations (see Note 6). The lease and subleases in Virginia
require future minimum lease payments of approximately $100.4 million over approximately 13 years,
commencing at various dates from May 2003 through May 2004. The lease in Maryland requires future
minimum lease payments of approximately $45.8 million over 10 years, commencing approximately July 1,
2004.

Legal Matters
Recently Announced Governmental Investigation

On February 13, 2004, Titan announced that representatives of Lockheed Martin and Titan recently
initiated meetings with the Department of Justice and the Securities and Exchange Commission to advise
of an internal review relating to certain agreements between Titan and international consultants or
representatives and related payments in foreign countries. Titan has been sharing the results of the internal
review with the Department of Justice and the Securities and Exchange Commission. Titan also announced
that it had learned that the SEC had commenced an investigation into whether payments involving foreign
consultants were made in violation of applicable law. On March 5, 2004, Titan learned that the
Department of Justice had opened a criminal inquiry into this matter. Titan has continued its internal
review relating to these issues, in cooperation with Lockheed Martin Corporation, which is conducting a
parallel review in connection with its proposed acquisition of Titan. The SEC has issued a subpoena for
production of documents, but has suspended actual production of documents at this time. Titan intends to
continue to cooperate fully with the Department of Justice and SEC in connection with their investigation
of the matters under review.

As part of its ongoing review, Titan and Lockheed Martin learned of allegations that improper
payments were made, or items of value were provided, by its consultants to foreign officials. The alleged
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payments or provision of items of value, if true, raise questions concerning whether there has been a
violation of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act or other applicable law. In the course of Titan’s
investigation, information has been identified that may indicate that there have been violations of U.S. or
foreign law arising out of payments involving Titan’s foreign representatives. These matters are subject to
ongoing SEC and Department of Justice review. If the government determines that unlawful payments
were made, the government could take action against Titan and/or some of its employees. These actions
could include criminal and civil fines, penalties, criminal sanctions and limitations on Titan’s or Titan’s
affected businesses’ ability to export products or enter into future U.S. government contracts.

Information gathered as part of the internal review raises questions as to whether applicable law has
been violated. In relation to the government investigations, after consideration of factors including publicly
available information of recent resolutions of other FCPA issues, and following discussions with legal
counsel, Titan has recorded as $3.0 million provision as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003,
representing management’s estimate of potential liabilities related to this matter. The ultimate resolution
of this matter is dependent upon the final results of such inquiries and investigations and associated
liabilities, if any, could be different from the amount currently estimated.

Other Proceedings

On January 23, 2004, Titan, together with its wholly owned subsidiaries, Titan Wireless, Inc. and Titan
Africa, Inc., were named as defendants in Gonzales Communications, Inc. v. Titan Wireless, Inc., Titan
Africa, Inc., The Titan Corporation, Geolution International Inc., Mundi Development, Inc., a lawsuit filed in
the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of California. The complaint relates to the purchase by
Gonzales Communications of equipment and related services under an equipment purchase agreement
entered into with Titan Wireless in June 2001. Gonzales Communications contends that the equipment
delivered was unsatisfactory. In the complaint, Gonzales Communications seeks direct damages in the
amount of $0.9 million plus interest, representing the amount Gonzales Communications alleges to have
previously paid under the agreement, and consequential damages of approximately $16.3 million. To date,
Titan and its subsidiaries have not received payment in full under the agreement for the equipment that
was delivered to Gonzales Communications. Titan believes that the claims of Gonzales Communications
are without merit, and intends to defend its position vigorously.

Since September 2003, Titan has been named as a defendant in the following purported class action
lawsuits each filed on behalf of holders of common stock of SureBeam Corporation, a former subsidiary of
Titan: (1) Bernd Bilstein, IRA v. SureBeam Corporation, et. al., filed in the U.S. District Court for the
Southern District of New York on September 10, 2003; (2) Steven Morrow v. SureBeam Corporation, et. al.,
filed in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of California on October 23, 2003; and (3) Gordon
Reed v. Oberkfell, et. al, filed in the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of California on
December 24, 2003. Both the Bilstein and Morrow complaints allege that Titan, as a “control person” of
SureBeam within the meaning of the Securities Act, should be held liable for allegedly false and misleading
statements contained in the prospectus issued in connection with SureBeam’s initial public offering in
March 2001. SureBeam and certain investment banks serving as lead underwriters in SureBeam’s offering
also were named as defendants in both the Bilstein and Morrow complaints. The Reed complaint alleges
that Titan, as the then majority shareholder of SureBeam, breached fiduciary duties owed to the minority
stockholders by, among other things, causing Surebeam to go public with false and misleading statements
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contained in the prospectus for SureBeam’s initial public offering, grossly mismanaging SureBeam to
Titan’s benefit and by being unjustly enriched at the expense and detriment of SureBeam. SureBeam and
certain officers and directors of SureBeam also were named as defendants in the Reed complaint. Dr. Ray
and Susan Golding, two of Titan’s current directors, were named as defendants in the Bilstein and Reed
complaints in their capacity as directors of SureBeam. The plaintiffs in the Bilstein, Morrow and Reed
complaints seek unspecified statutory damages from Titan. Titan believes that the allegations contained in
these complaints are without merit and mtends to defend the claims vigorously.

On August 16, 2002, Perimex Internatlonal Corporation (Perimex) filéd a. complaint against Titan,
Titan Wireless, and a former Titan Wireless employee in San Diego Superior Court in San Diego,
California. The complaint alleged breach of contract, breach of the covenant of good faith and fair dealing,
intentional interference with existing contractual relationships and prospective business advantage-and
violation of the California unfair competition law arising from an alleged failure of Titan Wireless to enter
a joint venture with Perimex to provide wireless telecommunication services in Argentina and other related
alleged misconduct. The complaint sought damages of $52.65 million and sought injunctive relief
prohibiting Titan and Titan Wireless from transferring any of Titan Wireless’s assets. The court denied
Perimex’s request for a preliminary injunction, sustained Titan’s and Titan Wireless’s demurrer as to all
causes of action in the complaint and granted Perimex leave to amend the complaint. Perimex dismissed its
complaint voluntarily without prejudice. On May 22, 2003, however, Perimex filed a new complaint in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of California alleging substantially similar causes of
action and claiming a similar amount of damages. Titan believes that Perimex’s claims are without merit
and intends to defend our position vigorously.

In October 2002, Titan received a grand jury subpoena from the Antitrust Division of the Department
of Justice requesting the production of documents relating to information technology services performed
for the Air Force at Hanscom Air Force Base in Massachusetts. Titan has been informed that other
companies who have performed such services have received subpoenas as well. Titan is not aware of any
illegal or inappropriate conduct, and has been and will continue to cooperate fully with the investigation.

In March 2003, Titan received a subpoena from the Office of Inspector General for the National
Aeronautics and Space Administration, or NASA, seeking certain records relating to billing for labor
services in connection with our contracts with NASA. Titan also received a subpoena from the Office of
Inspector General for the General Services Administration, or GSA, seeking similar records relating to
billing for labor categories in connection with contracts with GSA. Titan is not aware of any illegal or
inappropriate conduct, and is fully cooperating with the government’s inquiries in these areas.

Titan is involved in legal actions in the normal course of our business, including audits and
investigations by various governmental agericies that result from our work as a defense contractor. Titan
and its subsidiaries are named as defendants ini legal proceedings from time to time and third parties
including the government, may assert claims against Titan from time to time. In addition, Titan had
acquired companies from time to time that have legal actions pending agamst them at the time' of
acquisition. :

Based upon current information available, in the opinion of management, the amount of ultimate
liability or recovery with respect to these other actions and proceedings is not expected to materially affect
Titan’s consolidated financial position or results of operations taken as a whole. However, Titan’s
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evaluation of the likely impact of these other actions and proceedings could change in the future, and an
unfavorable outcome, depending upon the amount and timing, could have a material adverse effect on
Titan’s results of operations or cash-flows in a future period.

Guarantees

Titan has guaranteed certain lease obligations of SureBeam, and SureBeam is obligated to reimburse
Titan for any payments Titan makes under these guarantees. Titan has also guaranteed certain loan
payments related to Hawaii Pride, a strategic partner of SureBeam. Refer to Note 5 for further discussion

- of Titan’s guarantees related to Hawaii Pride and SureBeam. :

Note 13. Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock .

" ‘Each share of $1.00 cumulative convertible preferred stock is entitled to a vote equal to one-third per
common share, annual dividends of $1 per share and is convertible at any time into .781 share of Titan’s
common stock (subject to customary anti-dilution adjustments). Common stock of 536,413 shares has been
reserved for this purpose. -

On February 9, 2004, Titan announced that all outstanding shares of its cumulative convertible
preferred stock will be redeemed, on March 15, 2004. The redemption is being undertaken in anticipation
of and as a condition to the close of the proposed merger with Lockheed Martin but is not contingent on
the merger closing. The convertible preferred shares are redeemable at Titan’s option at a redemption
price of $20 per share, plus cumulative dividends in arrears. Titan will redeem the shares using available
cash balances. Holders of the preferred stock will not be entitled to vote on the Lockheed Martin merger
proposal because the shares will be redeemed prior to the special meeting of stockholders. The preferred
stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “TTN Pr” and closed at $19.85 per
share on March 8§, 2004. ‘

Note 14. Common Stock

At December 31, 2003, approximately 109,717,100 common shares were reserved for future issuance
for conversion of preferred stock and securities, employee benefit and stock incentive plans.

On September 25, 2002, Titan Systems Corporation, Titan’s national security subsidiary, was merged
into The Titan Corporation. As a-result of this merger, outstanding stock options held by employees of
Titan Systems Corporation were exchanged using an exchange ratio of .8371, for approximately 5.4 million
stock options in The Titan Corporation. The exchange ratio was determined by Titan using a valuation of
Titan Systems Corporation, as determined by a globally recognized valuation firm, and the average Titan
Corporation closing stock price for the 20 trading days ending on the day before the merger.

The exchange of Titan options resulted in a non-cash deferred compensation charge of approximately
$21.3 million in the third quarter of 2002, which is reflected in selling, general and administrative expense
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Approximately $4.8 million and $2.0 million
was amortized in 2003 and 2002, respectively. Unamortized non-cash deferred compensation of
$1.6 million will be amortized through 2005 as the options vest over time.
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On July 26, 2001, Titan sold 8,048,685 shares of its common stock in a public offering, which included
an over-allotment of 1,125,000 shares, at a price of $18.00 per share. We received approximate aggregate
proceeds from the offering of $137.6 million in July 2001, net of underwriters’ commissions. Transaction
expenses related to the offering were approximately $1.4 million. In addition, certain Titan stockholders
sold 576,315 shares, including 489,972 shares from the exercise of options, from which Titan received
proceeds of: $3.0 million. -

On August 17, 1995, the Board of Directors adopted a Shareholder Rights Agreement and
subsequently distributed one preferred stock purchase right (Right) for each outstanding share of Titan
common stock. Each Right entitles the registered holder to purchase from Titan one one-hundredth of a
share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, par value $1.00 per share (the Preferred Shares) at
a price of $42.00 per one one-hundredth of a Preferred Share, subject to adjustment. The Rights become
exercisable if a person or group acquires, in a transaction not approved by Titan’s Board of Directors
(Board), 15% or more of Titan’s common stock or announces a tender offer for 15% or more of the stock.

If a person or group acquires 15% or more of Titan’s common stock, each Right (other than Rights
held by the acquiring person or group which become void) will entitle the holder to receive upon exercise a
number of shares of Titan’s common stock hav1ng a market value of twice the Right’s exercise price. If
Titan is acquired in a.transaction not approved by the Board, each Right may be exercised for common
shares of the acquiring company having a market value of twice the Right’s exercise price. Titan may
redeem the Rights at $.01 per Right, subject to certain conditions. The Rights expire on August 17, 2005.

The Titan board adopted a resolution providing that Lockheed Martin’s acquxsltlon of Titan will not
trigger the exercisability of the Rights.

Options authorized for grant under the 2002 Employee and Director Stock Option and Incentive Plan
(the 2002 Plan) and under the 2000 Employee and Director Stock Option Plan (the 2000 Plan) are
5,500,000 and 4,000,000, respectively. Options authorized for grant under the Stock Option Plans of 1994
and 1997 are 2,000,000 and under The 1996 Directors’ Stock Option and Equity Participation Plan (the
1996 Directors’ Plan) are 125,000. Grants in 1999 and the beginning of 2000 exceeded the remaining shares
available under the stock option plans of 1994 and 1997. The 2000 Plan was approved by Titan’s
stockholders on May 30, 2000. Under all plans, the options outstanding have been granted at prices that
are equal to the market price of Titan’s stock on the date of grant. Under the intrinsic value method
prescribed by APB 25, no compensation cost is recorded. However, the grants in 1999 that exceeded the
shares available .at that time were placed under the 2000 Plan after its approval by the stockholders. Under
the provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 44 “Accounting for Certain
Transactions Involving Stock Compensation” (an Interpretation of APB 25), the plan approval date
becomes the grant date for purposes of comparison of market value to exercise price. This resulted in
deferred compensation related to these options of $15.6 million in 2000 based on the difference in market
value at May 30, 2000, and the grant price. This deferred compensation has been fully amortized to
expense over the four-year vesting period of these options, including $2.4 million in 2003, $3.9 million in
2002 and $3.9 million in 2001, respectively.

Under the 2002 and 2000 Employee and Director plans, and previous employee plans, an option’s
maximum term is ten years. Under these plans, vested options expire 90 days after a grantee’s termination
of employment or other relationship. Under the 1996 Directors’ Plan, options expire 90 days after the
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option holder ceases to be a director. Under the applicable plans, directors may elect to receive stock in
lieu of fees, such stock to have a fair market value equal to the fees. Employee options may be granted
throughout the year; directors’ options are granted annually. Under the 2000 Plan, vesting for directors
and first-time option grantees is over four years, with 25% exercisable at the completion of one year, and
monthly vesting thereafter. For option grants prior to the 2000 Plan, vesting is monthly over 4 years.
Options in the Stock Option Plans of 1994 and 1997 and the 1996 Directors’ Plan vest in 25% increments
beginning one year after the grant date. Stock options assumed by Titan as a result of the mergers in prior
years generally retain the terms under which they were granted. Stock options assumed by The Titan
Corporation as a result of the merger with Titan Systems Corporation discussed above retain the terms of
the Titan Systems plans.

At the effective time of the proposed merger with Lockheed Martin, each outstanding option or right
to purchase shares of Titan common stock will fully vest and become exercisable in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the plan or agreement under which it was granted, except that it thereafter will
represent the right to receive shares of Lockheed Martin common stock upon exercise. After the effective
time of the merger, the number of shares of Lockheed Martin common stock subject to each Titan stock
option will be the number of shares of Titan common stock subject to such Titan stock option prior to the
effective time of the merger multiplied by the exchange rate, and the exercise price of each stock option
will be adjusted by dividing the per share exercise price under such Titan stock option by the exchange rate.

Titan elected to follow APB No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its stock options. See
Note 3 for a calculation of Titan’s pro forma net income and earnings per share under the fair value
method pursuant to SFAS No. 123. '

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model using the following weighted-average assumptions: zero dividend yield and an expected life
of 5 years in all years; expected volatility of 73% in 2003, 73% in 2002, and 76% in 2001; and a risk free
interest rate of 3.82% in 2003, 3.82% in 2002, and 4.38% in 2001.
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"A summary of the status of Titan’s fixed stock option plans as of December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
and changes during the years ending on those dates is presented below:

2003 2002 2001
. Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average

Shares Exercise Shares . Exercise Shares Exercise
(000) Price (000) Price (000) Price

Outstanding at beginning of year . ... ........... 11,006 $ 8.56 5,128 $14.45 4,972 $11.84
Granted . ... ... ... . 2,108  8.14 952 1332 953 17.16
Adjustment for TSCmerger. . ................. — — 5,248 455 — —
Adjustment for SureBeam spin-off . . ............ — — 1,789 — — —
Exchanged in acquisitions . ................... — — 14 1279 1,169 12.68
Exercised . ........ .0 (2,758) 557 (1,209) 6.92 (1,735) 7.07
Canceled ........... ... . it (708) 12.04  (916) 9.07 (231) 1536
QOutstanding atend of year .. ................. 9,648 9.04 11,006 8.56 5,128 14.45
Options exercisable at year-end ... ............. 6,190 6,957 - 2,863
Weighted-average fair value of options granted

during theyear ............. ... ... ....... $ 508" $ 8.49 $12.15

The following table summarizes information about fixed stock options outstahding at December 31,
2003:

Options Outstanding - Options Exercisable
Weighted-Average
Range of Number Outstanding Remaining Weighted-Average Number Exercisable Weighted-Average
M at 12/31/03 Contractual Life  Exercise Price - at 12/31/03 Exercise Price
$1.04-%418..... 2,321,715 4.57 years $ 1.97 2,298,891 $ 197
423 - 1090 ..... 4,299,317 7.92 years 8.16 . 1,945,887 7.81
1094 - 1729 ..... 2,786,106 7.20 years 14.69 1,724,140 15.12
19.43 - 2974 .. ... 240,544 6.17 years 27.54 ‘ 221,135 27.70

9,647,682 6.86 years 9.04 6,190,053 8.39

As a result of the SureBeam spin-off, all Titan outstanding stock options under each of Titan’s stock
option plans were adjusted such that the number of options was increased by a factor of 1.345 and the
exercise price was decreased by dividing by 1.345. This adjustment maintained the same aggregate intrinsic
value of the stock options that existed prior to the spin-off compared to the aggregate intrinsic value of the
stock options immediately after the transaction and ensured that the ratio of the exercise price per share to
. the market value per share was not reduced. The adjustment was determined in accordance with the
FASB’s Financial Interpretation No. 44 (FIN 44), “Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock
Compensation,” and resulted in no compensation charge.

Under the 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, Titan is authorized to issue up to 1,500,000 shares of
* common stock to its full-time employees. This plan replaced Titan’s 1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan,
which was authorized to issue 500,000 shares. All employees of Titan are eligible to participate in the plan.

93




THE TITAN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(in thousands, except share and per share data, or as otherwise noted)

Note 14. Common Stock (Continued)

Under the terms of the plan, employees may elect to have between 1 and 15 percent of their regular
earnings, as defined in the plan, withheld to purchase Titan’s common stock. The purchase price of the
stock is 85 percent of the lower of its market price at the beginning or at the end of each offering period.
An offering period is six months, beginning January 1 and July 1 of each year. Approximately 14%, 21%,
and 24% of eligible employees participated in the Plan and purchased approximately 784,000, 655,100, and
476,100 shares of Titan’s common stock in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. During 2003 and 2002, grants
of approximately 243,400 and 202,800 shares of Titan stock under the 2002 Employee and Director Stock
Option and Incentive Plan were utilized to fulfill Titan’s funding requirement under this plan. The
weighted-average fair value of the purchase rights granted in 2003, 2002, and 2001 was $2.37, $3.73, and
$5.09, respectively, which represents the approximate intrinsic value to the participants related to the
benefits of participation in the plan as determined in accordance with SFAS 123.

At December 31, 2003, Titan also had warrants outstanding for 74,372 shares of the Titan’s corhmon
stock at prices ranging from $14.86 to $23.16 per share.

Note 15. Related Party Transactions
Agreements With Executive Officers

Change in Control Agreements. In March 2000, Titan entered into executive agreements with Titan’s
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer (hereinafter referred to as the CEQ) and
Titan’s General Counsel, which provide special benefits after a change in control. The parties subsequently
amended these agreements on September 14, 2003 to clarify certain terms and conditions as they related to
the change in control that would result from the proposed merger with Lockheed Martin. Effective as of
August 20, 2003, Titan also entered into an executive agreement with Titan’s Chief Financial Officer,
which mirrors the executive agreement, as amended, for Titan’s General Counsel. Pursuant to these
agreements, as amended, if (1) there is a change in control of Titan (which will occur at the effective time
of the proposed merger with Lockheed Martin) and (2) the executive is terminated by Titan (or, after the
merger, by Lockheed Martin) other than for “Cause” (as defined in the agreements) or such executive
terminates his employment for “Good Reason” (as defined in the agreements) within three years following
such change in control or if the executive is terminated prior to a change in control and the executive
reasonably believes that his termination arose in connection with or anticipation of a change in control, the
terminated executive will be entitled to a lump sum payment amount equal to three times the sum of his
base salary and his “Highest Annual Bonus” (as defined in the agreements). Each executive will have a
right under these agreements to resign for “Good Reason” at the effective time of the merger by virtue of
the fact that Titan will cease to be a publicly traded company. Also, the executive will receive a prorated
bonus for the year of termination and continuation of the executive’s and his family’s welfare benefits
(including, without limitation, medical, prescription, dental, disability, employee life, group life, accidental
death and travel accident insurance plans and programs) for three years after the later of the executive’s
date of termination or, as applicable, the expiration of the executive’s continuation coverage period under |
the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act, referred to as COBRA. In addition, all options that
have been previously granted to the executive to acquire shares of Titan or any affiliate of Titan that have
not previously been forfeited or exercised will vest and become exercisable in full and will remain
exercisable for the remainder of their original terms. Based on current compensation levels, the total
estimated cost of the severance payments and continued welfare benefits payable to the CEO, Titan’s
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Note 15. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

General Counsel and Titan’s Chief Financial Officer is, respectively, $5.5 million, $2.1 million and
$2.0 million. These estimates do not include any tax gross up payment which Titan (or, after the merger,
Lockheed Martin) might be required to make pursuant to these agreements. Titan (or, after the merger,
Lockheed Martin) will be obligated under these agreements to reimburse the CEO, Titan’s General
Counsel and Titan’s Chief Financial Officer for all legal fees and all expenses which they incur in asserting
or in defending their rights under these agreements.

Certain Relationships And Related Transactions

In conjunction with Titan’s exit of its international telecommunications business, Titan entered into an
agreement with Geolutions, Inc. (Geolutions) to assume and perform all of Titan Wireless’s outstanding
warranty obligations. Geolutions was a newly formed company, founded by a former executive of. Titan
Wireless and former officer of Titan. Titan entered into a fixed price contract, of $1.9 million, plus
incidental expenses of up to $0.6 million and other third party costs of an aggregate maximum of
$1.4 million, which was subsequently reduced by $0.5 million. These fees are payable through mid 2004, the
period over which Titan’s warranty obligations exist on its existing customer contracts. The contract is
cancelable by Titan under certain circumstances of non-performance by Geolutions. In conjunction with
Titan’s agreement with Geolutions, Titan assigned its existing warranty obligations in its international
telecommunications business with its existing customers to Geolutions. If Geolutions fails to perform these
contracted obligations, Titan Wireless remains obhgated to perform them and may incur costs in excess of
these contracted amounts.

In March 2002, our Board of Directors adopted a stock option relinquishment program, the primary
purpose of which was to align the interests of our directors and senior executives more closely with our
stockholders’ interests by allowing directors and senior executives to participate in the appreciation in our
equxty value: ,

* without requiring our Directors and executive officers to trade shares of our common stock
obtained through the exercise of options on the open market; and

* without the dilutive and potentially stock-price depressive effects assomated with the exercise and
subsequent sale of stock option shares.

The program also was intended to assist the participants with their individual financial planning.
Under the program, a participant was allowed to relinquish eligible, in-the-money stock options in
exchange for a loan, the principal amount of which was 150% of the difference between the aggregate
exercise price-of the options and the product of (i) the number of shares issuable upon exercise of the
options and (ii) a 20 day trailing average of the daily high and low sales price of our common stock prior to
relinquishment. The loans bear interest at a rate-equal to the applicable federal rate as published by the
Internal Revenue Service for the month in which the loan was made. The loans were made contingent
upon the participant’s utilizing a portion of the loan proceeds to purchase a life insurance policy with a
death benefit sufficient to repay the loan and accrued interest thereon upon maturity.

Under the program the following transactions occurred (in whole shares and dollars):

* Dr. Ray, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer: 222,380 options relinquished on
June 18, 2002, $3,985,725 principal amount of loan, 5.48% interest per annum;
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Note 15. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

* Mr. Fink, Director: 15,000 options relinquished on June 27, 2002, $336,337.50 principal amount of
loan, 5.48% interest per annum; and

* Mr. Alexander, Director: 19,972 options rehnqulshed effective June 19, 2002, $499,999 principal
amount of loan, 5.48% interest per annum.

The amount of the stock options relinquished under the program do not reflect any adjustment as a
result of the spin-off of our subsidiary SureBeam Corporation on August 5, 2002, since the relinquishment
occurred before the date for said adjustment. Titan has recorded interest income of $0.5 million to date
related to the accrued interest on the outstanding loans due from the directors noted above,

As of the effective date of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act in July 2002, which precludes such loans to
company officers and directors, the Stock Option and Relinquishment Plan was no longer available to our
Directors and executive officers.

Prior to the spin-off of SureBeam Corporation, Titan and SureBeam entered into a number of
agreements. These agreements included a $50 million senior secured revolving credit line, Titan
guarantees of certain lease obligations of SureBeam, sublease agreements with SureBeam, and a Tax
Allocation Agreement and Tax Disaffiliation and Tax Sharing Agreement. In addition, Titan entered into
other agreements including a license agreement and supply agreement. Refer to Note 5 for further
discussion of the terms of these agreements. :

An officer of one of our operating units has a financial interest in a facility rented by the unit. Total
rent paid by the unit in 2003 related to this facility was $0.2 million.

Note 16. Benefit Plans

Titan has various defined contribution benefit plans covering certain employees. Titan’s contributions
to these plans were $19.5 million, $14.6 million, and $12.6 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. No
discretionary contributions were made in 2003, 2002, or 2001. '

~ Titan has a non-qualified executive deferred compensation plan for certain officers and key

employees. Titan’s expense for this plan, including interest, was $1.9 million, $0.9 million, and $0.6 million
in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respeétively. Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and
2001 includes $0.3 miliion, $0.6 million and $0.5 million, respectively, related to the plan. This obligation
has been fully funded and is carried in a Rabbi trust. Included in other non-current liabilities is
$15.6 million and $10.7 million related to this plan at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Cash
surrender value of the life insurance related to this plan was $15.8 million and $10.9 million included in
Other Assets in the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Titan also has
performance bonus plans for certain of its employees. Related expense amounted to approximately
$21.9 million, $14.5 million, and $10.5 million in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.

Titan has previously provided for postretirement benefit obligations of certain operations
discontinued in prior years. Titan also implemented a post retirement medical benefit plan for senior
executives in 2000. All values related to this plan are immaterial. Titan has no other postretirement benefit
or pension obligations for any of its continuing operations or for its recently discontinued businesses.
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Note 17. Guarantor Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements

On May 15, 2003, we sold $200 million aggregate principal amount of 8% senior subordinated notes in
a private placement. We used the net proceeds from our issuance of the 8% senior subordinated notes,
plus borrowings of $50 million we made under our revolving credit facility and additional cash on hand, to
redeem all of our then-outstanding 5%% HIGH TIDES convertible preferred securities, effective June 4,
2003.

Following are consolidating condensed financial statements to quantify the financial position as of
December 31, 2003, and 2002, and the operations and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002, and 2001, for the Guarantor Subisdiaries listed below and the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries listed
below. The following consolidating condensed balance sheets, consolidating condensed statements of
operations and consolidating condensed statements of cash flows present financial information for:

Parent: The Titan Corporation on a stand-alone basis.

Guarantor Subsidiaries: All directly and indirectly owned domestic subsidiaries of Parent other than
Cayenta Inc. on a stand-alone basis.

Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries: Cayenta Inc. and all direct and indirect subsidiaries of Parent that are
not organized under the laws of the United States, any state of the United States or the District of
Columbia and that conduct substantially all business operations outside the United States.

Reclassifications and Eliminations: Entries that eliminate the investment in subsidiaries and
intercompany balances and transactions.

The Titan Corporation and Subsidiaries: The Financial information for The Titan Corporation on a
condensed consolidated basis.

The classification of operating entities within each of the columns is based on the legal status of the
entity as of December 31, 2003. Accordingly, certain legal entities that existed in prior years that had been
merged into Titan as of December 31, 2003 have been reclassified in the prior year condensed financial
statements to conform with the current year presentation.
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Note 17. Guarantor Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements (Continued)

Condensed Consolidating Parent Company, Guarantor and Non-guarantor
‘ Statement of Operations o
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
(In thousands)

Reclassifications The Titan
Guarantor . Non-guarantor and - Corporation and
Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations . Subsidiaries
Revenues ................ $1,678,777  $67,598 $31,376 $(2,744) $1,775,007
Cost and expenses: :
Cost of revenues ......... 1,398,467 55,335 27,365 (2,536) 1,478,631
Selling, general and
administrative . . . ....... 146,779 11,582 . 5,558 — 163,919
Research and development . . 9,189 2,135 — —_ 11,324
Impairment charge related to
SureBeam ............ 15,757 —_ — — 15,757

Merger related costs. ... ... 2,247 — — — 2,247

Total costs and expenses . . .. 1,572,439 69,052 32,923 (2,536) 1,671,878
Operating profit (loss) ... .... 106,338 (1,454) (1,547) (208) 103,129
Interest expense ........... (34,459) (89) (26) = (34,574)
Interest income .. .......... 2,315 4 7 —_ 2,326
Debt extinguishment costs . . . . (12,423) — — — (12,423)
Loss on investments ........ (6,154) — — — (6,154)
Income (loss) from continuing

operations before income .

12: - T 55,617 (1,539) (1,566) (208) 52,304
Income tax provision (benefit) . 23,692 (622) (633) (84) 22,353
Income (loss) from continuing

operations . ............. 31,925 917) (933) (124) 29,951
Loss from discontinued

operations, net of taxes . (278) 239 - (815) — (854)
Earnings (loss) before equity in ‘

losses of subsidiaries. ... ... 31,647 (678) (1,748) (124) 29,097
Equity in losses of subsidiaries . (2,426) — — 2,426 —
Net earnings (loss) ......... $ 29221 § (678) $(1,748) $ 2,302 $ 29,097
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Note 17. Guarantor Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements (Continued)

Condensed Consolidating Parent Company, Guarantor and Non-guarantor
: Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002

The Titan
Guarantor Non-guarantor  Reclassifications and  Corporation and
Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Subsidiaries
Revenues ............. ... $1344626 0§ 22,258 $ 30,306 $ (5,030) $1,392,160
Cost and expenses:
Cost of revenues . ........ 1,097,936 17,073 18,586 (4,534) 1,129,061
Selling, general and
administrative. . ... ..... 164,623 7,472 7,464 — 179,559
Research and development . . 9,177 - 378 — — 9,555
Exit and restructuring charges
andother ............ 41,642 — 11,675 — 53,317
Total costs and expenses . . . . 1,313,378 24,923 37,725 (4,534) 1,371,492
Operating profit (loss) . . . .. . 31,248 (2,665) (7,419) (496) 20,668
Interest expense . .......... (32,552) (110) 2) — (32,664)
Interest income. . .......... 1,708 — — — ,
Debt extinguishment costs . . .. (9,435) - — — (9,435)
Loss from continuing operations '
before income taxes and
cumulative effect of change in »
accounting principle . . ... .. (9,031) (2,775) (7,421) (496) (19,723)
Income tax benefit ......... (975) (666) (4,783) (55) (6,479)
Loss from continuing operations
before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle . (8,056) (2,109) - (2,638) (441) (13,244)
Loss from discontinued B
operations, net of taxes . . . . . (16,678)  (157,480) (43,948) — (218,106)
Loss before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle . (24,734)  (159,589) (46,586) (441) (231,350)
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle, net of '
tax benefit . ............ (9,414) — (30,697) — (40,111)
Loss before equity in losses of ‘
subsidiaries . . ........... (34,148)  (159,589) (77,283) (441) (271,461)
Equity in losses of subsidiaries . (236,872) (35,972) — 272,844 —
Net earnings (loss) . . ....... $ (271,020) $(195,561) $272,403 $ (271,461)

(In thousands)
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Note 17. Guarantor Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements (Continued)

Condensed Consolidating Parent Company, Guarantor and Non-guarantor
Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
(In thousands)

The Titan

Guarantor  Non-guarantor  Reclassifications and  Corporation and
Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Subsidiaries
Revenues ................ $944,933  $13,702 $ 21,881 $(6,019) $974,497
Cost and expenses:
Cost of revenues ......... 741,187 6,335 12,511 (4,918) ' 755,115
Selling, general and ‘ ‘ :
administrative . . ... ... .. 136,261 4,863 14,664 (1,274) 154,514
Research and development .. 7,683 689 352 586 9,310
Acquisition and integration
related charges and other . 12,236 — 15,611 — 27,847
Total costs and expenses . . .. 897,367 11,887 43,138 (5,606) . 946,786
Operating profit (loss) .. ... .. 47,566 1,815 (21,257) (413) 27,711
Interest expense . .......... (26,439) (550) (9,680) — (36,669)
Interest income . . .......... 1,770 9 — —_ . 1,779
Income (loss) from continuing
operations before income ‘
taxes and minority interests . 22,897 1,274 (30,937) (413) (7,179)
Income tax provision (benefit) . 10,020 471 (9,304) (180) 1,007
Income (loss) from continuing
operations before minority
interests . ... 12,877 803 (21,633) (233) (8,186)
Minority interests . ......... 4,636 93 — — 4,729 -
Income (loss) from continuing ‘
operations . ............. 17,513 896 (21,633) (233) (3,457)
Income (loss) from
discontinued operations, net
oftaxes . ............... (85,305) 3.998 (13,850) — (95,157)
Income (loss) before equity in '
. losses of subsidiaries ... ... (67,792) 4,894 (35,483) (233) (98,614)
Equity in losses of subsidiaries . (30,589)  (3,525) — 34,114 —

Net earnings (loss) ......... $(98,381) $ 1,369 $(35,483) $33,881 $(98,614)
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Note 17. Guaranfor Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements (Continued)

Condensed Consolidating Parent Company, Guarantor and Non-guarantor

Guarantor Non-guarantor Reclassifications and Corporation and
Parent  Subsidiaries . Subsidiaries Eliminations Subsidiaries
Assets
Current Assets: . _
Cash and cash equivalents . .......... $ 25073 8 (64) $ 1,965 $§ — $ 26,974
Accounts receivable—net . .. ... ...... 342,767 17,835 27,361 — 387,963
Inventories . . ................... 20,217 - 2,352 6,836 — 29,405
Prepaid expenses and other. . ... ... ... S 23198 781 296 (208) 24,044
Deferred income taxes . . . .. ......,... 91,272 — — —_ 91,272
Current assets of discontinued operations . . — . 46,584 8,185 —_ 54,769
Total current assets . . .. ........:" 502,504 '67,488 44,643 (208) 614,427
Property and equipment, net . .......... 38,698 | 15,154 11,939 — 65,791
Goodwill . . . ........... .. ... .. ... 460,916 18,648 59 — 479,623
Otherassets—net . ................. 59,672 8,336 5 — 68,013
Non-current assets of discontinued operations 62,781 C— — — 62,781
Intercompany investments and advances—net . - 361,081  (195,438) (165,643) — —
Total assets . . ................. $1,485,652  $(85,812) $(108,997) $(208) $1,290,635
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities:
Current portion of amounts outstanding
under line of credit . ............. $ 3500 $ — 3 — $ — $ 3,500
Accounts payable . .. ............. . 71777 10,604 2,902 — 91,283
Current portion of long-term debt ... ... 863 — — — © 863
Accrued compensation and benefits . . . .. 76,821 3,693 1,309 — 81,823
Other accrued liabilities . . . .......... 89,388 4,184 1,767 — 95,339
Current liabilities of discontinued
Operations . .. ... .............. 368 13,692 4723 — 18,783
Total current liabilities . . .......... 248,717 32,173 10,701 — 291,591
Long-term portion of amounts outstanding
under lineof credit . . . ............. 341,250 - — — — 341,250
Senior subordinated debt. . . ... ... ..... 200,000 — —_ — 200,000
Other long-term'debt . . .. ............ 988 — —_ — 988
Other non-current liabilities . . . . ... ..... 47,360 - 491 3,200 — 51,051
Non-current liabilities of discontinued
QPErations . ... v v v it 1,041 32,307 998 — 34,346
Stockholders’ equity (deficit) . .......... 646,296  (150,783) (123,896) . (208) 371,409
$1,485,652  $(85,812) $(108,997) $(208) . $1,290,635

Total liabilities and equity ... .......

Balance Sheet

As of December 31, 2003

(In thousands)

The Titan
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Note 17. Guarantor Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements (Continued)

Condensed Consolidating Parent Company, Guarantor and Non-guarantor
Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2002
(In thousands)

The Titan
Guarantor Non-guarantor Reclassifications and Corporation and
Parent  Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Subsidiaries
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ... ........ $ 33390 $ 793 $ (60) $ - $ 34,123
Restrictedcash .. ................ 394 — — — 394
Accounts receivable—net . .. ... ... ... 278,511 8,736 27,116 — 314,363
Inventories . . . ... ... ' 24,901 1,854 4,525 — 31,280
Prepaid expenses and other. . . . ... .. .. 17,915 293 1,986 (753) 19,441
Deferred income taxes . . . .. ......... 108,046 - — — 108,046
Current assets of discontinued operations . . 661 93,145 - 10,065 — : 103,871
Total current assets . . ............ 463,818 104,821 . 43,632 (753) 611,518
Property and equipment, net ... ........ 40,206 14,358 9,141 _ 63,705
Goodwill . .. ... .. ... . 458,527 4,133 59 — 462,719
Other assets—net . . ... ......... ..., 98,505 1,393 5 — 99,903
Deferred income taxes . .. ... ... .. .... 53,015 . - — — 53,015
Non-current assets of discontinued operations — 4,212 2,370 — 6,582
Intercompany investments and advances—net . 329,178 - (172,801) (156,377) — : —_
Total assets . .. ................ $1,443,249  $(43,884) $(101,170) $(753) $1,297,442
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities:
Current porticn of amounts outstanding
under line of credit . ... .......... $ 3500 $ — $ — $ — '$ 3,500
Accounts payable . . ............... 65,740 5,747 9,889 — 81,376
Current portion of long-term debt . . .. .. 847 — — — 847
Accrued compensation and benefits . . . .. 64,521 1,551 = 567 — 66,639
Other accrued liabilities . . .. ......... © 75,089 9,319 3,194 — 87,602
Current liabilities of discontinued
operations . . ... e 1,999 41,506 5,638 _— 49,143
Total current liabilities . . ... ....... 211,696 58,123 19,288 — 289,107
Long-term portion of amounts outstanding .
under lineof credit . . . . ............ 344,750 — — — 344,750
Other long-term debt . . . ... .. e 2,045 — — — 2,045
Other non-current liabilities . . . .. ... .... 49,522 4,868 . 11 — 54,401
Non-current liabilities of discontinued
operations . . . ... — 43,230 1,596 — 44,826
Company obligated mandatory redeemable
convertible preferred securities of a
subsidiary trust whose sole assets are senior
subordinated convertible debentures of
Titan . .. ............. e 250,000 —_ — — 250,000
Stockholders’ equity (deficit) . . .. .. e 585,236 (150,105) (122,065) (753) 312,313

Total liabilities and equity . . . . .. ... ... $1,443,249  $(43,884) $(101,170) - $(753) $1,297,442
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Note 17. Guarantor Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements (Continued)

Condensed Consolidating Parent Company, Guarantor and Non-guarantor
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003
(In thousands)

‘ The Titan

Guarantor Non-gunarantor  Reclassifications and  Corporation and
Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Subsidiaries

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Income (loss) from continuing

Operations. . . . ... .. ...... .. $ 31,925 $ (917 $ (933) ‘ $(124) $ 29,951
Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) .

from continuing operations to cash

provided by (used for) continuing

operations, net of effects of

businesses acquired . . . ........ 75048  (15,905) (10,741) 1247 ‘ 48,526
Net cash provided by (used for) :

continuing operations .. ....... 106,973 (16,822) (11,674) ‘ —_ 78,477
Income (loss) from discontinued -

operations . . . . ... ... ... . (278) . 239 o (815) — (854)

Adjustments to reconcile income (loss)
from discontinued operations to
cash used for discontinued

operations. . . . ............. (2,814) 6,663 - (6,614) — (2,765)
Net cash provided by (used for)

discontinued operations . ....... (3,092) 6,902 - (7.429) — (3,619)
Net cash provided by (used for)

operating activities .. ......... 103,881 (9,920) (19,103) — 74,858
Cash Flows from Investing Actmtles
Capital expenditures. . . ... ...... (10,943) (3,097) (64) — (14,104)
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash

acquired . . . ... . L. ... 1,840 (12,249) : — — (14,089
Other investments , . . . . e 1,615 — : — — (1,615
Proceeds (payments) on intercompany ‘

investments and advances . . .. ... (45,925) 24,622 - 21,303 — _
Other ......... ... ... .... 583 (20) 31 — 594
Net cash provided by (used for) &

investing activities . . . ... ...... (59,740) 9,256 - . 21,270 — (29,214)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Extinguishment of HIGH TIDES and :

other debt reductions. . .. ... ... (254,541) — — — . (254,541)
Issuance of senior subordinated notes .

and other debt additions ....... 200,000 — — — 200,000
Deferred debt issuance costs ... ... 8,924 — — —_ 28,924;
Debt extinguishment costs . . . ... .. 4,352 — — — 4,352
Proceeds from stock issuances .. ... . 15,491 — — — 15,491
Dividends paid .. ............. (688) — — —_ (688)
Decrease in restricted cash . ... ... 394 — — — 394
Other . .................... 162 (193) (59) — (90)
Net cash used for financing activities . (52,458) . (193) (59) _— (52,710)
Effect of exchange rate changes on ' :

cash « .. ... ... = —_ (83) . — (83)
Net increase Sdecrease) in cash and ‘

cash equivalents . . .. ......... (8,317) (857) 2,025 - (7,149)
Cash and cash equivalents at '

beginningof year . . .......... 33,390 793 (60) — 34,123
Cash and cash equivalents at end of

VEAr. . oo e $ 25073 $  (64) $ 1,965 $ — $ 26974
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Note 17. Guarantor Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements (Continued)

Condensed Consolidating Parent Company, Guarantor and Non-guarantor
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002
(In thousands)

The Titan
Guarantor Non-guarantor Reclassifications and Corporation and
Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Subsidiaries

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: :
Loss from continuing operations . . . ....... $ (8,056) $§ (2,109) $ (2,638) $(441) $ (13,244)
Adjustments to reconcile loss from continuing

operations to cash provided by (used for)

continuing operations, net of effects of

businesses acquired . . .. ... ... L 141,144 30,661 (3,285) “ 441 168,961
Net cash provided by (used for) continuing ‘

Operations. . . .. ... v .. 133,088 28,552 (5,923) — 155,717
Loss from discontinued operations . . . . .. ... (16,678)  (157,480) (43,948) —_ (218,106)
Adjustments to reconcile loss from discontinued

operations to cash used for discontinued

OPErations. .« v v v v v v vt ie i (80,325) 126,480 37,557 — 83,714
Net cash used for discontinued operations . . . . (97,003) (30,998) - (6,391) — (134,392)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating

activities . . . ... ..... .. e e 36,085 (2,446) (12,314) — 21,325
Cash Flows from Investing Activities: '
Capital expenditures. . . . .............. (13,760) (4,054) (8,188) — (26,002)
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired . 27,237 172 — — 27,409
Capitalized software development costs . . . . . . — (1,341) (245) — (1,586)
Proceeds from sales of investments . ....... 6,917 — — — 6,917
Advances to SureBeam on line of credit .. ... (25,000 — — _— (25,000
Other investments . . . ................ (6,851 — — — (6,851
Proceeds (payments) on intercompany

investments and advances . . ........... (27,319) 9,328 17,991 — —
Other . . ..o vt e 4,307 (46) 3,333 — 7,594
Net cash provided by (used for) investing

activities . . .. . ... . e (34,469) 4,059 12,891 — (17.519)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities: -
Additionstodebt ........... .. ... ... 18,250 — — — 18,250
Retirements of debt . . .. .............. 4,177 (470) — — 4,647
Deferred debt issuance costs ... ......... 8,908 — — — 8,908
Proceeds from stock issuances . .......... 8,566 — — - 8,566
Issuance of stock in subsidiaries . ......... 15 4 — — 19
Dividendspaid ... .................. 689 — — — 689
Increase in restricted cash . . .. .......... 394 — — —_ 394
OWhET « o\ oo e e e e et 139 (187) (193) — 241
Net cash provided by (used for) financing

ACHIVILIES » . v v v vt e 12,802 (633) (193) — 11,956
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash .. ... — (220) (40) — (260)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents . . . . 14,418 740 3 —_ 15,502
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . 18,972 53 (404) — 18,621
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year. . . . . $ 33390 § 793 $ (60) $ — $ 34123
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THE TITAN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(in thousands, except share and per share data, or as otherwise noted)

Note 17. Guarantor Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements (Continued)

Condensed Consolidating Parent Company, Guarantor and Non-guarantor

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Income (loss) from continuing
operations . . . .. ..... ... ...

Adjustments to reconcile income (loss)
rom continuing operations to cash
provided by (used for) continuing
operations, net of effects of
businesses acquired . . . ... ... ..

Net cash provided by (used for)
continuing operations . . .......

Income (loss) from discontinued
OPerations . . . . .. ..o v v vt s

Adjustments to reconcile income (loss)
from discontinued operations to
cash used for discontinued ‘
operations. . . . ............ .

Net cash used for discontinued
operations . . . . ... ..........

Net cash used for operating activities .

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expenditures. . . ... ......
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash
acquired . . .. ...
Capitalized software development
COSES © v v e it
Proceeds from sales of investments . .
Other investments . . ...........
Proceeds (payments) on intercompany
investments and advances . . ... ..
Other .. ...................

Net cash provided by (used for)
investing activities . . . . ... ... ..

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Additionstodebt . ............
Retirements of debt . . .. ........
Deferred debt issuance costs . .. .". .
Proceeds from stock issuances .. . ..
Issuance of stock in subsidiaries . . . .
Dividends paid . ..............
Other . ....................

Net cash provided by financing
activities . . .. ..., ... ... ..

Effect of exchange rate changes on
cash ...... ... ... ... ...

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents . . .. .........

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year . . ... .......

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
YEAT. . v v i

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2001
(In thousands)

The Titan
Guarantor Non-guarantor  Reclassifications and  Corporation and
Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Subsidiaries
$ 17,513 $ 896 $(21,633) - $(233) $ (3457)
4,503 917) 9,980 233 13,799
22,016 (21) (11,653) — 10,342
(85,305) 3,998 (13,850) (95,157)
75,109 (75,375) (18,926) — - (19,192)
(10,196) (71,377) (32,776) — (114,349)
11,820 (71,398) (44,429) — (104,007)
(10,393) (1,339) (2,505) _— (14,237)
(34,171) — — — (34,171)
4 (8 - - (4)
3,217 — — — 3,217
(12,546) — _ — (12,546)
(117,594) 72,897 44,697 —
238 (149) (295) — (206)
(171,245) 71,401 41,897 — (57,947)
66,875 — — — 66,875
38,100 — — — 38,100
1,600 — — — (1,600
147,579 — — — 147,579
20 — 22 — 42
(690) — —_ — (690)
2 — — — 2
174,086 — 22 — 174,108
— 48 (28) 20
14,661 51 (2,538) — 12,174
4,311 2 2,134 — 6,447
$ 18,972 $ 53 $ (404) $ — $ 18,621
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THE TITAN CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
(in thousands, except share and per share data, or as otherwise noted)
Note 18. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

First Second Third Fourth Total

@ ' ' ‘ Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Revenues............cocouiiiineo... $377,880 $437,680 $ 471,854 $487,593 $1,775,007
Grossprofit . ................ AP 62,604 72,392 75,657 85,723 296,376
Income from continuing operations . . . . ... 7,939 5,083 14,987 1,942 29,951
Net inCome . . ..o vovveien it 7001 5865 15177 1,054 29,097
Basic earnings per share: .
Income from continuing operations . . . .. $ 010 $ 006 $ 018 $ 002 $ 0.37
Netincome..............ouvue.. 0.09 0.07 0.18 0.01 0.36
Diluted earnings per share: ,
Income from continuing operations . . . . . 0.10 0.06 0.18 0.02 0.35
Net income . . .. o.vvvnene e, 0.09 0.07 0.18 0.01 0.34
First Second Third Fourth * Total
Q{E Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
REeVENUES . . o o in oo $314,348  $345,631 § 352,819 $379,362 $1,392,160
Grossprofit . ........ ... ... . 60,923 68,872 65,842 67,462 263,099
Income (loss) from continuing operations :
before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle ................ 7,913 4,754 (33,516) 7,605 (13,244)
Netloss.......ooin... (33,624)  (17,175) (225,298) (772)  (271,461)
Basic earnings per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before cumulative effect of change in _ '
accounting principle . .. ............ $ 011 § 006 $ (043) § 010 $ (0.18)
Netloss .....cvvvi ... (0.48) (0.15) (2.89) (0.01) (3.58)
Diluted earnings per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before cumulative effect of change in ,
accounting principle . . . ......... ... 0.11 0.05 (0.43) 0.09 (0.18)

Netloss .......... U 047)  (0.16) (2.89)  (0.01) (3.58)
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THE TITAN CORPORATION ;
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(in thousands, except share and per share data, or as otherwise noted)

Note 18. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data (Continued)
The above financial information for each quarter reflects all normal and recurring adjustments.

Income from continuing operations and net income in 2003 include an estimated impairment charge
of $15.8 million related to Titan’s former subsidiary, SureBeam Corporation, debt extinguishment charges
of $12.4 million and a loss on investments of $6.2 million. Net income in 2003 also includes a net loss from
discontinued operations of $0.9 million.

Income from continuing operations and net loss for 2002 include exit and restructuring charges and
other of $53.3 million and debt extinguishment charges of $9.4 million. Net loss for 2002 includes a loss
from discontinued operations of $218.1 million. The loss from continuing operations includes all costs
previously related to the Cayenta headquarters and network operations center, which supported sales,
marketing, administrative and operational functions of all previously integrated Cayenta operations. The
headquarters and network operations center were eliminated on March 1, 2002 when certain of the
components of Cayenta were discontinued. Certain of these costs were previously included in the loss from
discontinued operations for the interim period for the first quarter of 2002, as filed in the Company’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2002, filed with the Commission on May 15, 2002. These
headquarters and network operations costs of approximately $17.1 million, which includes an impairment
charge of $14.9 million for certain assets of the network operations center and corporate headquarters of
Cayenta, have now been reclassified to continuing operations in the presentation above.
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Item 9. Change In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

No information is required by Item 9.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our executive management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we performed an evaluation of the effectiveness and design
of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this annual report. Based
on that evaluation, our executive management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief
Financial Officer, concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective as of December 31, -
2003.

Changes in internal controls.

Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Ffinancial Officer, also supervised
and participated in an evaluation of any changes in internal controls over financial reporting that occurred
during the last fiscal quarter and that have materially, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal controls over financial reporting. That evaluation did not identify any such changes to our internal
control over financial reporting.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Company

Directors

Michael B. Alexander Director since 2000
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. Alexander, 53, is a founding partner and the Managing Partner of Echo Bridge Entertainment,
LLC, an mdependent film distribution company formed in 2003 that acquires existing motion pictures for
distribution in theatrical, home video, television, and satellite markets throughout the world. He was
formerly the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of AverStar, Inc. and its predecessor,
Intermetrics, Inc., from 1995 until it was acquired by us in June 2000. Mr. Alexander also serves on the
Board of Trustees of Bloomfield College.

Edward H. Bersoff, Ph.D. ' ‘ Director since 2002
’ Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Dr. Bersoff, 61, is the founder of Greenwich Associates, LL'C, a consulting firm, which was formed in
2003 to serve the business needs of companies experiencing rapid growth or companies desiring to grow
more rapidly. From November 2002 to June 2003, he was the managing director of Quarterdeck
Investment Partners, LLC, an investment banking firm dedicated to the aerospace, defense, information
technology, government services and space marketplaces. In August 2000, he was among the founders of
Re-route Corporation, an e-mail forwarding service company that catered to consumer and commercial
clients where he served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer until October 2002. Dr. Bersoff served as
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, President and founder of BTG, Inc. from February 1982 until it was
acquired by us in November 2001. He is also director of EFJ, Inc. and Fargo Electronics, Inc.

Joseph E. Caligiuri ' | Director since 1984
Compensation, Stock Option and Pension Committee

Mr. Caligiuri, 76, is retired from Litton Industries, Inc., a diversified manufacturing and services
company, where he held a number of executive management positions from 1969 to 1993 including
Executive Vice President from September 1981 to April 1993.

Peter A. Cohen Director since 2002
Audit Committee

Mr. Cohen, 57, is a founding and managing partner of Ramius Capital Group, LLC, a private
investment management and merchant banking firm formed in 1994. Prior thereto, he formed Republic
New York Securities, an investment management firm in 1991 and was employed by Shearson Lehman
Brothers, an investment banking firm, from 1978 to 1991. At Shearson, Mr. Cohen held a number of
executive positions, including President and Chief Operating Officer from 1981 through 1990, and
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer from 1983 to 1990. He is also a Director of Kroll, Inc., Portfolio
Recovery Associates, The Mount Smal NYU Medical Center & Health System, and Scientific Games
Corporation.

Daniel J. Fink : ‘ Director since 1985
, Audit Committee

Mr. Fink, 77, has been President of D.J. Fink Associates, Inc., a management-consulting firm, since
1982. Prior thereto, he was employed by General Electric Company from 1967 to 1982, where he held a
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number of executive management positions, including. Senior Vice President, Corporate Planning and
Development. He is also a director of Orbital Sciences Corporation.

Susan Golding Director since 2001
Audit Committee
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Ms. Golding, 58, is the founder, President and CEO of The Golding Group, a management consulting
firm, established in February 2001. Prior thereto, she was elected to two consecutive terms as Mayor of San
Diego from 1992 to 2000. Prior to serving as Mayor, she chaired the San Diego County Board of
Supervisors, served as Deputy Secretary of Business, Transportation and Housing for the State of
California and was a member of the San Diego City Council. She is also a director of Avanir
Pharmaceuticals.

Robert M. Hanisee ‘ Director since 1998
: Audit Committee Chairman

Mr. Hanisee, 65, is semi-retired from TCW Group where he is currently Chief Investment Officer in
the Private Client Services Group. He managed the TCW Convertible Securities Group from 1992 to 1998,
and had been Portfolio Manager for the Global Telecom Trust, a telecom sector investment fund marketed
through Dean Witter, from September 1996 to October 1998. Mr. Hanisee was a founding partner of
Amdec Securities, an investment management firm, and later was President of Seidler Amdec Securities.
Mr. Hanisee is also a director of EDO Corporation and Orbital Sciences Corporation.

Robert E. La Blanc ‘ , Director since 1996
Compensation, Stock Option and Pension Committee
Chairman

Mr. La Blanc, 70, is the President and founder of Robert E. La Blanc Associates, a financial and
technical consulting firm formed in 1981. From 1979 to 1981 he was Vice Chairman of Continental
Telecom, Inc., a nationwide telecommunications service provider. Prior thereto, he was a General Partner
with Salomon Brothers, an investment banking firm, from 1969 to 1979. Mr. La Blanc is also a director of
Computer Associates International, Inc., Fibernet Telecom Group, Inc., Storage Technology Corporation,
Charter Semiconductor Manufacturing, Ltd. and two clusters of Prudential Mutual Funds.

Gene W, Ray, Ph.D. Director since 1981
' Chairman

Dr. Ray, 65, was a co-founder of Titan Systems, Inc., the parent of which merged into The Titan
Corporation in 1985. He served as a Director, Chief Executive Officer and President of Titan Systems from
its inception in 1981 until the merger in 1985. He has been our Chairman of the Board of Directors since
May 1999 and our Chief Executive Officer since the merger. Dr. Ray also served as our President until
-May 2002 and was re-elected as our President in February 2003.

James Roth ' Director since 1998
Compensation, Stock Option and Pension Committee
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. Roth, 67, is retired from GRC International, Inc., a provider of advanced engineering and
scientific technologies, where he held key executive management positions from July 1974 to June 1996,
retiring as President and Chief Executive Officer and serving on the board of directors from January 1992
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to November 1998. Mr. Roth is also a director of Digimarc Corporation, EDO Corpofation and ViroTech
Corporation. :

Joseph R. Wright, Jr. S . Director since 2000
Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee Chairman

Mr. Wright, 65, has been CEO of PanAmSat Corporation since August 2001 and is the Vice Chairman
and a director of Terramark Worldwide, Inc. Mr. Wright was also the President of Terramark from
March 2000 until August 2001. He was the Chairman of GRC International, Inc., a provider of advanced
engineering and scientific technologies, from 1996 to March 2000 and Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of AmTec, Inc., an international telecommunications company, from 1995 to May 2000. From 1989
to 1994, he was Executive Vice President and Vice Chairman of WR. Grace & Co. Mr. Wright is also a
director of Fairmarket, Inc., MusicMaker and Verso Technologies.

Management

Our executive officers and their respective positions are set forth in the following table. Biographical
information of each executive officer who is not a Director is set forth following the table. Dr. Ray’s
biography is included with those of the other members of the Board of Directors. There are no family
relationships between any Director or executive officer and any other Director or executive officer of
Titan. Executive officers serve at the discretion of.our Board of Directors.
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Executive Officers -

Name

Position

Gene W Ray, Ph. D ..........
Nicholas J. Costanza ........
MarkWSopp.........,...

Paul W. Sullivan. .......... |
Allen D. Branch ...........

Thomas J. Brennan .........
Lawrence J. ]Delaney,‘ PhD. ...
A. Anton (Tony) Frederickson .
Ronald B. Gorda . ..........
Robert J. Osterloh . ... ......
Earl A. Pontius . ...........
Leslie A, Rose.............

Robert J. Whalen ..........

Brian J. Clark .. ........... |

Philip J. DeVera . . ... e
John H. Dressendorfer e
Mary Jo Potts . .......... L.

Ralph R. Williams . .........

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer
and President

Senior V1ce President, General Counsel and
Secretary

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer

Senior Vice President, Business Development

Senior Vice President and President, Maritime

‘and Intelligence Sector

Senior Vice President and President, Sea and
Air Sector

Senior Vice President and President, Advanced
Systems Development Sector

Senior Vice President and President, Apphed
Technologies Sector

Senior Vice President and President,
Information Products Sector

Senior Vice President and President, Systems
Integration Sector

Senior Vice President and President, Technical
Resources Sector

Senior Vice President and President, Enterprise
Support Services Sector

Senior Vice President and Chairman, Advanced
Systems Development Sector

Vice President, and Corporate Controller
Vice President, Internal Audit
Vice President, Government Relations

Vice President, Human Resources and
Administration

Vice President, Corporate Communications

65

48

38

48

64

64

68

48

49

59

67

56

73

33
55
63,
50

59

Year in Which
He/She Became
Officer

1981
1999
2001

2002
2002

2002
2003
2002
2002
2002
.2002
2002
2003

2001
2002
2000
2000

1999

The term of office of each executive officer is until his or her respective successor is elected and has
been qualified, or until his or her earlier death, resignation or removal. Historically, the Board of Directors
has elected officers annually at its first meeting following the Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Mr. Costanza has been our Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary since August 1999.
Mr. Costanza served in several legal and other senior executive roles, including General Counsel from
1982 through 1998 and most recently as Vice President, Chief Administrative Officer, General Counsel
and Secretary of Exide Electronics Group, Inc., a high technology public company from 1980 through 1998.
Thereafter and before joining Titan, Mr. Costanza was Executive Vice President, General Counsel and
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_ Secretary of Enfinity Corporation, an energy and indoor environmental systems and services industry
consolidation company that filed for an initial public offering in 1998.

Mr. Sopp has been our Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer since April 2001.
Prior thereto he was a Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Titan Systems Corporation, a
subsidiary of ours, since 1998. From 1991 to 1998 he was Director/International Controller at Taylor Made
Golf Company.

Mr. Sullivan has been our Senior Vice President of Business Development since September 25, 2002.
Prior thereto, Mr. Sullivan had been Senior Vice Pres1dent of Business Development for Titan Systems
since April 2002. From December 1999 to April 2002, he was Senior Vice President of Business
Development for BTG, Inc., which Titan acquired in November 2001. Before Joining BTG, Inc.,
Mr. Sullivan had been the Directbr of Business Development for Raytheon’s Strategic Systems Business
Unit since June of 1993. Prior to joining Raytheon, Mr. Sullivan served 23 years as a Naval Officer.

Mr. Branch has been our Senior Vice President and President of our Maritime and Intelligence Sector
since September 25, 2002. Prior thereto, Mr. Branch had been a Senior Vice President and the President
and General Manager of the Solutions and Engineering Division of Titan Systems since June 2000 and
* General Manager of Delfin Systems since October 1998. Mr. Branch served as President and General
Manager of Delfin Systems, until it was acquired by Titan in October 1998. From 1983 through 1984,
Mr. Branch was a Communication Engineer for Lockheed Space and Missile Company.

Mr. Brennan has been our Senior Vice President and President of our Sea and Air Sector since
September 25, 2002. Prior thereto, Mr. Brennan had been President of the Aviation Engineering Group of
Titan Systems since January 2001. Prior thereto, Mr. Brennan had held various positions with Advanced
Communication Systems, Inc., which Titan acquired in February 2000, serving as Vice President of its
Aerospace Division from February 1998 to June 1999. From May 1996 to February 1998, Mr. Brennan was
the Vice President for Air Force and Army Aviation Programs for SEMCOR Inc., which was acquired by
Advanced Communication ‘Systems, Inc. in June 1999.

Dr. Delaney was elected our Senior Vice vPres1dént and President of our Advanced Systems
Development Sector on February 26, 2003. Prior to joining Titan, Dr. Delaney was Chairman of the Board,
CEO and President of Areté Associates, an advanced science and engineering company contributing to
national security and competitiveness. He was sworn in as Assistant Secretary of the Air Force
(Acquisition) in 1999 and completed his public service on July 31, 2001, as Acting Undersecretary of the
Air Force. He also held the position of Chief Information Officer of the Air Force from January 20, 2001

“until June 1, 2001, and held the position of Acting Secretary of the Air Force. Previously, Dr. Delaney was
President, Delaney Group, Inc. a technical and business consulting firm he founded in 1997.

Mr. Frederickson has been our Senior Vice President and President of our Applied Technologies
Sector since September 25, 2002. Prior thereto, Mr. Frederickson had been President and General
Manager of the Applied Technologies Sector of Titan Systems since January 1998. Prior thereto he had
been the General Manager of the Titan Research and Technology Division. From October 1989 to
October 1995, Mr. Frederickson held various management positions in the Department of Defense’s
Defense Nuclear Agency. He began his career in various technical positions with Cahforma Research and
Technology, which was acquired by Titan in 1986. :

Mr. Gorda has been our Senior Vice Premdent and President of our Information Products Sector
since September 25, 2002. Prior thereto, Mr. Gorda had been President of the Information Products
Group of Titan Systems since June 2000. Mr. Gorda had been a Senior Vice President of Titan since
February 1995 and Chief Operating Officer of Linkabit Wireless, Inc., since September 1997. He served as
President of the Linkabit division of Titan from June 1993 to September 1997. From May 1994 to
February 1995 he was a Vice President of Titan. From August 1991 to June 1993 he served as Senior Vice
President of the SATCOM Systems business unit of the Linkabit division.
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Mr. Osterloh has been our Senior Vice President and President of our Systems Integration Sector
since September 25, 2002. From November 2001 to September 2002, he was President of the Defense
Intelligence Systems Group of Titan Systems. Mr. Osterloh joined BTG in 1994 as Vice President of
Strategic Planning. He was promoted to Senior Vice President in 1998, and then President in 2001. Prior to
joining BTG, he served 28 years in the U. S. Air Force, including key leadership positions supporting
information operations, electronic warfare and flying operations and retiring as Commander of the Air
Force Information Warfare Center. -

Mr. Pontius has been our Senior Vice President and Premdent of our Technical Resources Sector since
September 25, 2002. Prior thereto, Mr. Pontius had been Senior Vice President of Titan Systems since
June 2000 and President and General Manager of thé Technical Resources Sector of Titan Systems since
June 1998. Mr. Pontius had been Premdent of Horizons Technology, Inc. from 1996 through its acquisition
by Tltan in June 1998.

Mr. Rose has been our Senior Vice President and President of our Enterprise Support Services Sector
since December 17, 2002. He joined Titan through Titan’s acquisition of BTG, Inc. in 2001, where he had
been Senior Vice President of the Applied Engineering Solutions Group since 1999. Prior thereto he was
Senior Vice President of Delta Research division of BTG, Inc. from 1994 to 1999. He completed a .
successful 20-year career as an officer in the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers serving in a wide variety of
engineering positions.

Mr. Whalen has been our Senior Vice President and Chairman of our Advanced Systems
Development Sector since February 2003. Prior thereto he had been the President and co-founder of
International Systems, LLC since 1982. International Systems, LLC was acquired by us in February 2002.
Mr. Whalen has over 45 years of experience in the defense industry, including 14 years with Martin
Marietta Corporation (now Lockheed Martm) where he was president of Martm Marietta Aerospace
from 1976 to 1982.

Mr. Clark has been our Vice President and Corporate Controller since April 19, 2004, and prior
thereto he had been our Vice President of Strategic Transactions since December 2001. From June 1996 to
December 2001, he held various positions at Arthur Andersen LLP, most recently as a Senior Manager.
From January 1994 to May 1996, he held various posmons at Deloitte & Touche LLP, most recently as a
Senior Accountant.

Mr. DeVera has been our Vice President of Internal Audit since July 2002. Prior thereto, he had been
with TRW, a space and defense contractor, for 14 years in various management positions most recently as
Director, Financial Reporting and Forecasting for the space and electronics group.

Mr. Dressendorfer has been our Vice President, Government Relations since August 2000. From 1996
to 2000 he was Vice President, Government ‘& External Affairs of the American Forest & Paper
Association. Prior thereto, Mr. Dressendorfer was a founder of the firm Dressendorfer Laird, serving as
President from 1983 to 1996. '

Ms. Potts has been our Vice President of Administration since June 2000 and in- April 2004 assumed
additional responsibilities over our Human Resources functions. From 1999 to 2000, she was Senior Vice
President and Chief Administrative Officer of Research Analysis and Maintenance, Inc. From 1994 to
1999, Ms. Potts was Director of Contracts and Purchasmg at GRC International, Inc. and was named Vice
President in 1995.

Mr. Williams has been our Vice President of Corporate Communications since 1999. Previously, he
was with Raytheon Company from 1986 to 1995 when he became Director of Corporate Communications
for System Resources Corporation until it was acquired by us in 1999,
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Audit Committee Members and Audit Committee Financial ‘Expert(s)

Our Board of Directors has a separately designated standing Audit Committee that has been
established in accordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Exchange Act. The members of our Audit
Committee are: ‘

Robert M. Hanisee, Chairman
Peter A. Cohen

Daniel J. Fink

Susan Golding

Each member of the Audit Committee has been determined by our Board of Directors to be
independent under the standards adopted by the New York Stock Exchange that are applicable to all
directors, as well as the standards adopted by the SEC which are applicable to audit committee members
only. Our Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Hanisee qualifies as an “audit committee financial
expert” as such term is defined under paragraph (h)(2) of Item 401 of Regulation S-K.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our Directors and executive officers, and all persons who
beneficially own more than 10% of the outstanding shares of our common stock (“Reporting Persons”) to
file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of our Common Stock
and other equity securities of the Company. Reporting Persons are also required to furnish the Company
with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

To our knowledge, based solely upon a review of the copies of such forms furnished to us for the year
ended December 31, 2003, and the information provided to us by our Reporting Persons, no Reporting
Person failed to file the forms required by Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act on a timely basis.

Item 11. Executive Compensation
Summary of Cash and Certain Other Compensation

The following table shows, for each of the fiscal years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the
cash compensation paid by us and our subsidiaries, as well as certain other compensation paid or accrued
for those years, to our Chief Executive Officer and five other most highly compensated executive officers
in 2003 (the “Named Executive Officefs”) in all capacities in which they served. As noted, one of the
Named Executive Officers ceased to serve as an' executive officer in 2003, and another of them resigned in
2004. ‘ ‘
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Summary Compensation Table

Long-Term
Compensation
Annual —~—
Compensation __~ SeeuTeS ) oy
Salary($) Bonus(3) Options/SARs © Compensation

Name and Principal Position . Year (A) 3B) C#© ¢ D
Gene W. Ray........ e 2003 807,501 760,000 300,000 101,458
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and 2002 788,270 -0- -0- 103,458
President 2001 688,268 560,000 300,000 638,971
Owens F. Alexander, Jr.* ................ 2003 290,817 390,000 -0- 10,000
Senior Vice President and President, 2002 250,587 145,000 47,075 22,039
Titan Wireless, Inc. 2001 -0- -0- -0- -0-
Nicholas J. Costanza ................ ... 2003 342,391 306,000 100,000 43,524
Senior Vice President, 2002 319,315 60,000 - -0- 12,044
General Counsel and Secretary 2001 302,391 165,000 - 90,000 9,395
Mark W.Sopp ....... ... ... it 2003 324,508 293,000 100,000 41,737
Senior Vice President, o 2002 282,585 © 60,000 - -0- 43,373
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer. 2001 209,034 120,000 73,975 17,338
Earl A. Pontiuss (F) .. .................. 2003 303,610 209,000 60,000 114,446
Senior Vice President, 2002 265,049 150,000 -0- . 33,830
Technical Resources Sector 2001 234,844 100,000 0~ 36,630
Charles R. Saffell **. . ............ s..... 2003 288,694 208,000 30,000 - 44,373
Senior Vice President, ' 2002 275,909 145,000 -0- 37,220
National Security Solutions 2001 242,664 102,942 13,450 34,668

*  Mr. Alexander serves as our Senior Vice President and President and Chief Executive Officer of Titan
Wireless, Inc. From February 2002 through May 2003, Mr. Alexander was designated by our Board of
Directors as a “Section 16(A) Reporting Officer” of the Company, however in May 2003, in
connection with the winding down of our Titan Wireless segment, our Board of Directors removed
such designation. For Mr. Alexander, the information presented represents special bonus plans for
results achieved in connection with the discontinuation of our Titan Wireless operations.

**  Effective March 19, 2003, Mr. Saffell resigned as an officer of Titan. He had served as our Senior Vice
President, National Security Solutions since September 2002.

(A) Amounts shown include cash compensation earned and received by the executive officers as well as
amounts earned but deferred at the election of those officers.

(B) Amounts shown include bonus cash compensation earned by the executive officers for each fiscal year
whether received in the fiscal year in which it was earned or in the subsequent fiscal year.

(C) Amounts shown consist of option grants at fair market value under our 2000 and 2002 Employee and
Director Stock Option and Incentive Plans, and all option grants prior to August 5, 2002, reflect an
adjustment of 1.345:1 as a result of the spin-off of SureBeam Corporation on August 5, 2002.

" Amounts shown do not include option grants to the Named Executive Officers under stock option
plans adopted by certain subsidiaries of ours. The Named Executive Officers received the following
option grants in subsidiaries in 2003, 2002 and 2001. Dr. Ray received 100,000 shares at $0.50 per
share in Titan Scan Technologies Corporation in 2001. Mr. Alexander received 120,000 shares at $0.70
per share in Titan Wireless, Inc. in 2002. Mr. Costanza received 30,000 shares at $0.10 per share in
LinCom Wireless, Inc. and 30,000 shares at $0.50 per share in Titan Scan Technologies Corporation in
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2001. Mr. Sopp received 20,000 shares at $1.00 per share in Cayenta, Inc., 30,000 shares at $0.50 per
share in Titan Scan Technologies Corporation, and 20,000 shares at $0.70 per share in Titan
Wireless, Inc. in 2001.

(D) Amounts shown consist of (i) our matching contribution to our 401(k) Retirement Plan; (ii) our
matching contribution to our Supplemental Retirement Plan for Key Executives; (iii} interest earned
in our Supplemental Retirement Plan for Key Executives that exceeded 120% of the applicable
federal long-term rate with compounding (as prescribed under Section 1274(d) of the Internal
Revenue Code); and (iv) other compensation. Amounts shown for fiscal year 2003 for each Named
Executive Officer consist of the following elements of compensation: Dr. Ray: (i) $10,000; (ii) $80,000;
(iii) $83; and (iv) $11,375; Mr. Alexander: (i) $10,000; Mr. Costanza: (i) $10,000; (ii) $33,519 and
(iii) $5; Mr. Sopp: (i) $10,000; (i) $31,731; and (iii) $6; Mr. Pontius: (i) $2,658; (ii) $35,865; (iii) $51;
and (iv) $7,263; and Mr. Saffell: (i) $10,000; (ii) $28,269; (iii) $29; and (iv) $6,075.

Stock Options

The following table contains information concerning the grant of stock options made during fiscal
2003 under our long-term incentive program to the Named Executive Officers:

" Option Grants in Last Fiscal Year (A) .

Individual Grants Potential Realizable
Value at Assumed

oy S e
nderlyin; mployees in  Exercise ©
ome - Optans Grves sl ole | Epiven R TE
Gene W.Ray ................. 300,000 14235 815 02/27/13 1,537,647 3,896,700
Owens F. Alexander, Jr.* .. ....... - -0- 0- N/A N/A - NA N/A
Nicholas J. Costanza . ........... 100,000 4745 815 0272713 512,549 1,298,900
Mark W, SOpp . v 100,000 4745 815 02/27/13 512,549 1,298,900
Earl A. Pontius . .. ......... e 60,000 2847 815 022713 307,529 779,340
Charles R. Saffell, Jr.** .. ........ 30,000 ‘1424 - 815  02/27/13 153,764 389,670

*  Mr. Alexander serves as our Senior Vice President and President and Chief Executive Officer of Titan

Wireless, Inc. From February 2002 through May 2003, Mr. Alexander was designated by our Board of
Directors as a “Section 16(A) Reporting Officer” of the Company, however in May 2003, in
connection with the winding down of our Titan Wireless segment, our Board of Directors removed
such designation.

**  Effective March 19, 2003, Mr. Saffell resigned as an officer of Titan. He had served as our Senior Vice
President, National Security Solutions since September 2002.

(A) No SARs were granted to any of the'Named Executive Officers during the last fiscal year.

(B) Options granted in 2003 became exercisable at a rate of 2.083% per month from the grant date with
full vesting occurring on the fourth anniversary of the grant date.

(C) In 2003, employees received stock options covering a total of 2,107,500 shares. If our merger with
Lockheed Martin is completed; all outstanding stock options will vest and become exercisable subject
to the terms of the plans and our merger agreement with Lockheed Martin, and to the extent not
exercised prior to the effective time of the merger, all such stock options will be cancelled and the
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holder will receive cash in an amount equal to $20.00 less the exercise price of each such stock option
for each underlying share of common stock.

(D) The exercise price and tax withholding obligations related to exercise may be paid by delivery of
already owned shares or by offset of the underlying shares, subject to certain conditions.

(E) The options were granted for a term of 10 years, subject to earlier termination in certain events
related to termination of employment.

(F) Present value was calculated using an assumed annual compounded growth over the term of the
option of 5% and 10%, respectively. Use of this model should not be viewed in any way as a forecast
of the future performance. of our stock, which will be determined by future events and unknown
factors.

Option Exercises and Holdings

The following table sets forth information with respect to the Named Executive Officers concerning
the exercise of options. during the last fiscal year and unexercised options held as of the end of the fiscal
year. : :

Aggregated Option Exercises In Last Fiscal Year,
And FY-End Option Value (A)***

Number of Securities

Underlying Unexercised Value of Unexercised
Shares Value Options at In-the-Money Options at
Acqui?: dOn Realized  December 31, 2003 (#)(***) December 31, 2003 ($)(C)
Name Exercise (#) ($)(B) Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
Gene W, Ray ........... 52,971 249,571 1,011,882(D) 489,689 11,781,114(D)5,040,086
Owens F. Alexander, Jr.* .. -0- -0- 21,092 25,983 160,489 197,704
Nicholas J. Costanza. .. ... -0- -0- 291,303(E) 154,824 3,089,146(E) 1,620,175
Mark W. Sopp . ......... -0- -0- 157,380(F) 113,001 2,189,578(F) 1,340,964
Earl A. Pontius ......... 9,000 181,620 155,230(G) 50,022 2,719,688(G) 660,259
Charles R. Saffell, Jr.** ... 68,725 932,257 21,883(H) 30,896 214,726(H) 378,586

*  Mr. Alexander serves as our Senior Vice President and President and Chief Executive Officer of Titan
Wireless, Inc. From February 2002 through May 2003, Mr. Alexander was designated by our Board of
Directors as a “Section 16(A) Reporting Officer” of the Company, however in May 2003, in
connection with the winding down of our Titan Wireless segment, our Board of Directors removed
such designation.

**  Effective March 19, 2003, Mr. Saffell resigned as an officer of Titan. He had served as our Senior Vice
President, National Security Solutions since September 2002.

*** On August 5, 2002, all outstanding Titan stock options were adjusted by a factor of 1.345 as a result of
the spin-off of our former subsidiary SureBeam Corporation, and all option grant amounts prior
thereto reflect said adjustment.

(A) No SARs were owned or exercised by any of the Named Executive Officers during the last fiscal year.
(B) Aggregate market value of underlying securities on date of exercise, minus the exercise or base price.

(C) Aggregate market value of underlying securities at year-end, minus the exercise or base price.
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(D) Includes 251,130 vested options with an In-the-Money value of $5,077,848 that were assumed by Titan
through the merger of Titan Systems in September 2002, which assumed stock options were previously
disclosed and were originally granted to Dr. Ray by Titan Systems by a grant on December 31,1997 of
300,000 shares of Titan Systems Corporation at $1.33 per share.

(E) Includes 14,661 vested options with an In-the-Money value of $213,478 held by Scuderia Costanza
Investment Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company of which Mr. Costanza is the sole
general manager, and 50,226 vested options with an In-the-Money. value of $1,015,569 that were
assumed by Titan through the merger of Titan Systems in September 2002, which assumed stock
options were previously disclosed and were originally granted to Mr. Costanza by Titan Systems by a
grant on August 3, 1999 of 60,000 shares of Titan Systems Corporation at $1.33 per share.

(F) Includes 61,733 vested options with an In-the-Money value of $1,444,552 and 1,048 un-vested options
with an In-the-Money value of $21,190 that were assumed by Titan through the merger of Titan
Systems in September 2002, which assumed stock options were previously disclosed and were
originally granted to Mr. Sopp by Titan Systems by a grant on March 16, 1999 of 45,000 shares, and a
grant on February 17, 2000 of 15,000 shares, and a grant on February 18, 2000 of 15,000 shares of
Titan Systems Corporation at $1.33 per share.

(G) Includes 91,452 vested options with an In-the-Money value of $1,849,159 that were assumed by Titan
through the merger of Titan Systems in September 2002, which assumed stock options were previously
disclosed and were originally granted to Mr. Pontius by Titan Systems by a grant on August 12, 1998 of
90,000 shares of Titan Systems Corporation at $1.33 per. share and a grant on July 21, 1999 of 30,000
shares of Titan Systems Corporation at $1.33 per share. -

(H) Includes 782 vested options with an In-the-Money value of $15,812 that were assumed by Titan
through the merger of Titan Systems in September 2002, which assumed stock options were previously
disclosed and were originally granted to Mr. Saffell by Titan Systems by a grant on March 19, 1999 of
75,000 shares of Titan Systems Corporation at $1.33 per share.

Deferred Compensation Plan

Titan maintains a non-qualified Executive Deferred Compensation Plan for certain officers and key
employees. Under the plan, a select group of management and highly compensated employees of Titan,
including all of our executive officers, are allowed to defer, on a pre-tax basis, a portion of their annual
base salaries and bonuses. The deferrals reduce a participant’s current taxable income and allow the
participant to accumulate savings on a pre-tax basis. In addition, Titan, in its sole discretion, may make
annual discretionary contributions, matching contributions and profit sharing contributions to the Plan.
The deferrals (and Titan contributions, if applicable) are invested across several investment options
associated with the Plan, and the accounts of the participants are credited with the investment gains or
losses on a tax-deferred basis. Participants have the right to direct the investment of their accounts.
Participant deferrals are at all times 100% vested. The vesting schedules for Titan discretionary
contributions and our profit sharing contributions, if any, are at our sole discretion and may vary across
participants. The vesting schedule for Titan contributions, if any, is based on years of service, with 100%
vesting after five or more years of service. Distributions from the Plan are paid as a lump sum or in
installments upon a participant’s retirement, death, disability, termination of employment, or during
employment provided that at least three years have passed from the end of the year in which the
participant’s deferral occurred.

Effective April 1, 2003, the Plan was amended to provide for payment of distributions upon a change
of control. For purposes of this new provision, a participant’s vested account balance will be determined:
(a) by crediting the participant with a year of service for the year of employment in which the change of
control occurs; and (b) without applying the provision that a participant must be employed on the last day
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of the Plan year to avoid forfeiture of the annual company matching amount and attributable earnings for
the Plan year in which the participant terminates employment with the company.

Effective November 1, 2003, this new section of the Plan was amended in its entirety to provide that
upon a change in control: ‘

* No deferrals will be made under the Plan with respect to periods following the change in control;

» All vested account balances under the Plan will be immediately distributed or commence
distribution; ‘ ‘

* Vested account balances of a participant who is an active employee on the date of the change of
control will be determined by (a) crediting the participant with a year of service for the year of
employment in which the change of control occurs; and (b) without applying the provision that a
participant must be employed on the last day of the Plan year to avoid forfeiture of the annual
Company matching amount and attributable earnings for the Plan year in which the participant
terminates employment with the Company.

* On or before December 31 of the calendar year preceding the date on which the change of control
occurs and prior to the satisfaction of all shareholder approval and all regulatory approval
-requirements that may be applicable to such change in control or such earlier date as the Plan
committee shall designate, a participant whose vested account balance exceeds $25,000 as of the
September 30 preceding the last day on which such election could be made can elect whether the
participant’s vested account balance will be paid: (2) in a single lump sum; or (b) pursuant to the
annual installment method over five years. The vested account balance of any participant not
described in the prior sentence will be paid automatically in a single lump sum. If a participant who
is entitled to make such an election fails to do so, the participant’s vested account balance will be
paid in a single lump sum; '

* If a participant has made an alternative distribution election pursuant to any other provision of the
Plan but has not commenced to receive distributions as of the date of the change in control, such
election shall be void and shall have no force or effect; and

« If, as of the date of the change in control, a participant -has commenced to receive distributions
under the Plan under an annual installment method with more than five years of installments
remaining to be paid at the time of the change in control, the participant’s unpaid vested account
balance as of the change in control will thereafter be paid pursuant to the annual installment
method over five years determiined from the date of the change in control.

Director Compensation

Directors who are not employees of Titan or an affiliate receive the annual retainer and committee
fees that are indicated below: '

Annual Retainer (paid quarterly). . .......... ... .. ... ...... $43,000
Committee Chair (paid quarterly) . ............. ... . ... ... ... $1,500
. Quarterly Common Stock Payment-Audit Committee members* . . . .. $7,000 -
Quarterly Common Stock Payment-Other Committee members* . . . . . $5,000
Annual Stock Option Grant . .............................. 5,000 shares

*  Directors who currently own more than, or who subsequently acquire, 200,000 shares of our common
* stock may elect to receive this additional compensation in cash.

All fees are paid quarterly, in advance, and Directors may elect to receive all or a portion of their fees
in shares of our common stock. With respect to the quarterly common stock payments and any other
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election to receive fees in common stock, the common stock the Directors receive is valued based on the
average of the high and low sale prices of our common stock on the first day of the quarter. Pursuant to
our agreement with Lockheed Martin we have not issued any stock to our Directors under this
compensation arrangement since July 2003 and all fees have been paid in cash.

In addition, upon election to the Board, each Director receives a stock option grant to purchase 5,000
shares of our common stock. Directors also receive an annual stock option grant of 5,000 shares each
February. All options are granted under the 2000 or 2002 Employee and Director Stock Option and
Incentive Plan(s) at the average of the high and low sales prices of our common stock on the date of the
grant. Options granted to Directors vest over 4 years and have ten-year terms. The vesting of the options
will accelerate upon a change of control of Titan. Directors may also receive discretionary stock option
awards from time to time in one or more of our subsidiaries. Also, in August 2001, we began offering our
Directors and executive officers the ability to receive financial counseling and planning services provided
by a third-party. The amount paid by us for this service for each Director averaged $9,665 in 2003.

Compensation Co‘mmitteev Interlocks And Insider Participation

During 2003, the Compensation, Stock Option and Pension Committee was comprised of Messrs. La
Blanc, Caligiuri and Roth. There were not any ‘interlocking relationships between Messrs. La Blanc,
Caligiuri and Roth or any member of any other company’s board of directors, board of trustees or
compensation committee during that period. -

Employment Contracts and Termination of Employment and Change In Control Agreements

On April 2, 2003, we entered into an Employment Agreement with Dr. Ray in connection with his
duties as Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President of Titan. Among other things, the terms of the
agreement provide for continued employment of Dr. Ray by Titan for a term of three years, and eligibility
to receive annual incentive awards and to participate in long-term incentive, employee benefit and
retirement programs. In the event that Dr. Ray is terminated without cause, or retires at the end of the
term of the agreement, he will be entitled to a lump sum equal to three times the sum of his current base
salary and target bonus, vesting of all outstanding stock options and participation for Dr. Ray and his
dependents in our extended health benefits program for retired senior executives.

Also, on April 2, 2003 we entered into Employment Agreements with Messrs. Costanza and Sopp in
connection with their duties as Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary and Senior Vice
President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer, respectively. Among other things, the terms of their
agreements provide for continued employment by Titan for a term of two years, eligibility to receive
annual incentive awards and to participate in long-term incentive, employee benefit and retirement
programs. In the event of termination without cause, Messrs. Costanza and Sopp will each be entitled to a
lump sum equal to two times the sum of their respective current base salaries and target bonuses, vesting
of all outstanding stock options and continued medical and dental benefits coverage for a period of two
years. Messrs. Ray, Costanza and Sopp have agreed to non-competition and non-solicitation covenants in
connection with their respective employment agreements.

Change in Control Agreements

In March 2000, we entered into executive agreements with Dr. Ray and Mr. Costanza, which provide
special benefits after a change in control. The parties subsequently amended these agreements on
September 14, 2003 to clarify certain terms and conditions as they related to the change in control that
would result from the proposed merger with Lockheed Martin. Effective as of August 20, 2003, we also
entered into an executive agreement with Mr. Sopp, which mirrors the executive agreement, as amended,
for Mr. Costanza. Pursuant to these agreements, as amended, if (1) there is a change in control of Titan
(which will occur at the effective time of the merger with Lockheed Martin) and (2) the executive is
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terminated by Titan (or, after the merger, Lockheed Martin) other than for “Cause” (as defined below) or
such executive terminates his employment for “Good Reason” (as defined below) within three years
following such change in control or if the executive is terminated prior to a change in control and the
executive reasonably believes that his termination arose in connection with or in anticipation of a change in
control, the terminated executive will be entitled to a lump sum payment amount equal to three times the
sum of his base salary and his “Highest Annual Bonus” (as defined below). Each executive will have a right
under these agreements to resign for “Good Reason” at the effective time of the merger with Lockheed
Martin by virtue of the fact that Titan will cease to be a publicly traded company. Also, the executive will
receive a prorated bonus for the year of termination and continuation of the executive’s and his family’s
welfare benefits (including, without limitation, medical, prescription, dental, disability, employee life,
group life, accidental death and travel accident insurance plans and programs) for three years after the

~ later of the executive’s date of termination or, as applicable, the expiration of the executive’s continuation

coverage period under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act, referred to as COBRA. In
addition, all options that have been previously granted to the executive to acquire shares of Titan or any
affiliate of Titan that have not previously been forfeited or exercised will vest and become exercisable in
full, and, to the extent not exercised by the executive, will, subject to the terms of the option plans, and in
accordance with the merger agreement, be cancelled immediately prior to the completion of the merger
with Lockheed Martin and the executive will receive cash from Lockheed Martin in an amount equal to
$20.00 less the exercise price of each such stock option for each underlying share of common stock. Each
executive will be entitled to outplacement services at a cost not to exceed $100,000, which will be paid by
Titan (or, after the merger, Lockheed Martin). Furthermore, the executive will be deemed to have attained
not less than six years of service and to have vested for all purposes under Titan’s supplemental retirement
plan for key executives. Dr. Ray also will be provided with an office and secretary for a period of five years
after his employment termination with a total estimated cost of $800,000. In addition, regardless of
whether the merger is completed and unrelated to any change in control agreement, Dr. Ray and his wife
also will receive medical benefits for life. Based on their respective life expectancies and assuming constant
annual cost of such benefits, these benefits would have an estimated cost of $251,000. Titan’s 401(k) plan
provides for full vesting of all accounts under the plan upon a change in control (as defined in the plan),
which will occur at the effective time of the merger with Lockheed Martin. In the event that the executive
becomes subject to excise tax pursuant to Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code, the executive,
subject to certain limitations, will be entitled to an additional tax gross-up payment in an amount that will
result in the executive retaining an amount equal to the excise tax imposed upon the executive. Based on
current compensation levels, the total estimated cost of the severance payments and continued welfare
benefits payable to Dr. Ray, Mr. Costanza, and Mr. Sopp, as a result of the merger with Lockheed Martin,
is, respectively, $5,586,000, $2,121,000 and $1,991,000. These estimates do not include payment of a
prorated bonus for the year of termination or any tax gross up payment, which Titan (or, after the merger,
Lockheed Martin) might be required to make pursuant to these agreements. Titan (or, after the merger,
Lockheed Martin) will be obligated under these agreements to reimburse Dr. Ray, Mr. Costanza and
Mr. Sopp for all legal fees and all expenses, which they incur in asserting or in defending their rights under
these agreements. : ‘

For purposes of the agreements with Dr. Ray, Mr. Costanza, and Mr. Sopp, the following definitions
apply: .

* “Cause” means (1) the executive’ s willful and continued failure to perform his duties, provided that

~ such failure has a material and injurious effect on Titan (or, after the merger, Lockheed Martin)
and the executive has received a written demand for substantial performance and has not
subsequently substantially performed; or (2) the executive’s willful gross misconduct or conviction
of a felony (finally adjudicated and without further appeal) that is materially and demonstrably
injurious to Titan (or, after the merger, Lockheed Martin).
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* “Good Reason” means (1) the assignment of the executive to any duties inconsistent with the
executive’s position, authority, duties or responsibilities or any diminution of such position,
authority, duties, or responsibilities; (2) any failure by Titan (or, after the merger, Lockheed
Martin) to comply with the compensation and benefit provisions of the executive’ s agreement;
(3) Titan ceasing to be a publicly traded company; (4) Titan (or, after the merger, Lockheed
Martin) requiring the executive to be based at a location other than where the executive was
employed immediately prior to the change in control or at any other location, which is less than 20
miles from such office, to be based at a location other than the principal executive offices of Titan if
the executive was employed at such location immediately prior to the change in control, or to travel
on company business to a substantially greater extent than required prior to the change in control;
(5) any purported termination by Titan (or, after the merger, Lockheed Martin) of the executive’s
employment otherwise than as permitted by the agreement; and (6) any failure by Titan (or, after
the merger, Lockheed Martin) to require any successor to the company to expressly assume and
agree to perform the agreement.

* “Highest Annual Bonus” means the greater of the highest annualized bonus earned by the
executive in the three fiscal years prior to the change in control or the annualized bonus paid or
payable to the executive for the most recently completed fiscal year.

Item 12. Security Ownership of our Common Stock

Ownership of more than 5%

The following table presents information regarding beneficial ownership of our common stock by each
person known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of our outstanding common stock as of
April 19, 2004. On that date, there were 83,795,452 shares of our common stock outstanding. Information
with respect to beneficial owners of more than 5% of the common stock is based upon the most recent
Schedule 13D or Schedule 13G on file with the SEC.

Identity of Owner or Group o Shares Owned:  Percent of Class
Paulson & Co., Inc.* . ... .. e e 4,550,000 5.4%

*  The address of Paulson & Co., Inc. is 650 5" Avenue, New York, NY, 10019. All securities reported by
Paulson & Co., Inc. are owned by Paulson’s advisory clients, none of which to Paulson’s knowledge
owns more than 5% of the class. Paulson itself disclaims beneficial ownership of all such securities.
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Ownership by Directors and Executive Officers

The following table presents information regarding beneficial ownership of our common stock by each

of our Directors, our Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer and five other most highly
compensated executive officers for 2003, and for all current Directors and executive offlcers as a group. All
information in the followmg table is presented as of April 19, 2004.

Shares
Acquirable

. Shares Within 60 Percent of

Identity of Owner or Group(1)(2) . Owned Days(3) Class(4)
Michael B. Alexander (6) . ... ................. A L 156,225 209,066 *
Owens F Alexander, Jr. (5, 7). .. ....... e 1,863 47,075 *
Edward H. Bersoff, Ph.D. (6) . .................. [ 678,585 7,567 *
Joseph F. Caligiuri (6) .. ... ... ... . . i 44,423 26,446 *
Peter A. Cohen (6). . ... ..o v 55,682 7,567 *
Nicholas J. Costanza (6,7) .......... e - 1,862 334,065 *
Daniel J. Fink (6) ......... e O 27,691 48,150 *
Susan Golding .. .. ... .. e 3,042 9,767 *
Robert M. Hanisee (6) . .. ... ..ot e 66,151 34,853 *
Robert E. La Blanc ......... e S 40,189 22,680 *
Earl A, Pontius (7). . . oo oo e e e 14,304 164,411 *

Gene W. Ray, PhD. (6,7) ... .. ... o i 458,511 1,150,258 °  1.9%
James Roth ... ... ... ... . . . ... . L 17,173 28,127 oK
Charles R. Saffell, Jr. (7,8) ........ ... . ... .. i e 8,909 25,019 *
Mark W. Sopp (7) ... ..ot ST B 4,156 181,436 *
Joseph R. Wright, Jr. ... ... .o 13,173 20,937 *

5.7%

All directors and executive officers as a group (7) (28 persons) . . . .. 1,892,801 3,068,959

*

ey

@)

G)

4)

©)

Less than 1%

The address of all owners is: ¢/o The Titan Corporation, 3033 Saence Park Road, San Diego, CA
92121.

The information regarding beneficial ownership -of our common stock has been presented according
to rules of the SEC and is not necessarily indicative of beneficial ownership for any other purpose.
Under California and some other state laws, personal property owned by a married person may be
community property that either spouse may manage and control. We have no information as to
whether any shares shown in this table are subject to such community property laws.

Reflects the number of shares that could be purchased by exercise of options available at April 19,
2004 or within 60 days thereafter under our stock option plans.

Percentage of beneficial ownership as to any person as of a particular date is calculated by dividing the
number of shares beneficially owned or acquirable by that person by the sum of the number of shares
outstanding as of such date and the number of shares as to which that person has the right to acquire
voting or investment power with respect to their shares at April 19, 2004 or within 60 days thereafter.

Mr. Owens Alexander serves as our Senior Vice President and President and Chief Executive Officer
of Titan Wireless, Inc. From February 2002 through May 2003, Mr. Alexander was designated by our
Board of directors as a “Section 16(A) Reporting Officer” of the Company, however in May 2003, in
connection with the winding down of our Titan Wireless segment, Titan’s board of directors removed
such designation.
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(6) The number of shares includes shares that are individually or jointly owned, as well as shares over
which the individual has either sole or shared investment or voting authority. Some directors and
executive officers disclaim beneficial ownership of some of the shares included in the table as
indicated below:

¢ Mr. Michael Alexander-91,134 shares held by Brento, Inc. of which Mr. Alexander is President;
* Dr. Bersoff-49,842 shares held by his wife and 1,252 shares held jointly with his brother;
* Mr. Caligiuri-44,423 shares held in trust for the benefit of Mr. Caligiuri and his sons;

* Mr. Cohen-50,000 shares held by Ramius Capital Group, LLC, (“Ramius”); Mr. Cohen is one
of three managing members of C4S & Co, LLC which is the sole managing member of Ramius;

* Mr. Costanza-14,661 options exercisable by Scuderia Costanza Investment Company, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company of which Mr. Costanza is the sole general manager;

* Mr. Fink- 500 shares held by his w1fe and 27,691 shares held in trust for the benefit of Mr. Fink
and his wife;

* Mr. Hanisee-5,000 shares held by his wife; and ‘
* Dr.. Ray-lO 000 shares held by The Ray Trust for the benefit of Dr. Ray and his wife.

(7) For executive offlcers the numbers include interest in shares held by the trustees of our Consolidated
Retirement Plan, Employee Stock Ownershlp Plan and Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as of April 19,
2004, including: Mr. Owens Alexander-1,201 shares; Mr. Costanza-1,863 shares; Dr. Ray-89,020
shares; Mr. Sopp 1,756 shares; Mr. Pontius-5,304 shares; Mr. Saffell-2,184 shares; and all executive
officers as a group-118,693 shares.

(8) Effective March 19, 2003, Mr. Saffeil res1gned as an officer of Titan. He had served as our Senior Vice
President, National Security Solutions since September 2002.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

During 2003, Mr. Rose owned a property located at 1501 Merchants Way in Niceville, Florida that was
by leased by BTG, Inc. The lease commenced on March 1, 1992 and expired on February 28, 2003. As a
result of our acquisition of BTG, Inc. in November 2001, we assumed the lease. Subsequently, in
December 2002, Mr. Rose was elected as a Senior Vice President of Titan. In February 2003, Titan’s Board
reviewed the lease and determined, with the concurrence of Mr. Rose, that this related party transaction
was not in the best interests of Titan and our stockholders. Accordingly, the Board also determined that
Mr. Rose should make arrangements to divest his interest in the property before Titan could consider an
extension or renegotiation of the lease. On January 1, 2004, the lease was amended by letter agreement to
provide for a month-to-month term and on March 1, 2004, Mr. Rose sold all interest he had in the property
in conformity with Board determinations. During 2003 and the first quarter of 2004, we paid $198,480 and
$33,441, respectively to Mr. Rose for the lease of this property.

In conjunction with Titan’s exit of its international telecommunications business, Titan entered into an
agreement with Geolutions, Inc. (Geolutions) to assume and perform all of Titan Wireless’s outstanding
warranty obligations. Geolutions was a newly formed company, founded by a former executive of Titan
Wireless and former officer of Titan. Titan entered into a fixed price contract of $1.9 million, plus
incidental expenses of up to $0.6 million and other third party costs of an aggregate maximum of
$1.4 million, which was subsequently reduced by $0.5 million. These fees are payable through mid 2004, the
period over which Titan’s warranty obligations exist on its existing customer contracts. The contract is
cancelable by Titan under certain circumstances of non-performance by Geolutions. In conjunction with
Titan’s agreement with Geolutions. Titan assigned its existing warranty obligations in its international
telecommunications business with its existing customers to Geolutions. If Geolutions fails to perform these
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contracted obligations, Titan Wireless remains obligated to perform them and may incur costs in excess of
these contracted amounts.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Our principal independent auditor for 2003 was KPMG LLP (KPMG). For services rendered during
or in connection with our fiscal year 2003, as applicable, KPMG billed the following fees:

2003 2002
Audit Fees. . .o i i e e $2,053,222 $1,232,958
Audit Related Fees™. . . ... ... i $ 308,162 $ 252,042
TaX FCOS .« v o vttt e e $ 0 $ 0
All Other Fees™™ .. oot e e $ 220,000 $2,693,700

*  Audit Related Fees for 2003 and 2002 include other audit and attest services, financial accounting,
reporting and compliance matters, risk and controls review and transaction and due diligence services.

**  All Other Fees for 2003 includes audit work related to our employee benefit plans. All Other Fees for
2002 includes $2,295,000 related to the reaudits of Titan’s financial information for 2001 and 2000,
which were required due to the discontinuance of our Titan Wireless, LinCom Wireless and other
information technology businesses in the third quarter of 2002 in accordance with the AICPAs
Auditing Interpretation of Statement on Auditing Standards No. 58 “Reports on Audited Financial
Statements”. This auditing interpretation addresses reporting requirements of a successor auditor (in
this case KPMG LLP) when prior period audited financial statements (in this case 2000 and 2001)
were audited by a predecessor auditor who has ceased operations, and there is flnanmal reporting on
discontinued operations, as was the case here.

Our Audit Committee has adopted restrictions on cur hiring of any KPMG partner, director,
manager, staff, advising member of the department of professional practice, reviewing actuary, reviewing
tax professional and any other persons having responsibility for providing audit assurance on any aspect of
their certification of the company’s financial statements. The committee also requires key KPMG partners
assigned to our audit to be rotated at least every five years.

Pre-approval Policies and Procedures

Under the Audit Committee’s pre-approval policies and procedures, the Audit Committee is required
to pre-approve all audit and non-audit services performed by KPMG. The Audit Committee pre-approves
a list of all services that may be provided by KPMG. The scope of specific pre-approved services is
categorized into four groups: audit services; audit-related services, tax services and all other services. In
addition, the Audit Committee sets pre-approved fee limits for each of these services. The Audit
Committee or its designee must specifically approve any type of service that is not within the scope on the
list of pre-approved services. Any proposed service that is within a pre-approved scope of services but will
cause the pre-approved fee limit to be exceeded will also require specific pre-approval by the Audit
Committee or its designee. :

The Audit Committee has delegated pre-approval authority to the Audit Committee chair, and any
pre-approved actions by the Audit Committee chair as designee are reported to the Audit Commlttee for
approval at its next scheduled meeting.

All of the fees paid to KPMG in 2003 were pre-approved by the Audit Committee, and there was no
service for which the de minimus exception permitted in certain circumstances under SEC rules was
utilized.
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Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) 1 and 2. Financial Statements being filed as‘part of this report are listed in the index in Item 8, on
page 42.

(b) During the three months ended December 31, 2003, and through the date of this filing, the Company
filed the following reports on Form 8-K: ‘

M

@

®)

4)

Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 23, 2003, to furnish Regulation FD disclosure
pursuant to “Item 12. Results of Operations and Financial Condition” in accordance with the
Securities and Exchange Commission’s Releases Nos. 33-8216 and 34-47583.

Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 11, 2004, and filed on February 17, 2004, to furnish
disclosure pursuant to “Item 11. Executive Compensation” concerning the temporary suspension
of trading under Registrant’s Employee Benefit Plans.

Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 13, 2004, to furnish disclosure pursuant to “Item S.
Other Events and Required FD Disclosure” regarding the Company’s announcement that the
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission had commenced an investigation into whether
payments made pursuant to certain agreements between Titan and international consultants were
made in violation of applicable law.

Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 23, 2004, to furnish Regulation FD disclosure
pursuant to “Item 12. Results of Operations and Financial Condition” in accordance with the
Securities and Exchange Commission’s Releases Nos. 33-8216 and 34-47583.

(¢) Exhibits.
Exhibit Index

Exhibit
No.

Page
Description No.

21

211

3.1

3.2

33

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of September 15, 2003, by and among *
Lockheed Martin Corporation, LMC Sub One, Inc. and The Titan Corporation, which

was Exhibit 2.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K dated September 17, 2003, is incorporated

herein by this reference. ‘

Amendment No. 3 to Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated April 7, 2004, by and *
among Lockheed Martin Corporation, LMC Sub One, Inc., LMC LLC One, LLC and

The Titan Corporation, which was Exhibit 2.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K dated April 7,

2004, is incorporated herein by this reference. ,

Registrant’s Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificate of Incorporation dated as *
of October 21, 1998, which was Exhibit No. 3.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q dated November 16, 1998, is incorporated herein by this reference.

Registrant’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation dated as of November 6, 1986, which

was Exhibit No. 3.1 to Registrant’s 1987 Annual Report on Form 10-K is incorporated

herein by this reference. Registrant’s Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificate

of Incorporation dated as of June 30, 1987, which was Exhibit 3.2 to Registrant’s 1987
Annual Report on Form 10-K is incorporated herein by this reference.

Registrant’s Byiaws, which were Exhibit 3.3 to Registrant’s 1999 Annual Report on Form  *

'10-K, are incorporated herein by this reference.

Amendments to Bylaws of Registrant, dated March 22, 2000 and August 16, 2000, which *
were Exhibit 3.4 to Registrant’s 2001 Annual Report on Form 10-K, is incorporated
herein by this reference.
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Exhibit
No.

Description

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

Rights Amendment, dated as of August 21, 1995, between The Titan Corporation and
American Stock Transfer and Trust Company, which was Exhibit 1 to Registrant’s Form
8-A dated September 5, 1995, is incorporated herein by this reference.

Indenture dated as of May 15, 2003 among The Titan Corporation, as issuer of 8%
Senior Subordinated Notes due 2011, the Guarantors named therein and Deutsche Bank
Trust Company Americas, as trustee, which was Exhibit 4.1 to Registration Statement of
Form S-4 (SEC File No. 33-106911), filed by the Registrant on July 9, 2003,
incorporated herein by this reference.

First Supplemental Indenture Dated February 25, 2004, among The Titan Corporation,
Duetsche Bank Trust Company Americas, LMC, LLC One, LLC and Lockheed Martin

‘Corporation, which was Exhibit 4.3 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 2 to a Registration

Statement on Form S-4 (SEC File No. 333-106911-15) filed by the Registrant on
February 9, 2004, incorporated herein by this reference.

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of May 15, 2003 by and among The Titan
Corporation, the Guarantors named therein and Credit Suisse First Boston LLC,
Goldman, Sachs & Co., and Wachovia Securities, Inc., which was Exhibit 4.8 to
Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed by the Regrstrant on July 9, 2003, 1ncorporated
herein by this reference

1992 Directors’ Stock Option Plan which was filed in the 1993 definitive proxy statement
and was Exhibit 10.14 to Registrant’s 1992 Annual Report on Form 10-K, is
incorporated herein by this reference.

Stock Option Plan of 1994, which was filed in the 1994 definitive proxy statement and
was Exhibit 10.17 to Registrant’s 1993 Annual Report on Form 10-K, is incorporated
herein by this reference.

Amendment to Stock Option Plan Of 1994, which was Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s 1999
Annual Report on Form 10-K, is incorporated herein by this reference.

1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, which was Exhibit 4 to Registrant’s Form S-8 dated
December 18, 1995, is incorporated herein by this reference.

Executive Severance Plan entered into by the Registrant with Ronald B. Gorda, which
was Exhibit 6(a)(10) to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated November
13, 1995, is incorporated herein by this reference.

1996 Directors’ Stock Option and Equity Participation Plan, which was filed in the 1996
definitive proxy statement and was Exhibit 10.7 to Registrant’s 1995 Annual Report on
Form 10-K, is incorporated herein by this reference.

Stock Option Plan of 1997, which was filed in the Registrant’s 1997 Definitive Proxy
Statement as Appendix A, is incorporated herein by this reference.

Amendment to Stock Option Plan of 1997, which was Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant’s 1999
Annual Report on Form 10-K, is incorporated herein by this reference.

The Titan Corporation 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, which was Exhibit 4.1 to .
Registrant’s Form S-8 dated July 11, 2000, is incorporated herein by this reference.

The Titan Corporation 2000 Employee and Director Stock Option and Incentive Plan,
which was Exhibit 4.2 to Registrant’s Form S-8 (No. 333-41140) dated July 11, 2000, is
incorporated herein by this reference.
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Exhibit
No.

Page
Description No.

10.11
10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

The Titan Corporation 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, which was Exhibit 99.2 to *
Registrant’s Form S-8 (No..333-103751) dated March 11, 2003, is incorporated herein by
this reference.

The Titan Corporation 2002 Employee and Director Stock Option and Incentive Plan, *
which was Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant’s Form S-8 (No. 333- 103751) dated March 11, 2003,
is incorporated herein by this reference.

Lease Agreement dated as of July 9, 1991, by and between Torrey Pines Limited *

Partnership, a California limited partnership, as landlord, and Reglstrant as tenant,

which was Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K dated July 11, 1991, is mcorporated
herein by this reference.

Agreement of Lease by and between NBP 220, LLC and The Titan Corporation (‘220 *
National Business Parl”), dated March 31, 2003, including all exhibits and attachments,

which was filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on form 10-Q dated

May 15, 2003, is incorporated herein by this reference.

Deed of Lease dated April 1, 2003, by and between Two Freedom Square, L.1..C. and *
The Titan Corporation, including all exhibits and attachments, which was filed as Exhibit

10.2 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated May 15, 2003, is incorporated
herein by this reference.

Loan and Security Agreement, dated December 29, 1995, by and between Registrant *
and Capital Associates International, Inc., which was Exhibit 10.17 to Registrant’s 1995
Annual Report on Form 10-K, is incorporated herein by this reference.

Rider dated August 13, 1996, to Loan and Security Agreement dated December 29, *
1995 by and between Registrant and Capital Associates International, Inc. which was

Exhibit 10.28 to Registrant’s 1996 Annual Report on Form 10-K, is incorporated herein

by this reference.

Loan Facility Agreement dated as of December 10, 1999 among Titan Africa, Inc., *
Office des Postes et Telecommunications of the State of Benin, Banque Belgolaise, Eco

Bank Benin, Banque Ouest Africain pour le Developpement, Banque Internationale du
Benin, Continental Bank Benin and Bank of Africa Benin, which was Exhibit 10.32 to
Registrant’s 1999 Annual Report on Form 10-K, is incorporated herein by this reference.

Senior Secured Credit Agreement dated as of May 23, 2002, among The Titan *
Corporation, as the Borrower, various financial institutions from time to time, as the '
Lenders, Wachovia Bank, National Association as Administrative Agent, The Bank of

Nova Scotia and Comerica Bank — California as Syndication Agents, and Branch

Banking and Trust Company and Toronto Dominion (New York), Inc., as

‘Documentation- Agents, which was Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form

8-K dated May 23, 2002, and filed June 21, 2002 is incorporated herein by this
reference. :
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Exhibit
No.

Description

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24
10.25
10.26
10.27
10.28

10.29

Insurance Certificates, which are Annex I to Exhibit D to the Senior Secured Credit
Agréement dated as of May 23, 2002, among The Titan Corporation, as the Borrower,
various financial institutions from time to time, as the Lenders, Wachovia Bank,
National Association as Administrative Agent, the Bank of Nova Scotia and Comerica
Bank — California as Syndication Agents, and Branch Banking and Trust Company and
Toronto Dominion (New York), Inc. as Documentation Agents, which were Exhibit 10.1
to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A dated as of May 23, 2002 and filed
August 9, 2002, are incorporated herein by this reference.

Letter Agreement dated March 29, 2002, between The Titan Corporation and SureBeam
Corporation, which was Exhibit 10.56 to Registrant’s 2001 Annual Report on Form 10-K,
is incorporated herein by this reference.

Senior Secured Credit Agreement between the Registrant and SureBeam Corporation
and Exhibits thereto dated as of August 2, 2002, which was filed as Exhibits 10.1 through
10.9 with Registrant’s Form 8-K dated August 2, 2002 and filed August 14, 2002, is
incorporated herein by this reference.

Amendment to Senior Secured Credit Agreement dated as of May 7, 2003, among The
Titan Corporation, as the Borrower, various financial institutions form time to time, as
the Lenders, Wachovia Bank, National Association as Administrative Agent, The Bank
of Nova Scotia and Comerica Bank — California as Syndication Agents, and Branch
Banking and Trust Company and Toronto Dominion (New York), Inc., as
Documentation Agents, which was Exhibit 10.23 to Reglstrant s Form 10-K filed March
11, 2004, is incorporated herein by this reference.

License Agreement dated October 17, 2001, between SB OperatingCo, Inc. and The
Titan Corporation, which was Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form
8-K dated March 22, 2002, is incorporated herein by this reference.

The Titan Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan, Master Plan Document effective
January 1, 2002, which was Exhibit 10.54 to Registrant’s 2001 Annual Report on Form
10-K, is incorporated herein by this reference:

Amendment to The Titan Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan effective July 1,
2002, which was Exhibit 10.26 to Registrant’s' Form 10-K filed on March 11, 2004, is
incorporated herein by this reference.

Amendment to The Titan Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan effective November
18, 2003, which was Exhibit 10.27 to Registrant’s Form 10-K filed on March 11, 2004, is
incorporated herein by this reference.

Executive Severance Plan entered into by the Company with Gene W. Ray and Nicholas
J. Costanza, which was filed as Exhibit 10.15 to Registrant’s 1999 Annual Report on
Form 10-K, is incorporated herein by this reference.

Amendment to Executive Agreement by and between The Titan Corporation and Dr.
Gene W. Ray dated September 14, 2003, which was filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated October 10, 2003, is incorporated herein by this
reference.
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Exhibit
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Description

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

12

21

23

31.1

31.2

321

Amendment to Executive Agreement by and between The Titan Corporation and
Nicholas J. Costanza dated 14, 2003, which was filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated October 10, 2003, is incorporated herein by this
reference.

Employment Agreement made and entered into as of April 3, 2003 by and between The
Titan Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and Dr. Gene W. Ray, which was filed as
Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated May 15, 2003, is
incorporated herein by this reference. '

Employment Agreement made and entered into as of April 3, 2003 by and between The
Titan Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and Nicholas J. Costanza, which was filed as
Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated May 15, 2003, is
incorporated herein by this reference.

Employment Agreement made and entered into as of April 3, 2003 by and between The
Titan Corporation, a Delaware corporation, and Mark W. Sopp, which was filed as
Exhibit 10.6 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated May 15, 2003, is
incorporated herein by this reference.

Executive agreemént'dated August 20, 2003, by and between The Titan Corporation and
Mark W. Sopp, which was filed as Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q dated October 10, 2003, is incorporated herein by this reference.

Settlement Agreement dated as of March 5, 2004 by and between The Titan
Corporation and Richard Kipperman solely in his capacity as the Chapter 7 trustee for
SureBeam Corporation and for SB Operating Co, LLC, which was Exhibit 10.35 to
Registrant’s Form 10-K filed on March 11, 2004, is incorporated herein by this
reference.

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges, which was Exhibit 12 to
Registrant’s Form 10-K filed on March 11, 2004, is incorporated herein by this
reference. :

Subsidiaries of Registrant as of March 8, 2004, which was Exhibit 21 to Registrant’s
Form 10-K filed on March 11, 2004, is incorporated herein by this reference.

Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Auditors, which was Exhibit 23 to Registrant’s
Form 10-K filed on March 11, 2004, is incorporated herein by this reference.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

Certification of Periodic Financial Reports pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, which was Exhibit
32.1 to Registrant’s Form 10-K filed on March 11, 2004, is incorporated herein by this
reference.

*
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the _feqﬁirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized. ‘ :

THE TITAN CORPORATION

March 9, 2004 | | By: /s/ GENE W. RAY

Gene W. Ray, ‘
Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board

POWER OF ATTORNEY

We, the undersigned directors and officers of The Titan Corporation, do hereby constitute and
appoint Mark W. Sopp, our true and lawful attorney and agent, to do-any and all acts and things in our
name and on our behalf in our capacities as directors and officers and to execute any and all instruments
for us and in our names in the capacities indicated below, which said attorney and agent may deem
necessary or advisable to enable said corporation to comply with the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934,
and any rules, regulations, and requirements of the securities and Exchange Commission, in connection
with this Report, including specifically, but without limitation, power and authority to sign any and all
amendments hereto; and we do hereby ratify and confirm all that said attorney and agent shall do or cause
to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature ' : Title Date
" /s/ GENE-W. Ray Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of March 9, 2004
Gene W. Ray ‘ the Board

/s/ MARK W. SOPP Senior Vice President and Chief Financial ~ March 9, 2004

Mark W, Sopp . Officer (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ DEANNA H. LUND , i Vice President, Corporate. Controller March 9, 2004

Deanna H. Lund (Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ MICHAEL B. ALEXANDER Director March 9, 2004

Michael B. Alexander

/s/ EDWARD H. BERSOFF, PH.D. Director : March 9, 2004
Edward H. Bersoff, Ph.D.

/s/ JOSEPH F. CALIGIURI Director March 9, 2004

Joseph F. Caligiuri
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Signature

Title

Date

/s/ PETER A. COHEN

Peter A. Cohen

/s/ DANIEL J. FINK

Daniel J . Fink

/s/ SUSAN ‘GOLDING

Susan Gblding

/s/ ROBERT M. HANISEE

Robert M. Hanisee

/s/ ROBERT E. LA BLANC

Robert E. La Blanc

/s/ JAMES ROTH

James Roth

/s/ JOSEPH R. WRIGHT, JR.

Joseph R. Wright, Jr.

Director
Director
Director
birector
Director
Direc?tor

Director
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THE TITAN CORPORATION
SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001

(in thousands of dollars)

Balance at  Additions Charged to

beginning  (charges to Other ‘ Balance at
of year expense)(a) Accounts Deductions  end of year
2003:
Accrued exit charges .................. $37,761 § — $ — $ 9,833  $27,928
Allowance for doubtful accounts . . ........ 6,778 1,816 263 4,757 3,574
Accrual for estimated losses for discontinued B
operations . ............... ..., 266 — — 266 —
2002: .
Accrued exit charges .................. $ —  $53,317 $ — $15,556  $37,761
Accrued merger and integration costs ... ... 1,298 — — 1,298 —
Allowance for doubtful accounts . . ........ 7,750 1,582 — 2,554 6,778
Accrual for estimated losses for discontinued
Operations ... ........... i 17,004 11,014 —_ 27,752 266
2001: _
Accrued merger and integration costs . . . ... $ 3,846  $27,847 $ — $30,395 $ 1,298
Allowance for doubtful accounts . . ........ 3,719 7,531 — 3,500 7,750
Accrual for estimated losses for discontinued

Operations . ............coiuian.... —_ 35,413 — 18,409 17,004

(a) Includes $117 and $4,334 added through acquisitions in 2002 and 2001, respectively.
(b) Valuation allowance for unbilled receivables not in accrued merger and integration costs.

Following is a description of all exit charges and acquisition and integration charges:

Fiscal 2002 Charges

Included in the year ended December 31, 2002 is $53.3 million of restructuring costs related to the
merger of Titan Systems into Titan on September 25, 2002 and exit charges related to the shutdown of
Cayenta’s -headquarters office. Approximately $11.7 million of these exit charges are related to the
shutdown of the Cayenta headquarters office and network operations center, which includes employee
termination costs and other liabilities of approximately $4.5 million, lease commitment costs of
approximately $4.8 million, and non-cash asset impairment charges of approximately $2.4 million relating
primarily to the unamortized leasehold improvements and other fixed assets at the Cayenta headquarters.
The remaining lease commitment costs are expected to be paid through future periods ending in
January 2007. Included in the employee termination costs are 33 personnel reductions.

Approximately $39.9 million of the restructuring charges were related to the merger of Titan Systems
into Titan and other associated reorganization and consolidation costs. The costs included approximately
$32.2 million for the consolidation of various Titan Systems facilities into centralized locations in Virginia
and California. This charge reflects the estimated losses, net of estimated sublease income, on future lease-
commitments of facilities with terms extending through year 2009. The Company intends to actively
market the facilities for sublease opportunities. However, the available space is in markets adversely
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affected by the economy and may not be subleased at attractlve rates or at all. Included in the employee
termination costs are 19 personnel reductions.

Approximately $7.7 million of the Titan Systems restruéturing costs are primarily related to employee
termination costs, employee retention costs, duplicate transition costs and professional fees related to
acquisitions and certain reorganization and consolidation activities within Tltan Systems.

The remaining $1.7 million is related to direct transaction costs incurred by Titan on acqu1s1t10ns that
did not successfully close, primarily the Science and Engineering Associates, Inc. proposed acquisition.

Fiscal 2001 Charges

Acquisition and integration related charges and other of $27.9 million in 2001 included $12.2 million
related to the integration of ACS and AverStar and other restructuring and realignment activities, a
$5.5 million impairment charge for fixed assets associated with Cayenta’s network operations center and
$10.0 million related to other asset impairments and restructuring activities associated with Cayenta’s
headquarters office, and $0.2 million related to personnel reductions in Cayentas federal government
business, which is now a part of Titan’s government business.
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Stockholder Information

Transfer Agent and Registrar
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
6201 15th Avenue
Brookiyn, New York 11219

Independent Public Accountants
KPMG LP
750 B Street, Suite 1500
San Diego, California 92101

The Titan Corporation

3033 Science Park Road
San Diego, CA 92121

www.titan.com




